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Las  Vegas , Nevada , Thursday, October 14, 2021 

 

[Case  ca lled  a t 8:35 a .m .] 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry]  

THE COURT:  We 're  back on  the  record  in  A-18-773472-C, 

Taylor v. Brill.  Counse l for bo th  s ides  a re  pre sen t.  We are  ou ts ide  the  

presence  of the  ju ry, and  we  are  go ing  to  bring  the  ju ry in  in  a  m inute . 

I'm  jus t go ing  to  d iscuss  m y ru ling  on  Brian  Kleven .  I heard  

a rgum en ts  yes te rday.  We void  d ire 'd  th ree  d iffe ren t witnesses , and  the  

decis ion  -- the  decis ion  as  to  Kleven  was  outs tanding . 

I reviewed a  couple  of cases , including  the  one , aga in , tha t 

counse l cited  m e to  -- counse l for Pla in tiff.  Curti v. Fanceschi.  I a lso  

looked  a t Pizarro-Ortega  v. Cervantes -Lopez.  And in  looking  a t those , it 

was  clear to  m e based  on  -- well, Pizarro-Ortega  was  whether or no t a  

new tria l was  warran ted  based  on  exclus ion  of one  of the  nurse 's  

tes tim ony regard ing  b illing , in  a  foo tnote  the  Suprem e Court -- foo tnote  

9, specifica lly -- the  Suprem e Court add resses  tha t som e of the  

tes tim ony, specifica lly, the  trea ting  phys ician  te s tified  tha t he  was  

fam ilia r with  b illing  practice s  for roughly twenty of the  forty Las  Vegas  

a rea  pa in  m anagem ent specia lis ts  and  tha t he  charges  16,000 per rad io  

frequency procedure . 

So  tha t, to  m e, sugges ts  what I was  saying  yes te rday; tha t it 

has  to  be  representa tive  of the  com m unity, no t one  specific a rea .  And 

yes te rday Mr. Kleven  tes tified  tha t he  was  no t fam ilia r with  the  m edica l 

s ide , and  he  can ' t speak to  the  m edica l s ide  or the  reasonableness  of the  
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cos t o f the  trea tm ent, jus t tha t he  could  say tha t tha t was  what S t. Rose  

charged  s im ila rly s itua ted  pa tien ts . 

So  to  a llow tha t tes tim ony, which  to  m e  -- and  I th ink it' s  

p re tty clear it' s  beyond a  layperson .  It is  fo r an  expe rt.  Bu t a llowing  

such  tes tim ony for jus t -- to  Dignity Hea lth  would  be  bo th  m is lead ing  

and  confus ing  to  the  ju ry and  wou ld  no t ass is t them .  So  I am  going  to  

preclude  h is  te s tim ony. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Your Honor, jus t fo r the  record , I d id  want to  

ind ica te  to  you  -- la s t n igh t I was  looking  for som e additiona l sources , 

and  I d id  no tice  tha t usua l and  cus tom ary has  been  defined  by the  

Nevada  Legis la ture  in  a t lea s t one  s ta tu te .  And th is  is  N.R.S . 439B.670, 

Section  4.  And  tha t re fe rs  to  prescrip tion  drug  p rices .  And th is  is  the  

on ly gu idance  we  have  from  the  leg is la ture  on  th is  is sue . 

And it s ta tes , "Usua l and  cus tom ary price  m eans  tha t usua l 

and  cus tom ary charges  tha t a  pha rm acy charges  to  the  genera l public for 

a  drug , as  described  in  --" and  then  it g ives   CFR cita tion . 

So  I th ink it' s  very clear tha t the  leg is la ture  equa tes  the  price  

tha t it' s  charged  by a  provider to  the  public a t la rge  a s  the  usua l and  

cus tom ary price .  And, o f course , tha t's  what Mr. Kleven  and  the  o ther 

witnesses  a re  tes tifying  to . 

I th ink the  counter a rgum ent had  been  nope , nope , these  

witnesses  have  to  com e in , and  they have  to  tes tify tha t they're  fam ilia r 

with  a ll the  o ther providers  in  Las  Vegas  and  the  m arke t in  genera l.  

What I would  say is , the  price  cha rged  to  the  genera l public re flects  

m arke t conditions .  Tha t is  part o f the  ana lys is . 
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And I don ' t know if th is  will a ffect your ru ling  or no t, bu t 

obvious ly, your ru ling  righ t now is  an  incred ib le  boon  to  the  Defense  

who had  not even  cha llenged  the  usua l and  cus tom ary na ture  of these  

charges  when I asked  the ir own re ta ined  expe rt and  the  Defendant -- 

weren ' t even  cha llenged .  And if you  continue  with  your ru ling , tha t will 

be  approxim ate ly $200,000 less  in  dam ages  tha t m y clien t is  en titled  to  

presen t.  This  is  no t a  sm all is sue .  We have  presen ted  evidence . 

Now, if the  Defense  wants  to  cross -exam ine  and  try to  

weaken  tha t evidence  and  m ake  a rgum ents  to  the  ju ry in  clos ing , tha t's  

fine , bu t we  have  sufficien t evidence  on  th is  is sue  to  p resen t to  the  ju ry 

in  m y opin ion . 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And I d isagree  with  som e o f your 

s ta tem ents .  As  I sa id  yes te rday, it' s  the  Pla in tiff' s  burden  to  es tab lish  

the ir case , to  es tab lish  tha t there  a re  reasonable  cos ts . 

I th ink vo ir d ire  m ade  it clear yes te rday tha t you  have  not 

done  tha t.  Tha t's  why I'm  ru ling  th is  way.  This  is  tim e  se t for tria l.  You 

announced  a lready.  You should  have  been  prepared  with  your 

witnesses , and  I don ' t see  tha t they tes tified  to  reasonable  and  

cus tom ary to  in troduce  tha t in  fron t o f a  ju ry. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Your Honor, then  jus t for the  record , I've  

is sued  a  tria l subpoena  to  the  CFO of Henderson  Hosp ita l, who I would  

expect to  tes tify very s im ila rly to  Mr. Kleven . 

I see  no  reason  to  ca ll the  witness  if you  a re  no t go ing  to  

change  your ru ling , bu t I wou ld  m ake  a  proffe r tha t tha t witness  wou ld  

com e in  and  te s tify tha t the  am ount of the  Henderson  Hosp ita l b illing  is  
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usua l and  cus tom ary and  reasonable  fo r th is  com m unity, and  tha t's  40-

som e-thousand  dolla rs  in  charges . 

THE COURT:  I m ean , how can  you  m ake  a  proffe r if you  

haven ' t even  spoken  with  h im ? 

MR. BREEDEN:  I would  expect the  tes tim ony be tween  the  

CFOs to  be  s im ila r.  Would  you  like  to  have  a  vo ir d ire  of tha t witnes s  as  

well? 

THE COURT:  I m ean , I th ink tha t's  wha t you  should  do  or 

reques t because  I don ' t know how you m ake  a  proffe r if you  haven ' t 

in te rviewed a  witness .  A proffe r is  supposed  to  be  based  on  what you  

know tha t -- tha t witness  will tes tify to .  You don ' t know what he 's  go ing  

to  say. 

MR. BREEDEN:  I don ' t expect tha t witness  to  g ive  tes tim ony 

any d iffe ren t than  Mr. Kleven  d id . 

THE COURT:  But an  expecta tion  and  rea lity is  d iffe ren t.  So  

you  decide  what you  want to  do .  It' s  no t m y case .  I'm  jus t m aking  

ru lings  based  on  what's  p re sen ted  before  m e. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Okay.  We  will try to  subpoena  the  witnes s . 

THE COURT:  So  p lease  -- Ray, p lease  ca ll Mr. Kleven  and  te ll 

h im  he  doesn ' t need  to  appear today. 

THE MARSHAL:  Yes , Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  And tha t -- well, le t' s  ca ll the  ju ry in  firs t.  Were  

there  any o ther m atte rs  ou ts ide  the  pre sence?  All righ t.  And then  you  

can  ca ll h im .  Thank you . 

[Pause] 
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THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry. 

[J ury in  a t 8:43 a .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  The  jury is  a ll p resen t, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  You m ay be  sea ted .  Good 

m orning , and  welcom e back everyone .  Sorry fo r the  s ligh t de lay.  We 're  

go ing  to  continue  with  the  Pla in tiff' s  ca se . 

Pla in tiff, go  ahead  and  ca ll your next witness , p lease . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Your Honor, ou r next witnes s  is  Dr. Nien  

Yeh, M.D. 

THE COURT:  Thank you . 

THE MARSHAL:  Please  s tep  up  and  watch  your s tep .  Please  

face  the  cle rk to  your le ft, and  p lease  ra ise  your righ t hand . 

SZU-NINE YEH, PLAINTIFF'S  WITNESS, SWORN 

THE CLERK:  Thank you .  Please , be  sea ted .  Please  s ta te  and  

spe ll your nam e for the  reco rd . 

THE WITNESS:  My nam e is  Szu-Nien  Yeh.  S-Z-U N-I-E-N Y-

E-H. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALBERTSON:   

Q Dr. Yeh?  Is  tha t correct? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  What's  the  nam e of your cu rren t p ractice? 

A It' s  U-S-A-P.  Which  s tands  fo r United  S ta tes  Anes thes ia  

Partners . 

Q And was  tha t your practice  in  April -- on  April 26th , 2017? 
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A I be lieve  so . 

Q And are  you  an  anes thes io logis t?  Is  tha t correct? 

A Yes . 

Q How long  have  you  been  an  anes thes io logis t? 

A I g radua ted  in  1997. 

Q Okay.  I'm  going  to  go  through your educa tiona l background 

a  little  b it, bu t I m ight ask you  a  couple  m ore  fo llow up  ques tions .  I have  

a  rea lly sore  th roa t th is  m orn ing , so  I have  a  cough d rop  in  m y m outh .  

So  if a t any tim e  you  don ' t unders tand  m e, p lease  le t m e  know.  Okay? 

A Yes . 

Q So  you  g radua ted  in  1997 from  where? 

A I d id  m y anes thes ia  res idency in  the  Univers ity of Arizona , 

Tucson . 

Q Are  you  board  certified? 

A Yes , m a 'am . 

Q And you  have  -- have  you  taken  any additiona l courses  or 

s tud ies  s ince  your res idency? 

A We only take , like , a  continued  m edica l educa tion  courses . 

Q Are  you  up  to  da te  on  those? 

A Yes . 

Q And is  your license  curren t? 

A Yes . 

Q How m any s ta tes  a re  you  licensed  in? 

A Curren tly, jus t Nevada . 

Q Okay.  Have  you  been  licensed  in  o ther s ta tes  p revious ly? 
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A Yes , I have  been  in  Arizona  where  I d id  m y res idency.  And I 

a lso  d id  in  Californ ia  for a  little  wh ile . 

Q Did  you  rende r care  to  Kim berly Taylor as  an  

anes thes io logis t fo r a  hys te roscopy she  rece ived  a t Hende rson  Hosp ita l 

on  April 26th , 2017? 

A Yes . 

Q Do you  have  knowledge  of reasonable  and  cus tom ary b illing  

ra tes  for se rvices  p rovided  by anes thes io logis ts  in  Clark County, Nevada  

in  2017? 

A No.  I do  the  coding  for the  d iagnos is  and  the  anes thes ia  

provided , bu t the  b illing  is  p rovided  by anes thes ia  se rvices . 

Q Do you  know what appropria te  b illing  am ounts  a re? 

A Not exactly. 

Q Okay.  Do you  b ill fo r the  se rvices  you  provide? 

A I don ' t do  the  b illing .  Like  I sa id , m y departm ent does .  I on ly 

provide  the  d iagnos is  for the  pre -op  d iagnos is  and  a lso  the  leve l o f 

anes thes ia  I p rovide , and  they do  the  coding  and  the  b illing . 

Q Okay.  Did  you  b ill fo r the  se rvices  you  provided  to  Ms. 

Taylor on  April 26th , 2017? 

A Yes , I p rovided  proper paperworks  [s ic] for m y anes thes ia  

departm ent to  do  the  proper b illing . 

Q Okay.  Do you  know how m uch your b ill was? 

A No, I don ' t. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Your Honor, can  I approach  the  witnes s  to  

show them  -- show h im  a  copy of h is  b ill to  re fresh  h is  reco llection? 
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THE COURT:  Sure . 

MS. HALL:  And Your Honor, I would  have  an  objection  to  

th is .  I th ink it' s  beyond the  scope  o f th is  witness  and  h is  trea tm ent. 

THE COURT:  I'm  going  to  a llow it.  Go  ahead . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  I'm  representing  to  you  tha t I'm  showing  

you  the  b ill fo r your trea tm ent.  I'm  sorry.  I've  go t to  ge t back to  the  

m icrophone .  The  b ill fo r your trea tm en t of Ms. Taylor on  April 26th , 

2017.  And I th ink it has  an  am ount on  there . 

BY MS. ALBERTSON:   

Q How m uch is  the  am ount of tha t b ill? 

A I th ink the  -- anes thes ia  se rvices  provided  was  b illed  a t 

$1,162.  And -- bu t there 's  a  deduction  in  the  con tractua l write  --  

Q Okay.  I'm  jus t asking  you  about the  am ount of the  b ill so  fa r. 

A Well --  

Q So  the  fu ll am ount --  

A -- a t the  end  it s ays  --  

Q -- o f the  b ill --  

A -- zero .  Am ount zero , a t the  end . 

Q Okay.  But I'm  asking  the  orig ina l b ill.  The  $1,062 [s ic] is  the  

am ount of the  o rig ina l -- is  the  orig ina l am ount b illed . 

A Thank you .  This  is  the  -- accord ing  -- yes , th is  is  the  b ill.  

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  Can  I have  tha t back for a  s econd?  

Thanks . 

BY MS. ALBERTSON:   

Q Okay.  So  $1,162.00 is  the  am ount o rig ina lly b illed  for the  
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se rvices  rendered  to  Ms. Taylor on  April 26th , 2017, correct? 

A Accord ing  to  the  paper, yes . 

Q Okay.  And was  tha t am ount usua l, reasonable , and  

cus tom ary for such  se rvices  in  Clark County, Nevada  in  2017? 

A Again , I don ' t do  the  b illing , bu t it doesn ' t seem  to  be  

unusua l. 

Q Okay.  What do  you  m ean  by it doesn ' t seem  to  be  unusua l? 

A It seem s like  in  the  reasonab le  range  be tween  what 

anes thes ia  was  provided  for the  am ount of care  tha t was  g iven  with in  

the  -- m y service . 

Q Okay.  How is  th is  b ill genera ted?  Is  it, like , an  hourly?  Is  it 

fla t ra te?  Is  it -- it goes  up  by eve ry fifteen  m inutes  you  work?  

Som eth ing  like  tha t? 

A Again , yeah , u sua lly we  m a tch  the  d iagnos is  with  wha t -- the  

leve l o f anes thes ia  provided , and  there  is  a  -- we  go  accord ing  to  the  

Anes thes ia  Socie ty recom m endations  and  then  we  b ill a lso  by tim e , 

every fifteen  m inutes .  And when you  -- we  genera te  som e  unit va lues , 

which  is  d iffe ren t fo r each  insurance  com pany o r our contracts  for -- you  

know -- fo r insurance .  So  the  --  

Q Okay. 

A -- sam e p rocedure  m ight no t be  exactly the  sam e for 

everyone .  It depends  on  the  contracts . 

Q And is  th is  an  unusua l p rocedure  to  your knowledge? 

A Which  procedure? 

Q I m ean , is  it -- well, you  sa id  you  used  the  Anes thes ia  Socie ty 
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gu ide lines , righ t?  Is  tha t what you  sa id? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And you  -- 

Do you  a lso  use  AMA guide lines? 

A The  AMA is  for coding  for the  d iagnos is  o f the  d isease  itse lf. 

Q Okay. 

A Not the  b illing  for the  anes thes ia  provider. 

Q Okay.  So  you  use  the  Anes thes ia  Socie ty gu ide lines  to  com e 

up  with  these  am ounts? 

A Yeah . 

Q Okay.  Is  tha t an  excepted  guide line  in  your fie ld? 

A It' s  used  na tionwide . 

Q Nationwide .  Okay.  So  would  it be  fa ir to  say th is  is  a  usua l, 

reasonable , and  cus tom ary b ill fo r such  services  rendered  to  Ms. Taylor 

in  April o f 2017? 

A I be lieve  so . 

Q Okay.  And aga in , jus t to  cla rify, $1,162.  Okay.  Was  tha t fu ll 

am ount -- tha t fu ll $1,162 a ll re la ted  to  anes thes io logy services  you  

provided  during  the  hys te roscopy perfo rm ed on  Ms. Taylor on  April 

26th , 2017? 

A Yes . 

Q What does  your curren t p ractice  en ta il? 

A I'm  a  fu lly -- I'm  active , fu lltim e  s ta ff.  I work in  m any d iffe ren t 

hosp ita ls  p rovid ing  anes thes ia  in  d iffe ren t un its .  And I particu la rly 

specia lize  in  obs te trics  anes thes ia , and  I a lso  do  m ain  OR anes thes ia . 
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Q Okay.  So  you 're  -- is  it fa ir to  say you 're  provid ing  anes thes ia  

for people  undergoing  surg ica l p rocedures? 

A Yes . 

Q Do you  p rovide  anes thes ia  for any o the r reason? 

A No, on ly for su rgery. 

Q And was  your practice  re la tive ly the  sam e in  April o f 2017 

when you  worked  on  the  hys te roscopy tha t Ms. Taylor rece ived? 

A Yes . 

Q And you  sa id  you  work in  various  hospita ls .  Which  

hospita ls? 

A Pre tty m uch every hospita l in  town  with  the  exception  of 

UMC, North  Vis ta , and  Centennia l. 

Q Those  a re  the  on ly ones  you  don ' t work in? 

A Correct.  I have  privileges  in  every s ing le  hospita l in  town. 

Q Okay.  The  -- I' ll rep resent to  you , and  I th ink you ' ll reca ll as  

well, the  surge ry pe rform ed on  Ms. Taylor was  done  in  Henderson  

Hospita l -- 

A Correct. 

Q -- in  April o f 2017? 

A Correct. 

Q Did  you  have  privileges  a t Henderson  Hospita l in  April o f 

2017? 

A Yes . 

Q And have  you  ever previous ly g iven  te s tim ony in  a  court o f 

law? 
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A No. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Your Honor, pu rsuant to  16.1, I'm  

tendering  Dr. Yeh  a s  a  qua lified , non-re ta ined  trea ting  phys ician  to  o ffe r 

expert tes tim ony in  th is  m atte r perta in ing  to  the  procedures  he  

perform ed on  April 26th , 2017. 

THE COURT:  Counse l, app roach . 

[S idebar a t 8:53 a .m ., ending  a t 8:54 a .m ., no t transcribed ] 

BY MS. ALBERTSON:   

Q Okay.  Other than  the  April 26th , 2017, hys te roscopy we 're  

here  to  d iscuss  today, have  you  provided  anes thes ia  se rvices  for Dr. Brill 

on  any o ther surgeries? 

A Many, yes . 

Q Okay.  How m any do  you  th ink? 

A Probably over 100 to  200 in  the  course  of years . 

Q Per yea r or over m any years? 

A Over m any years . 

Q Okay.  So  it' s  no t 100 to  200 per year, it' s  100 to  200 to ta l? 

A It could  be .  It could  be .  I work in  a  very busy unit.  Dr. Brill is  

a  very busy surgeon .  And we do  a  lo t o f p rocedures  no t jus t in  the  Main  

OR but a s  well as  obs te trics .  So  over a  year, p robably ove r 100 a  year. 

Q So  in  2017, you  cou ld  have  provided  anes thes ia  se rvices  to  

Dr. Brill fo r over 100 surgeries? 

A Yes . 

Q Are  you  the  on ly anes thes io logis t p rovid ing  se rvices  to  Dr. 

Brill? 
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A No.  My group  has  m em ber -- severa l m em bers , we  a re  over 

100 people . 

Q Okay.  So  in  addition  to  you , there  a re  various  o ther 

anes thes io logis ts  tha t could  a lso  be  provid ing  se rvices  to  Dr. Brill? 

A Correct. 

Q Now, I want to  a lso  be  clear.  You  a ren ' t here  to  g ive  an  

opin ion  about m alp ractice  today.  You are  jus t here  to  d iscuss  your part 

in  the  hys te roscopy tha t was  perfo rm ed on  Ms. Taylo r on  April 26th , 

2017, and  what you  rem em ber about tha t, correct? 

A Yes . 

Q How did  you  com e to  trea t Ms. Taylor?  How were  you  -- how 

was  it tha t you  becam e involved  in  tha t surgery? 

A Dr. -- Ms . Taylo r was  schedu led  through probab ly Dr. Brill' s  

o ffice  to  m y office , and  they jus t a ss igned  m e the  case .  So  I have  no  

prior -- I have  not p riorly [s ic] m et -- p revious ly m et Ms . Taylor. 

Q Okay.  And d id  you  m eet Ms. Taylor before  the  surgery? 

A Yes , in  the  preop  a rea . 

Q Okay.  You d id  ta lk to  her? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Could  you  describe  what you  unders tand  -- what you  

unders tood  your ro le  to  be  in  the  hys te roscopy tha t was  a ttem pted  on  

Ms. Taylor on  April 26th , 2017? 

A I was  the re  to  provide  anes thes ia  for the  procedure  

described . 

Q And could  you  describe  to  the  exten t o f the  anes thes ia  you  
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thought you  had  to  provide?  Was  it -- was  she  supposed  to  be  in tuba ted  

or? 

A The  procedure  is  cons idered  a  m inor procedure .  Therefore , 

we  provide  genera l anes thes ia .  There ' s  severa l leve ls  o f anes thes ia .  In  

tha t particu la r case , as  an  ou tpa tien t m inor procedure  we  firs t s ta rt 

genera l anes thes ia  with  a  la ryngea l m ask a irway which  is  a  p ro tection  to  

the  a irway, bu t it is  no t a  fu ll in tuba tion , we  don ' t go  to  the  voca l co rds .  

It' s  jus t a  m ore  gentle  leve l anes thes ia  which  is  p roper for tha t 

p rocedure . 

Q And are  you  in  the  OR, the  opera ting  room , the  whole  tim e  

the  procedure  is  go ing  on? 

A Yes . 

Q I know you 've  your records  previous ly in  th is  ca se .  Did  you  

records  docum ent anywhere  tha t you  were  in form ed o f any kind  of 

com plica tion  with  the  procedure? 

A I don ' t reca ll be ing  inform ed of it, and  therefore  is  no t -- I do  

no t chart anyth ing . 

Q If you  were  in form ed of a  com plica tion , do  you  be lieve  you  

would  have  noted  it som ewhere? 

A Not necessarily, because  m y anes thes ia  records  perta ins  to  

anes thes ia  on ly.  I on ly have  to  chart and  docum ent anes the tic 

com plica tions , no t surg ica l com plica tions . 

Q Okay.  But like  if a  pa tien t d ies , tha t would  be  cons idered  a  

com plica tion .  You would  note  tha t som ewhere , correct?  Even  if there  

was  no  p lace? 
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A Yes , I can  m ake  an  addendum  to  the  -- to  the  anes thes ia  

record , and  I would  provide  furthe r -- yeah , no tes . 

Q So  you  have  the  ab ility to  m ake  an  addendum ? 

A I could . 

Q To add  com plica tions , correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay.  And if som eth ing  like , if you  have  been  inform ed tha t 

Ms. Taylor's  bowel had  been  perfora ted , would  you  have  probably 

added  an  addendum ? 

A No, no t necessarily. 

Q You wouldn ' t have  added  anyth ing  to  your chart? 

A It' s  no t part o f m y anes the tic -- anes thes ia  reco rd .  It' s  no t 

part o f m y job  to  docum ent tha t.  There 's  o ther people s  in  the  OR tha t 

would  do  tha t. 

Q Is  it Dr. Brill' s  job  to  do  tha t as  the  doctor? 

A It' s  p robably the  circu la ting  nurse  to  m ake  the  no tes  to  

upda te  the  com plica tions  and  change  in  procedures . 

Q How would  the  circu la ting  nurse  even  find  out tha t tha t 

occurred? 

A I would  -- I would  th ink by com m unica tion  from  -- d irectly 

from  Dr. Brill. 

Q Okay.  The  doctor would  have  to  te ll her o r h im , correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And your tes tim ony today is  you  don ' t reca ll ever be ing  to ld  

of any com plica tion  by Dr. Brill, correct? 
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A I jus t don ' t rem em ber. 

Q Okay.  When d id  you  firs t becom e aware  tha t Ms . Taylor's  

u te rus  had  been  pe rfora ted  during  the  hys te roscopy? 

A Three  years  la te r, when  I was  contacted  to  provide  witness  

tes tim ony. 

Q In  th is  m atte r? 

A Correct. 

Q When d id  you  firs t becom e aware  tha t Ms. Taylor's  bowel 

had  been  perfora ted  and  tha t was  -- tha t resu lted  in  an  additiona l surgery 

tha t she  had  to  rece ive , bas ica lly, with in  48 hours  of the  April 26th , 2017, 

surgery? 

A It was , aga in , when  I rece ive  the  tes t -- I had  -- I was  

sum m oned to  do  the  tes tim ony, th ree  years  la te r. 

Q Okay.  And when you  say the  tes tim ony, you 're  ta lking  about 

the  depos ition  you  gave  previous ly in  th is  m atte r? 

A Yes , correct.  I had  no  contact with  her for the  en tire  tim e . 

Q Okay.  But you  had  contact w ith  Mr. Brill, correct? 

A J us t work re la ted . 

Q Okay.  But the  firs t tim e  you  reca ll find ing  out about the  

u te rine  perfora tion  and  the  bowel perfora tion  was  th ree  years  la te r, 

when  you  were  con tacted  to  g ive  tes tim ony on  th is  ca se .  And I want to  

be  clear, the  tes tim ony you  had  g iven  previous ly in  th is  ca se  was  no t like  

th is , correct?  You were  in  the  office , and  you  answered  som e ques tions  

while  a  court reporte r wrote  down your responses , righ t? 

A Correct. 
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Q Now, you 're  part o f a  team  when you  perform  anes thes ia  in  a  

procedure  like  a  hys te roscopy, co rrect? 

A Of the  su rg ica l team , correct. 

Q And you  would  agree  tha t Dr. Brill was  a lso  pa rt o f tha t team , 

correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Do you  th ink it' s  im portan t fo r team  m em bers  to  work 

toge ther and  com m unica te? 

A Yes . 

Q Do you  th ink it' s  im portan t to  share  in form ation  with  your 

team  m em bers  in  tha t kind  of a  se tting? 

A Yes . 

Q And to  be  clea r, in  the  opera ting  room , in  the  OR, you  a re  the  

anes thes io logis t in  your ro le  in  the  hys te roscopy, righ t? 

A Yes . 

Q Do you  take  the  lead  in  the  surgery? 

A No.  I'm  only respons ib le  fo r the  anes the tic portion  of it. 

Q Okay.  So  if there  is  a  perfora tion  to  the  u te rus , and  the re  is  a  

need  to  explore  tha t further, do  you  ge t to  m ake  tha t ca ll o r does  

som eone  e lse  m ake  tha t decis ion? 

A That's  no t part o f m y scope  of practice .  I on ly perta in  to  

anes thes ia .  The  -- the  surg ica l portion  is  the  surgeon 's  ca ll. 

Q Okay.  Thank you .   

So  fa ir to  say you  would  not have  had  au thority in  tha t opera ting  

room , if you  had  been  inform ed of a  tear o r pe rfora tion , to  do  any kind  of 
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explora tion  on  tha t yourse lf, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And frankly, I'm  not trying  to  nega te  your qua lifica tions  or 

experience , bu t your expertise  is  no t even  in  tha t a rea , correct? 

A Correct.  My expertise  is  in  anes thes ia . 

Q Now, you  do  g ive  pos top  orders  fo r m edica tion  tha t's  to  be  

adm inis te red  in  the  PACU, the  recovery unit tha t the  pa tien t goes  in to  

a fte r a  surgery, correct? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And d id  you  do  tha t in  th is  in s tance? 

A Yes . 

Q And would  you  agree  tha t to  properly do  tha t job , it would  

he lp  to  know if there  was  any com plica tions  with  the  su rge ry? 

A Yes . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Thank you .  The  Court's  indu lgence  for 

jus t a  m om ent.  Thank you  very m uch, Doctor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  Cross -exam ina tion? 

MS. HALL:  Thank you , Your Honor. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q Good m orning , Dr. Yeh .  I don ' t know if you  can  recognize  

m e because  m os t o f m y face  is  covered .  And if you  rem em ber, when  we 

took your depos ition  about a  yea r ago , we  d id  it by Zoom .  So  we  were  

ab le  to  have  our m asks  off because  we  weren ' t in  the  sam e  room .  J us t 

in  case  you  don ' t recognize  m e, m y nam e is  Heather Hall.  I represent Dr. 
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Brill and  Wom en 's  Hea lth  Associa tes  in  th is  ca se .  And I have  som e 

ques tions  for you , and  I am  going  to  jum p around jus t a  b it s ince  I go  

second.  I want to  s ta rt with , firs t and  fo rem ost, Dr. Yeh , do  you  have  a  

reco llection  of th is  pa tien t? 

A No. 

Q Would  you  agree  tha t your m em ory of the  care  tha t you  

provided , tha t occu rred  over four years  ago , is  en tire ly based  on  the  

records  tha t you  m ade  a t tha t tim e? 

A Correct. 

Q And in  fact, when  we took your depos ition , and  I th ink the  

da te  of your depos ition  was  October the  28th , o f 2020, does  tha t sound 

righ t to  you? 

A I be lieve  so . 

Q When we took your depos ition , do  you  reca ll be ing  a sked  if 

you  had  any m em ory of any conversa tions  with  Dr. Brill about th is  

pa tien t? 

A Yeah .  We d id  no t have  any conversa tions  rega rd ing  th is  

pa tien t. 

MS. HALL:  Well, and  I unders tand  your depos ition  was  a  

while  ago , so  le t m e  jus t show you  your depos ition  te s tim ony.  Your 

Honor, a t th is  tim e , I would  m ove  to  publish  the  depos ition  of Dr. Yeh . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Your Honor, can  we  approach  for a  

second? 

THE COURT:  Sure . 

[S idebar a t 9:06 a .m ., ending  a t 9:08 a .m ., no t transcribed ] 
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MS. HALL:  Thank you .  Your Honor, m ay I app roach  the  

witness? 

THE COURT:  Yes . 

MS. HALL:  Dr. Yeh , I am  jus t go ing  to  show you, if you  look 

here  on  th is  page , you  see  there  is  a  page  num ber up  here  and  then  the  

s ide  is  num bered .  So  we 're  go ing  to  s ta rt on  page  20. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  What page  a re  we  s ta rting  on? 

MS. HALL:  Page  20.  Actua lly, I'm  sorry.  May I approach  

aga in , Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Yes . 

MS. HALL:  Beginning  a t page  32.  It' s  th is  page . 

THE WITNESS:  Okay. 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q And Dr. Yeh , your m em ory of your depos ition  tha t occurred  

over a  year ago , is  tha t fresh  in  your m ind? 

A Yes . 

Q And I unders tand  tha t when  we took your depos ition  in  

October of las t year, you  were  asked , if you  look a t page  32 of your 

depos ition , line  11. 

A Okay. 

Q And you  were  asked  -- you  were  asked ,  

"Q Do you  reca ll having  any conversa tions , even  a t tha t tim e , 

with  Dr. Brill regard ing  th is  p rocedure?"   

And what was  your answer? 

A "No, I don ' t." 
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Q And is  it your tes tim ony, Dr. Yeh , tha t no  conve rsa tions  

occurred  or tha t you  s im ply do  not reca ll one  way or another? 

A I jus t don ' t reca ll. 

Q Okay.  You can  se t tha t to  the  s ide , Dr. Yeh .   

Now, you  were  asked  jus t a  b it about your anes thes ia  reco rd .  And 

for those  m em bers  of the  ju ry who aren ' t fam ilia r with  anes thes io logis ts  

and  inform ation  tha t they docum en t, can  you  expla in  what you  as  an  

anes thes io logis t a re  concerned  with  in  te rm s  of your docum enta tion  of 

care? 

A At tha t particu la r hosp ita l, we  do  e lectron ic m ed ica l 

record ing .  So  we  have  a  tem pla te .  It g ives  -- so  a llows  and  he lps  us  

keep  track of a ll o f the  vita l s igns .  It goes  d irectly, it' s  fed  from  the  

m achine , and  it will pu t the  pa tien t' s  vita l s igns  in to  the  record .  So  tha t 

the  im portan t th ing  for m e, obvious ly, is  to  have  the  p rope r d iagnos is  

and  jus tified  to  see  tha t it was  done , and  a lso  ju s tify the  leve l o f 

anes thes ia  tha t the  pa tien t required .  During  the  procedure , I m ake  sure  

the  pa tien t is  s tab le  and  com fortab le  and  sa fe  during  the  dura tion  of the  

procedure  to  the  leve l o f anes thes ia  tha t's  requ ired  for the  particu la r 

p rocedure . 

Q And Dr. Yeh , a s  the  anes thes io logis t, in  your anes thes ia  

record , a re  you  concerned  with  docum enting  the  applica tion  of the  

anes the tic agents  tha t you  use? 

A Yes . 

Q Are  you  a lso  concerned  with  docum enting  any com plica tions  

from  applica tion  of tha t anes the tic agent o r agents? 
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A Like  I s a id  before , in  the  tem pla te , it actua lly does  no t -- it 

doesn ' t have  a  p lace  for m e to  docum ent.  It' s  no t part o f m y dutie s  to  

docum ent the  p rocedure 's  com plica tions , like  I sa id .  There 's  another 

team , pa rt o f the  team , the  circu la ting  nurse , tha t wou ld  p robably 

docum ent tha t part.  I am  en tire ly there  -- en tire ly the re  for the  

anes thes ia  po rtion .  So  if the re  is  a  com plica tion  re la ted  to  anes thes ia  or 

I have  to  change  som eth ing  in  anes the tic approach  due  to  po ten tia l 

com plica tions  o r esca la tion  of care , then  I will m ake  a  no ta tion  to  jus tify 

why I have  to  increase  the  leve l o f anes thes ia  p rovided .  Otherwise , yes . 

Q But gene ra lly speaking , Dr. Yeh , if a  pa tien t experiences  a  

surg ica l com plica tion  tha t has  no  im pact on  the  anes the tic agents  you  

used , would  tha t typ ica lly be  conta ined  in  your docum enta tion? 

A No. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  I am  jus t go ing  to  ob ject.  It goes  beyond 

the  witness 's  s cope  and  wha t he  is  supposed  to  be  tes tifying  to . 

THE COURT:  Overru led . 

MS. HALL:  Thank you , Your Honor. 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q In  te rm s  of the  surgeon  though, is  it your expecta tion  tha t the  

surgeon  would  docum ent any surg ica l com plica tion  the  pa tien t 

experiences? 

A Yes . 

Q And I want to  show you -- do  you  s till have  the  -- and  I'm  

sorry, Dr. Yeh , you  -- I th ink you  answered  th is  when  Ms. Albertson  was  

asking  ques tions  of you .  But jus t so  everyth ing  is  clear, you  have  never 
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p racticed  as  a  surgeon , correct? 

A Correct. 

Q You 've  never he ld  surg ica l p rivileges  a t any hospita l here  in  

the  com m unity? 

A Correct. 

Q And you  would  defer to  a  surgeon  as  to  the  bes t way to  

respond or trea t a  surg ica l com plica tion? 

A Correct. 

Q Do you  s till have  the  -- I th ink you  m aybe  were  shown the  

b illing  invoice  --  

A Yes . 

Q -- for your office .  Did  you  have  tha t in  the  b inde r behind  

you? 

MS. HALL:  Is  it okay if I app roach , Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Yes . 

MS. HALL:  It' s  go ing  to  be  in  b inde r -- if you  look, Dr. Yeh , 

on  those  sp ines , there 's  a  b inder 4.  To  your righ t, s ir.  Right there , yeah .  

And if you  look on  the  s ide , there  a re  tabs .  So  I'd  ask you  to  tu rn  to  tab  

63.  And  jus t le t m e  know, Dr. Yeh , when  you  ge t there . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  It' s  the  Bates  a t the  bo ttom  of the  page .  

MS. HALL:  It' s  jo in t p roposed  63 tha t you  went over with  Dr. 

Yeh . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Tha t's  the  sam e page .  Okay.  I ju s t 

wanted  to  m ake  sure . 

MS. HALL:  There 's  two pages  tha t I am  going  to  re fe r to . 
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MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.   

THE WITNESS:  Yes , it' s  here . 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q Okay.  And you 've  go t tha t in  fron t o f you , Dr. Yeh? 

A Yes , I do . 

Q Now, you  were  asked  about the  charges  for th is  b ill, and  you  

to ld  us  tha t the  charges  were  1,162, co rrect? 

A Correct. 

Q Does  th is  invoice  a lso  re flect tha t --  

MS. ALBERTSON:  Your Honor, I am  jus t go ing  to  ob ject.  

Can  we approach  --  

THE COURT:  Counse l approach . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  -- rea lly qu ickly? 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

[S idebar a t 9:15 a .m ., ending  a t 9:17 a .m ., no t transcribed ] 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q Okay, Dr. Yeh , you  have  proposed  Exhib it 63 in  fron t o f you , 

correct?  And th is  is  the  invo ice  for the  anes thes ia  se rvices  tha t you  

provided  for Ms. Taylor; is  tha t correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And a  m om ent ago  when counse l was  asking  you  ques tions , 

you  were  asked  about the  am ount charged .  And you  tes tified  tha t as  

re flected  in  th is  invoice , the  am ount charged  was  $1,162, correct?  

A Correct. 

Q And Dr. Yeh , you  a re  fam ilia r tha t when  a  pa tien t has  
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insurance , tha t there  a re  what's  ca lled  write -offs  o r contractua l write -

offs?  

A Correct.  

Q And th is  invoice , does  it re flect tha t Ms. Taylor had  

insurance? 

A Invoices , yes .  

MR. BREEDEN:  Objection  th is  is  exactly what we  d idn ' t -- we  

jus t ta lked  about th is  and  the re  was  no t es tab lishm ent for th is . 

THE COURT:  Counse l approach .  

[S idebar a t 9:18: a .m ., ending  a t 9:21 a .m ., no t transcribed ] 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q Okay.  Dr. Yeh  -- 

A  Hi. 

Q --  you  s till have  tha t invoice  in  fron t o f you? 

A Yes , I do . 

Q And what is  the  -- so  the  invoice , does  it re flect tha t Ms. 

Taylor had  insurance? 

A Yes , she  does . 

Q And what is  the  insurance  tha t is  lis ted  for Ms. Taylor? 

A It' s  Aetna  US Healthcare . 

Q And does  th is  invoice  a lso  re flect tha t there  was  an  am oun t 

pa id  by Aetna  US Healthcare  Insu rance? 

A I be lieve  so . 

Q And if you  can  look across  from  -- you  see  the  le ft hand  

co lum n tha t says  the  da te  of the  paym ent 7/20/2017? 
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A Yes . 

Q And then  you  see  the  re fe rence  num ber from  Aetna  US 

Healthcare  and  wha t is  the  am ount tha t was  pa id  by Aetna? 

A I be lieve  -- is  it the  $655.70? 

Q Sir, and  if you  want to  fo llow tha t acros s  from  the  da te  of 

7/20  to  the  descrip tion , the  am ount lis ted  is  $655.70; true? 

A Correct. 

Q And there  is  a lso  -- undernea th  tha t, there  is  a  da te  for the  

contractua l write -off.  And can  you  expla in  to  the  ju ry what your 

unders tanding  of the  te rm  contractua l write -off is? 

A This  is  the  ind ividua l contracts  we  have  with  d iffe ren t 

insurance  com panies  where  we  have  a  d iscounted  ra te . 

Q And Dr. Yeh , fo r those  of us  who don ' t, you  know, dea l with  

those  te rm s  every day, does  d iscounted  ra te , does  tha t m ean  tha t the  

insurance  com pany does  no t pay tha t am ount? 

A Correct. 

Q Does  tha t a lso  m ean  tha t the  pa tien t does  no t p ay tha t 

am ount? 

A Correct. 

Q And what is  the  am ount of the  contractua l write -off lis ted  on  

th is  invoice? 

A It' s  $506.30. 

Q And does  th is  invoice  a lso  re flect what was  the  respons ib ility 

of the  pa tien t, in  te rm s  of the  am ount o f the  b ill? 

A It does .  
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Q And what is  tha t am ount Dr. Yeh? 

A It to ta ls  to  the  am ount of $0 ba lance  to  the  pa tien t. 

Q All righ t.  Thank you , Dr. Yeh .   

Now you  have  perform ed a  hys te roscopy-- p rior to  April 26, 2017, 

had  you  perform ed hys te roscopie s  -- le t m e  be  a  little  cleare r on  m y 

ques tion .  Had  you  acted  as  the  anes thes io logis t fo r a  hys te roscopy 

procedure  with  Dr. Bill p rior to  April 26th , 2017? 

A Absolu te ly I d id . 

Q Would  you  say tha t' s  a  com m on procedure  tha t you  had  

done  with  Dr. Brill before  tha t da te? 

A I agree .  

Q In  genera l, would  you  agree  tha t a  hys te roscopy can  take  

anywhere  from  15 m inutes  up  to  over an  hour? 

A Correct. 

Q That wou ld  be  a  no rm al tim e  you  would  expect? 

A Correct.  

Q And in  genera l, how long  would  you  expect a  pa tien t to  be  in  

the  PACU, or recovery a rea  a fte r a  p rocedure  like  th is? 

A Out-pa tien t bas is , we  usua lly expect anyth ing  be tween  45 

m inutes  to  an  hour. 

Q Is  it a lso  com m on for a  pa tien t to  expe rience  nausea  in  the  

recovery a rea  a fte r having  had  anes thes ia? 

A Very com m on.  

MS. HALL:  Court's  indulgence , Your Honor. 

[Counse l confe r] 
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MS. HALL:  So rry, Your Honor. 

BY MS. HALL:   

Q I want to  show you Dr. Yeh , th is  is  -- it' s  been  previous ly 

adm itted  as  Exhib it 5.  J o in t Exhib it 5, and  th is  is  page  42.  There  we  go .  

And th is  is  p revious ly adm itted  Exhib it 5, and  it' s  page  42 o f tha t exhib it, 

and  I' ll represent to  you  if you  want to  look a t the  top  of th is  page , Dr. 

Yeh , th is  is  Dr. Brill' s  --  

MR. BREEDEN:  Objection .  Can  we approach?  

THE COURT:  Sure .  

[S idebar a t 9:26 a .m ., ending  a t 9:27 a .m ., no t transcribed ] 

MS. HALL:  Thank you , Dr. Yeh .  Those  a re  a ll m y ques tions .  

Pass  the  witness , Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Thank you .  Any red irect? 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Yeah , super qu ick.  

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALBERTSON:   

Q You do  not work for Aetna , correct, s ir? 

A No, I don ' t work for Aetna . 

Q Okay.  And do  you  know how Aetna  es tab lishes  the  ra te  they 

will o r won ' t pay on  a  pa tien t? 

A No, I don ' t.  

Q Okay.  Do you  know how Aetna  es tab lishes  the  ra te  a  pa tien t 

pays  in  any kind  of contract? 

A No, I don ' t. 

Q Okay.   So  fa ir to  say you  don ' t know how these  contractua l 
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ra tes  tha t you  jus t d iscussed  were  es tab lished , o r even  what exactly m y 

clien t was  and  was  not required  to  pay, correct? 

A I don ' t do  the  b illing , so  I don ' t -- I don ' t know.   

Q So  you  would  p robably no t be  the  bes t person  to  ask abou t 

these  Aetna  line  item s  on  th is  docum ent, correct? 

A Correct.  

Q Som ebody a t Aetna  would  know m uch m ore  than  you , 

correct? 

A Correct. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  Thank you , very m uch.    

THE COURT:  Any recross? 

MS. HALL:  No th ing  further, Your Honor.  Thank you .   

THE COURT:  Thank you .  Any ques tions  from  our ju rors .  No 

ques tions .  All righ t.  Then , Dr. Yeh , thank you  so  m uch .  You m ay be  

excused .  

THE WITNESS:  Thank you .   

MR. BREEDEN:  Your Honor, m ay we have  a  ten  m inute  

break and  then  we ' ll ca ll the  next witness .  

THE COURT:  Okay.  All righ t.  Lad ies  and  gentlem en we 're  

go ing  to  take  a  ten  m inute  break.   

During  the  break, you 're  ins tructed  not to  ta lk with  each  o ther 

or anyone  e lse  about any subject o r is sue  connected  to  th is  tria l.  You 're  

no t to  read , write , o r watch  o r lis ten  to  any report o r com m entary on  the  

tria l by any person  connected  with  th is  case  by any m edium  of 

in form ation , including  withou t lim ita tion  newspapers , te levis ion , 
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in te rne t, o r rad io .   

You 're  no t to  conduct any research  on  your own  re la ted  to  

th is  case , such  as  consulting  a  d ictiona ry, us ing  the  in te rne t, o r re fe rence  

m ateria ls , tes t any theory of the  case , repea t any aspect o f the  case  or in  

any o the r way inves tiga te   o r lea rn  about the  case  on  your own.  You 're  

no t to  ta lk with  o the rs , text o thers , twee t o thers , Google  is sues , o r lea rn  

about any o the r is sue , party, witness , o r a tto rney involved  in  th is  case .  

You 're  no t to  fo rm  or express  any opin ion  on  any subject connected  to  

th is  tria l un til the  ca se  is  fina lly subm itted  to  you .   

I' ll see  you  in  ten  m inutes .  

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry.  

[J ury ou t a t 9:30 a .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  J u ry's  cleared  the  courtroom , Your Honor. 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  We 're  ou ts ide  the  presence  of the  

ju ry.  Any issues  -- o r do  you  want to  pu t the  ob jections  on  the  reco rd  or 

take  a  b reak firs t and  then  com e back? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Pla in tiffs  would  like  to  pu t a  couple  of th ings  

on  the  record .  

THE COURT:  Okay, go  ahead .  

MR. BREEDEN:  So  regard ing  the  ob jections , I th ink the  

prim ary d isputed  objections  tha t occurred  during  s idebar were  regard ing  

co lla te ra l source  is sues .  Im proper in troduction  in to  evidence  of 

co lla te ra l sources  is , o f course , per se  revers ib le  e rror.  I thought tha t th is  

was  well d iscussed  in  som e pre tria l m o tions .  Firs t o f a ll, we  don ' t th ink 
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under the  applicab le  s ta tu te , and  the  circum stances  of th is  case , they can  

in troduce  evidence  of the  insurance  paym ents  a t a ll.  But it' s  very clear in  

m y assessm en t, tha t they can ' t in troduce  evidence  of write -offs .  Write -

offs  a re  d iffe ren t from  the  insurance  paym ents .  Tha t com es  d irectly ou t 

o f the  Khoury case .  And I cons ider tha t, per se  reve rs ib le  e rror.    

THE COURT:  Okay.  And I p revious ly ru led  in  the  m otion  in  

lim ine  tha t it' s  a  m edica l m a lpractice  exception , it' s  a  benefit to  the  

pa tien t.  And I ru led  tha t it can  com e in , so  your contem poraneous  

ob jection  is  no ted .  Anyth ing  furthe r.  

MS. ALBERTSON:  I have  a  second poin t on  tha t about the  

foundationa l p roblem s with  th is  witnes s  offe ring  th is  tes tim ony.  I'm  

sorry if it bo the rs  you  tha t I'm  not po in ting .  I'm  jus t do ing  it fo r m y 

thoughts .  

THE COURT:  No, tha t's  fine . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  This  witness  was  clearly no t -- no t even  

qua lified  to  offe r the  op in ions  about the  write -o ffs .  He  clearly d idn ' t have  

knowledge  about how they were  es tab lished  or even  who es tab lished  

them  or what gu ide line .  Ve ry d iffe ren t o ffe ring  an  opin ion  about h is  own 

b illing , where  he  sa id  what tha t was   based  on . 

However, as  I d iscussed  a t the  bench , I'm  not even  sure  th is  

witness  was  the  bes t person  to  ta lk about h is  b illing ; however, because  

of the  previous  ru lings  in  th is  case , I asked  h im  about h is  b illing , because  

I go t the  im pres s ion , Your Honor, tha t you  wanted  tha t com ing  from  a  

provider.  And he  a t leas t knew the  gu ide lines  tha t were  used  to  com e up  

with  h is  b illing  am ounts .    
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THE COURT:  Okay.  And then  I the  -- well, I' ll le t you  ta lk, and  

then  I' ll go . 

MS. HALL:  Okay.  J us t rea lly brie fly, Your Honor.  The  

Pla in tiff opened  the  door on  d irect exam  by asking  Dr. Yeh  about the  

b illing  invoice  and  the  charges .  And when he  tried  to  continue  

com m enting  on  the  res t o f the  invoice , he  was  p revented  from  doing  tha t 

which , you  know, it' s  the ir d irect exam , they can  certa in ly do  whatever 

they choose  to  do .  But I th ink it' s  fa ir gam e for m e on  cros s -exam , once  

they've  opened  the  door on  d irect, to  bring  tha t ou t.  Fo r m e to  ask h im  

ques tions , especia lly a fte r having  es tab lished  the  foundation  tha t he  is  

fam ilia r with  in surance , contractua l write -offs , paym ents  by the  

insurance  com pany, the  pa tien t's  respons ib ility .   

So  I th ink tha t the  ques tions  tha t I asked  on  cros s  were  in  

d irect re sponse  to  what he  answered  on  the  d irect exam  of Pla in tiff.  

THE COURT:  Ms. Albertson . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Yeah .  Okay.  I agree  tha t she  has  a  righ t -- 

well, be s ides  the  co lla te ra l source  is sues , obvious ly, the  righ t to  ask 

those  ques tions .  However, th is  is  no t the  righ t witnes s  to  ask those  

ques tions  of.  Tha t' s  the  problem  righ t there .  Okay.  You need  a  witness  

tha t actua lly knows about th is .  He  has  no  persona l knowledge  of th is .  

He  probably has  never even  seen  th is  b ill before , frankly, before  it was  

pu t in  fron t o f  h im .  But he  has  pe rsona l knowledge  of h is  -- what he  d id  

-- what he  d id  fo r Ms. Taylo r in  tha t surgery.  And what tha t roughly 

would  cos t, based  on  how he  knows  tha t h is  se rvices  a re  b illed .  Tha t's  

very d iffe ren t.  He  doesn ' t know about reductions .  He  doesn ' t know 
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what kind  of reductions  occur.  He  doesn ' t know who pays  what in  those  

reductions .  If you  look a t those  write -o ffs , tha t's  a  d ivis ion  be tween  the  

pa tien t and  the  insu rance  com pany, and  how it' s  a ll go ing  to  break 

down.  Those  a re  negotia ted  am ounts  and  there 's  a ll kinds  of 

in form ation  tha t goes  in to  them  tha t he  has  no  knowledge  of it a t a ll. 

So  I agree  if Ms . Ha ll wants  to  ask ques tions  about tha t, and  

you 're  ru ling  is  tha t co lla te ra l sou rce  in form ation  com es  in , obvious ly 

she  would  have  a  righ t to  ask ques tions  about it.  She  wou ld  need  a  

witness  there  tha t actua lly knew about it.  And tha t's  the  problem .  J us t 

because  som e th ing  can  be  asked  about, jus t because  you  ru le  tha t it' s  

okay for it to  com e in  as  evidence , doesn ' t m ean  tha t you  can  jus t 

random ly bring  it in  with  the  wrong witness . 

It' s  the  sam e p roblem  tha t we  were  having  a  m om ent ago , 

which  we 're  go ing  to  d iscuss  next, where  you  can ' t ju s t th row som ebody 

e lse 's  record  up  and  say isn ' t th is  what you  sa id .  Or look a t th is , doesn ' t 

th is  im peach  you .  You can ' t do  tha t.  J us t because  you  sa id  som eth ing  

is  in , you  can ' t jus t th row anyth ing  up  there  and  hope  tha t th is  witness  

can  ge t it in .  This  is  no t the  righ t witness  for th is  in form ation . 

THE COURT:  All righ t.  And I th ink the  rea l is sue  is  you  guys  

keep  doing  s tuff and  then  you  wan t them  to  be  p recluded  from  doing  the  

sam e exact th ing .   Under ju s t the  bas ic evidence , ru le  of com ple teness , 

you  brought tha t docum ent up , and  it' s  m is lead ing  to  the  ju ry to  jus t g ive  

one  portion  of the  docum ent and  ta lk about the  am ount, when  the  

witness  was  clearly trying  to  answer on  d irect, and  you  cu t h im  off when  

he  was  trying  to  continue  with  the  res t o f what you  asked  h im  to  look a t. 
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So  under the  ru le  of com ple teness  and  cross -exam ina tion , I 

th ink it was  fa ir gam e.  And  tha t's  why I sus ta ined  it.  

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  I cu t h im  off because  he  was  go ing  

beyond what m y ques tion  was .  My ques tion  was  how m uch d id  you  b ill.  

Not how m uch d id  m y clien t have  to  pay.  Not what was  the  even tua l 

write -off.  It was  how m uch was  -- d id  you  b ill fo r your se rvices? 

THE COURT:  I unders tand .  He  was  s till trying  to  answer the  

ques tion  the  way tha t he  unders tood  the  ques tion  to  be , and  you  cu t h im  

off. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  Anyth ing  furthe r? 

MS. HALL:  No .  

THE COURT:  As  to  the  next is sue? 

MS. ALBERTSON:  You want to  ta lk about the  next ob jection  I 

m ade? 

THE COURT:  Yes . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  I don ' t know exactly which  one  was  next.  

But I d id  m ake  an  objection  to  the  certa in  record  be ing  shown.  

THE COURT:  It was  Exhib it 5.  

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  Exhib it 5.  Th is  is  the  th ird  tim e  th is  

has  happened  in  th is  case , where  the  Defense  m ade  e fforts  to  im peach  a  

witness  on  the  s tand , with  som eone  e lse 's  s ta tem ent.   And in te res ting ly 

enough, it' s  been  the ir clien t's  s ta tem ent and  the ir clien t's  records .  You 

cannot do  tha t.  I ag ree  tha t som e of th is  s tuff can  com e in , bu t no t with  

tha t witness .  Okay.  You can ' t im peach  som ebody with  som eone  e lse 's  
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s ta tem ent.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  And I sus ta ined  the  ob jection .  But 

aga in , Pla in tiffs  d id  th is  as  well with  the  -- I can ' t rem em ber the  nam e.  

The  wonder -- the  o ther two nurses '  docum ents  with  a  d iffe ren t pe rson .  

You d id  the  sam e exact th ing .  And  whether or no t th is  happened  two or 

th ree  tim es , there  was  no  objection .  I don ' t reca ll it happen ing .  But if 

there 's  no t an  ob jection , I can ' t m ake  a  ru ling . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  I'm  not sure  exactly which  -- what 

you 're  re fe rring  to , bu t I' ll th ink about what you  sa id , because  I'm  sorry, I 

don ' t know exactly what ins tance  you 're  re fe rring  to . 

THE COURT:  When  we had  Nurse  Hutch ins  up  here . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  And it was  clear tha t the  docum ent was  s igned  

by two o ther nu rses , tha t were  no t h im , you  ques tioned  h im  on  the  

en tire  docum ent.  So  what I'm  saying  is  you  keep  doing  s tu ff, and  then  

you  want them  to  be  precluded  from  doing  the  sam e th ing .   

MS. ALBERTSON:  Well, okay, they have  a  righ t to  ob ject to  

anyth ing  we  do  tha t's  im proper. 

THE COURT:  Both  of you  guys  do . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  And tha t' s  what m y job  is  to  do , is  to  

ob ject to  what they' re  do ing  tha t's  im proper when  they're  do ing  it.  You 

know, so  I' ll th ink about what you 're  saying .  I don ' t rem em ber the  exact 

ins tance .  But like  I sa id  I' ll th ink about it.  But it' s  no t m y job  to  m ake  

the ir ob jections .  It' s  m y job  to  m ake  the  ob jections  on  our s ide  of th is  

case .  You know, and  I unders tand  if you 're  saying  -- 
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THE COURT:  I agree . 

MS. ALBERTSON:  -- tha t like  som ebody e lse  d id  th is  o r tha t, 

bu t like  tha t's  jus t no t how it works .  The  response  is , well, then  they 

need  to  ob ject.  You  know, th is  happens  a ll the  tim e  in  tria ls .  It' s  

happened  to  m e when I've  been  on  both  s ides  o f it.  And what judges  

have  sa id  in  the  pas t is , well, then  you  need  to  ob ject.  You  know, and  

tha t's  what it is .  And frankly, Your Honor, it' s  the irs  to  bring  tha t up , no t 

yours  to  bring  it up , if they th ink tha t's  an  is sue  tha t's  happening  in  th is  

case .  Otherwise  you  run  the  risk of po ten tia lly advoca ting  for them .   

And --  

THE COURT:  I don ' t th ink I'm  advoca ting  for anybody.  

MS. ALBERTSON:  Okay.  Well, I m ean , I have  a  du ty to  m y 

clien t and  tha t' s  what I'm  trying  to  -- tha t's  what I'm  trying  to  do . 

THE COURT:  Unders tood .  And I'm  ru ling  on  the  ob jections .  

And like  I sa id , I sus ta ined  the  ob jection .   

MS. ALBERTSON:  Thank you , ve ry m uch.  I app recia te  it.  

THE COURT:  Anyth ing  furthe r on  tha t po in t? 

MS. ALBERTSON:  No, you  ru led  for m e, so  thank you . 

THE COURT:  Is  tha t -- is  there  another ob jection  tha t needs  

to  be  pu t on  the  record? 

MS. ALBERTSON:  I don ' t rem em ber if there  was  another 

one .  Hea ther, do  you  th ink I've  covered  a ll o f them ? 

MS. HALL:  I th ink there  were  two  rega rd ing  the  co lla te ra l 

source  is sue , bu t I th ink tha t what you 've  a rgued  has  addressed  bo th  of 

those  ob jections .  And then  the  las t ob jection  is  the  one  we  jus t 
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d iscussed . 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All righ t.   

MS. HALL:  I'm  sorry bu t ve ry qu ickly.  I have  pre tria l 

conference  in  Depa rtm ent 31, a t 10:15.  Could  I jus t find  ou t who the  next 

witness  is , to  decide  if it' s  go ing  to  be  m e or Mr. McBride  leaving  the  

courtroom ? 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. BREEDEN:  I'm  sorry, it' s  go ing  to  be  -- I thought you  

knew, it' s  go ing  to  be  Dr. Berke .   

MS. HALL:  Okay. 

MR. BREEDEN:  And then  a fte r Dr. Berke  will be  Ms. Taylo r.  

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MS. HALL:  Okay.  Thank you .  

THE COURT:  All righ t.  So  you  have  five  m inute s . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Five  m inute s  to  use  the  res troom s? 

THE COURT:  Yes .   

[Recess  from  9:39 a .m . to  9:45 a .m .] 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 

THE COURT:  We 're  back on  the  record  in  A-18773472-C, 

Taylor v. Brill.  Counse l for bo th  s ides  a re  pre sen t.  We 're  ou ts ide  the  

presence  of the  ju ry.  J us t log is tica lly, how m any m ore  witnesses  do  we 

have  be fore  -- I'm  trying  to  figure  ou t when  we 're  go ing  to  take  lunch .   

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  So  we  have  Pla in tiff' s  re ta ined  expe rt, 

Dr. Berke .  Boy, I don ' t know, I'm  probably go ing  to  go  two  hours  with  

h im , and  then  there 's  go ing  to  be  som e  cross .  Then  we ' ll s ta rt with  the  
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Pla in tiff, Ms . Taylor, a fte r tha t.  

THE COURT:  So  m aybe  we  should  do  a  lunch  a t 11:30, 

11:45?  

MR. BREEDEN:  Tha t m ight be  a  good  idea .  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Because  we ' re  go ing  to  need  -- we  have  

to  end  prom ptly a t 3 today, so .   

MR. BREEDEN:  Oh, we  do?  

THE COURT:  Yeah .  Tha t's  --  

MR. BREEDEN:  Oh, I d idn ' t rea lize  tha t.   

THE COURT:  -- tha t was  on  the  schedule .  Yeah .  I m entioned  

it yes te rday.  It' s  on  the  schedule  from  the  em ail I sen t two weeks  ago .  

MR. BREEDEN:  You know, I do  seem  to  rem em ber tha t now.   

THE COURT:  So  --  

MR. BREEDEN:  Well, we ' ll have  to  see  where  we  a re .  

THE COURT:  All righ ty.  Anyth ing  e lse  ou ts ide  the  pre sence?   

MR. MCBRIDE:  Not from  the  Defense , Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Everyone 's  he re , righ t?  

MS. ALBERTSON:  So  sorry, you  want to  do  an  early lunch , 

you  th ink? 

THE COURT:  Well, s ince  we 're  ending  a t 3, I kind  of wanted  

it to  be  like  som ewhere  in  be tween  so  we  don ' t have  to  take  --  

MS. ALBERTSON:  So  they' re  no t like  go ing  to  lunch  for -- 

and  then  com ing  back for ten  m inutes .  

THE COURT:  -- a  b reak and  then  com ing  back fo r ten  

m inutes .  Yeah .  So  it m ight be  during  --  
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MS. ALBERTSON:  So  when  exactly --  

THE COURT:  -- it m ight be  during  your d irect. Tha t's  the  on ly 

th ing . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  And if tha t happens , it' s  jus t 

unavoidable  and  you  know, we ' ll com e back tom orrow m orning  and  Ms. 

Taylor w ill fin ish  he r tes tim ony. 

THE COURT:  Because  I m ean , like  I sa id , I'd  like  to  take  a  

break about every 90 m inute s .  So  depending  on  where  we ' re  back when 

we s ta rt back up .  

MR. BREEDEN:  Okay. 

MS. ALBERTSON:  Did  we  te ll them  3:00 today?  

THE COURT:  Yeah .  I to ld  them  tha t yes te rday.  And then  

tom orrow, I have  10 to  5.  So  aga in , we ' ll do  a  la te r lunch  tom orrow.  All 

righ t.  Go  ahead  and  bring  them  in .  Thank you .   

MR. MCBRIDE:  And jus t for the  record , Your Honor, we  have  

our expert who is  -- and  it sounds  like  we 're  go ing  to  probably have  to  

take  h im  out of o rder tom orrow afte rnoon a t som e poin t, so .  Dr. 

McCarus .   

THE COURT:  Okay.  I th ink you  have  -- we  had  a lready -- 

there  was  --  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Yeah .  

THE COURT:  -- an  em ail exchange  about th is . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  Is  he  go ing  to  be  here  firs t th ing  in  the  

m orning  or is  he  go ing  to  be  ava ilab le  a ll day?  

MR. MCBRIDE:  He  could  be  ava ilab le  a ll day, I be lieve . 
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MR. BREEDEN:  Oh okay.  Good.  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Yeah . 

MR. BREEDEN:  So  it sounds  like  we  can  fin ish  up  with  Ms. 

Taylor, and  then  m aybe  go  to  Dr. McCarus .   

MR. MCBRIDE:  Well, yeah .  Tha t' s  -- tha t m akes  sense . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  Tim e perm itting  then , we  would  ca ll 

Dr. Brill a fte r tha t. 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Okay.  Gotcha .  Tenta tive ly.   

MR. BREEDEN:  Life  is  ten ta tive , is  it no t? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  It is .  It is .  All too  true .   

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry.   

[J ury in  a t 9:48 a .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  The  jury is  a ll p resen t, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  You m ay be  sea ted .  And we 're  

go ing  to  p roceed  with  the  Pla in tiff' s  case .  Pla in tiff, p lease  ca ll your next 

witness . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Your Honor Pla in tiff ca lls  Dr. David  Berke .  

THE MARSHAL:  Please  s tep  up .  Please  face  the  cle rk to  your 

le ft.  And  would  you  p lease  ra ise  your righ t hand?  

DAVID BERKE, PLAINTIFF'S  WITNESS, SWORN 

THE CLERK:  Thank you .  Please  be  sea ted .  Please  s ta te  and  

spe ll your nam e for the  reco rd . 

THE WITNESS:  Firs t nam e David , D-A-V-I-D, las t nam e Berke , 

B-E-R-K-E.   

DIRECT EXAMINATION 
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BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Doctor, before  we  begin , beh ind  you  there  a re  som e  exhib it 

books .  In  Volum e 4, there 's  an  Exhib it 36 with  som e o f your reports  in  it.  

Why don ' t you  open  it to  tha t exhib it in  case  you  need  to  re fe r du ring  

your tes tim ony.  So  it' s  Exhib it 36.  Doctor, what do  you  do  for a  living? 

A I'm  an  obs te trician  gynecologis t.   

Q Can you  expla in  to  the  ju ry what an  obs te trician  gynecologis t 

o r OBGYN doctor does? 

A So  OB/GYNs take  care  of wom en 's  hea lthcare  is sues  a ll 

th rough the ir spectrum  of life  from  b irth  contro l ea rly on  to  well wom an 

exam s for cervica l cancer and  breas t cancer screening .  We  m anage  

pregnancies , an tepartum  ca re  before  the  baby is  born , an d  care  of the  

baby a fte rwards  -- o r the  m other a fte r the  baby is  de livered .  And then  a ll 

sorts  o f gyneco logic is sues  tha t wom en m ay have , including  b irth  

contro l, perm anent s te riliza tion , any issues  with  heavy periods  or 

b leed ing  or pe lvic pa in . 

Q And so  what's  actua lly the  d iffe rence  be tween  an  obs te trician  

and  a  gynecologis t?  

A So  an  obs te trician  only dea ls  with  pregnant wom en. 

Q And so  a re  m os t p ractitione rs  in  th is  fie ld  a re  they both  -- a re  

they both  obs te trician  and  gyneco logis t, o r do  they choose  one  or the  

o ther? 

A Yeah .  The  m a jority of OB/GYN doctors  do  both  -- a  

com bina tion  of bo th .  

Q Where  d id  you  a ttend  undergradua te  school? 

X APPX001949



 

- 45 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

A In itia lly, I went to  San  Diego  S ta te  Univers ity and  got a  

bache lor's  in  p sychology.  And then  went to  George  Wash ington  and  got 

a  bache lor's  o f science  where  I d id  m y phys ician  ass is tan t tra in ing .  

Q And so  what years  were  tha t? 

A I went to  -- I g radua ted  San  Diego  S ta te  in  1992.  And  I 

g radua ted  George  Washington  Univers ity in  1994. 

Q Okay.  And you  m entioned  phys ician  a ss is tan t tra in ing  tha t 

you  had .  Expla in  to  the  ju ry what sort o f tra in ing  and  schooling  you  had  

for tha t. 

A So  tha t was  a  two-year prog ram  a t tha t tim e  a fte r co llege  

tha t I d id .  I then  becam e a  PA afte rwards . 

Q Okay.  How m any years  d id  you  p ractice  as  a  PA?   

A Approxim ate ly e igh t to  n ine .  Yeah . 

Q Okay.  What year o r a t what po in t in  your life  d id  you  go  back 

to  m edica l school? 

A In  2003. 

Q And what m edica l s chool d id  you  a ttend? 

A Western  Univers ity of Hea lth  Sciences . 

Q How m any years? 

A Medica l school is  four years .  

Q Okay.  And what year d id  you  gradua te  from  m edica l s chool? 

A 2007. 

Q And what degree  d id  you  rece ive? 

A Doctor of os teopa th ic m edicine . 

Q And expla in  fo r the  ju ry wha t a  re s idency is .   
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A So  res idency is  an  additiona l tra in ing  a fte r m edica l schoo l 

where  you  p ick a  specia lty and  through m any years  and  m any hours  and  

m entorsh ip , you  lea rn  the  in s  and  outs  of tha t specia lty and  how to  

becom e com pe ten t to  becom e a  doctor in  tha t specia lty.  

Q Now, by the  way, when  you  worked  as  a  phys ician  as s is tan t, 

what sort o f m edica l p ractice  or a rea  of practice  d id  you  work in? 

A So  the  firs t two yea rs , I d id  o rthopedic surgery.  And then  I 

changed  jobs  and  d id  m edica l oncology. 

Q Okay.  And when you  d id  your res idency a fte r m edica l 

school, what specia lty d id  you  go  for? 

A That was  OB/GYN. 

Q Okay.  And afte r res idency, what sort o f tra in ing  or educa tion  

have  you  had? 

A Well, a fte r re s idency, you 're  s till required  to , you  know, pass  

your boa rds .  So  you  s tudy for those .  And then  you 're  required  to  have  

continu ing  m edica l educa tion  eve ry few years  to  renew your license , so .  

Q And so  you  have  to  be  licensed  by a  s ta te  to  practice  as  a  

phys ician , correct? 

A Yes . 

Q What s ta tes  a re  you  licensed  in? 

A Californ ia . 

Q Okay.  When were  you  firs t licensed  to  practice  m edicine  in  

the  S ta te  of Californ ia?   

A You actua lly can  ge t your license  to  practice  during  

res idency.  So  the  year a fte r your in te rnsh ip .  So  tha t would 've  been , you  
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know, 2008 or '09.  

Q Are  you  Board  certified?  

A Yes , I am . 

Q And in  what fie ld? 

A OB/GYN. 

Q Expla in  -- well, firs t o f a ll, what Board  has  certified  you? 

A The  Am erican  College  of Os teopa th ic OB/GYNs.   

Q And expla in  to  the  ju ry what it m eans  to  be  Board  ce rtified  

and  what it takes  to  ge t ce rtified  by tha t Board . 

A Yeah .  So  Board  ce rtifica tion  is  m ain ly, you  know, showing  

tha t your license  is  s till va lid , tha t you 've  done  your continu ing  

educa tiona l cred its , and  taking  e ither an  exam , which  is  a  couple  

hundred  ques tion  exam , or there ' s  som e a lte rna tive  ways  where  you  can  

do  m odules  a t hom e and  take  se lf-tes ts .  Mine  was  the  -- the  tes t I took.  

And tha t' s  abou t every s ix years  you  have  to  renew tha t. 

Q Do you  have  any hospita l p rivileges  to  perform  opera tions  or 

procedures? 

A I do . 

Q Okay.  At how m any d iffe ren t hosp ita ls? 

A Three  hospita ls  and  one  outpa tien t surgery cen te r. 

Q Are  you  a  m em ber of any profess iona l o rganiza tions? 

A Yeah .  The  Rivers ide  Medica l -- Rivers ide  County Med ica l 

Associa tion , the  Californ ia  Medica l Associa tion , Am erican  College  of 

Os teopa th ic GYNs, and  the  Am erican  Osteopa th ic Associa tion . 

Q Have  you  ever se rved  on  any m ed ica l re la ted  peer review 
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com m ittee? 

A Yes . 

Q Expla in  to  the  ju ry what a  peer review com m ittee  is , and  then  

expla in  your involvem ent. 

A So  I se rved  on  a  peer review com m ittee  for one  of the  

hospita ls  I p ractice  a t ca lled  Parkview Hospita l.  And peer review is  kind  

of an  in te rna l p rocess  where  the  hospita l takes  com pla in ts  e ither m ade  

by e ithe r s ta ff o r pa tien ts  and  ta lks  to  the  phys ician , ge ts  a  s ta tem ent, 

and  presen ts  a ll th is  to  the  peer review board , who decides  if any action  

has  to  be  taken  for the  phys ician . 

Q And does  tha t include  com pla in ts  o f m edica l m alpractice? 

A Yes . 

Q And have  you  ever he ld  any pos itions  with  the  Os teopa th ic 

Medica l Board  of Californ ia? 

A Yes .  So  for the  Os teopa th ic Medica l Board  of Californ ia , I'm  

an  expe rt reviewer of cases  tha t a re  brought to  tha t board  to  eva lua te  

phys icians  for d iscip linary action  based  on  aga in , pa tien t com pla in ts , o r 

com plica tions , o r any hospita l-based  com pla in ts . 

Q And tha t includes  for exam ple , if som ebody m akes  a  

com pla in t to  the  Board  abou t an  OB/GYN, the ir OB/GYN has  com m itted  

very bad  m alpractice?  Tha t' s  the  type  of th ing  you  review? 

A Yes .  In  regards  to  the  S ta te , an  actua l m edica l license  

review. 

Q And you  then  advise  the  actua l licens ing  board  of the  S ta te  

of Californ ia  what your op in ions  a re  about the  a llega tions? 
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A Yes .  I review records  from  the  doctor, the  hospita l, the  

pa tien t's  s ta tem ents , the  doctor's  s ta tem ents , and  then  m ake  an  op in ion  

to  the  m edica l board  if there  should  be  any action  taken .  

Q Okay.  And we 've  kind  of m entioned , you  know, tha t you 're  

licensed  in  the  S ta te  of Californ ia .  Ca liforn ia  is  obvious ly a  pre tty b ig  

s ta te .  What city do  you  live  and  p ractice  in? 

A I p ractice  in  Rivers ide , Californ ia , which  is  Southern  

Californ ia .  And I live  close  by. 

Q We 've  spoken  a  little  b it about your educa tiona l experience .  I 

want to  ta lk about your work and  em ploym ent experience  as  a  phys ician .  

You m entioned  you  were  a  phys ician  a ss is tan t for severa l years  before  

you  got your m edica l license .  Bu t where  a re  you  cu rren tly em ployed? 

A Rivers ide  Medica l Clin ic. 

Q Okay.  So  in  p riva te  practice  then , te ll m e  what tha t clin ic 

does . 

A Rivers ide  Medica l Clin ic is  a  m ultispecia lty about 150-

provider group .  It has  m ultip le  officers .  I'm  an  OB/GYN, one  of e igh t in  

tha t g roup .  

Q And how m any pa tien ts  have  you  seen  as  an  OB/GYN doctor 

over the  years? 

A I see  be tween  25 and  30 pa tien ts  a  day, about four days  a  

week.  So  thousands  of pa tien ts . 

Q Okay.  And have  you  ever s een  pa tien ts  with  com pla in ts  o f 

heavy m ens trua l b leed ing  o r m enorrhagia? 

A Yes . 
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Q Have  you  ever seen  pa tien ts  with  fib ro id  tum ors  in  the ir 

u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q How m any hys te roscopies  would  you  e s tim ate  you 've  

perform ed in  your m edica l ca reer? 

A At leas t, you  know, 5 to  600. 

Q And how m any fibro id  tum or resections  would  you  es tim a te  

you 've  done  in  your career?   

A During  those  hys te roscopies , tha t's  o ften  what you 're  do ing  

them  for.  And p robably one  in  every -- when  we  do  have  them , so  

probably 100.   

Q Are  you  persona l friends  or a  re la tive  o f the  Pla in tiff in  th is  

case , Kim berly Taylor? 

A No. 

Q Did  you  m eet her or know of her prior to  be ing  h ired  to  be  

involved  in  th is  case? 

A No. 

Q Did  you  persona lly know m e or anybody a t m y law firm  

before  th is  case? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  Had  we eve r worked  before  on  a  case  o ther than  Ms. 

Taylor's  case? 

A No. 

Q When were  you  h ired  in  th is  m atte r to  provide  op in ions? 

A In  I be lieve  it was  April o f 2018, was  when I firs t had  contact. 
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Q And in  order to  provide  op in ions  in  th is  case , d id  you  review 

various  m edica l and  o ther records  concern ing  the  case  of Ms. Taylor? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  J us t genera lly speaking , what records  d id  you  review? 

A So  the  records  from  Dr. Brill' s  ou tpa tien t p ractice , records  

from  the  Henderson  Hospita l Surgery Center, and  records  from  the  S t. 

Rose  ER vis its  and  hospita l s tay.  

Q And d id  you  a lso  review litiga tion  docum ents  like  the  

depos ition  tes tim ony of various  witnesses? 

A Yes . 

Q Can you  rem em ber the  nam es  of depos itions  you 've  seen? 

A The  depos ition  of Dr. Brill and  the  depos ition  of Dr. Brill' s  

expert witness . 

Q Okay.  I'd  like  you  to  expla in  som e te rm s  to  the  ju ry.  What is  

a  re troverted  u te rus?  

A So  a  re troverted  u te rus  is  when  the  top  of the  u te rus , which  

is  a lso  ca lled  the  fundus , po in ts  backwards  to , like , your backbone , ra ther 

than  poin ting  forward  to  your be llybutton .  

Q How com m on of a  condition  is  tha t in  the  gene ra l popula tion  

of wom en? 

A It' s  about one  in  five . 

Q Yeah , so  would  you  ca ll tha t qu ite  com m on? 

A It' s  no t uncom m on.   

Q In  your OB/GYN practice , have  you  seen  m any pa tien ts  with  

a  re troverted  u te rus? 
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A Yes . 

Q Do you  th ink it' s  poss ib le  to  sa fe ly perform  a  hys te roscopy 

on  a  pa tien t with  a  re troverted  u te rus?   

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Is  having  a  re troverted  u te rus  a  contra ind ica tion  to  a  

hys te roscopy? 

A No. 

Q Sam e ques tions  for a  fib ro id  tum or resection . 

A No.  Tha t's  no t a  contra ind ica tion .  

Q Okay.  In  o ther words , in  ca se  the  ju ry doesn ' t ca tch  what 

tha t m eans , it m eans  tha t --  

A That's  no t a  reason  to  no t do  the  procedure  because  the  

u te rus  is  re troverted . 

Q Thank you .  And how about the  te rm  b icornua te  u te rus?  

A So  b icornua te  u te rus  m eans  tha t the  kind  of norm al pear-

shaped  u te rus  is  m ore  the  shape  of like  a  -- like  a  va len tine  heart.  So  it 

has  a  m iddle  section  tha t can  be  kind  o f th ick and  can  d ivide  the  two  

cavities  up .  So  you  can  actua lly have  two u te rine  cavities , o r, you  know  

-- o r wom bs , if you  will. 

Q Okay.  And you  know, tha t's  a  good  poin t.  The  -- another 

nam e for a  wom an 's  u te rus  is  the  wom b, righ t? 

A Yes .   

Q And then  the  wom b is  where  if a  wom an is  p regnant, the  

baby will deve lop? 

A Yes . 
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Q How com m on is  it in  the  genera l popula tion  of wom en to  

have  a  b icornua te  u te rus? 

A That's  m uch les s  com m on.  Less  than  1 percent.  0.4 percent 

is  the  num ber I go t las t tim e  I looked  it up . 

Q Okay.  So  som ewhere  a round 1 in  100? 

A Or less . 

Q Okay.  And is  it, in  your op in ion , s till poss ib le  to  sa fe ly 

perform  a  hys te roscopy on  a  wom an with  a  b icornua te  u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q And is  it poss ib le  to  sa fe ly perform  a  fib ro id  tum or resection  

on  a  wom an with  a  b icornua te  u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  What does  the  te rm  m enorrhag ia  m ean? 

A Menorrhagia  m eans  heavy m ens trua l b leed ing  or b leed ing  

las ting  longer than  the  expected  num ber of days  tha t you  would  have  

tha t.   

Q Okay.  And fibro id  tum or in  the  u te rus , expla in  to  the  ju ry 

what tha t is  and  what it -- what it looks  like .   

A A fibro id  is  a  benign , which  m eans  no t cancerous , m uscle  

tum or in  the  m uscle  of the  u te rus .  The  u te rus  has  one  b ig  m uscle , and  it 

g rows  these  tum ors , and  they're  ca lled  fib ro ids .   

Q Okay.  And is  tha t com m on in  wom en?   

A It' s  -- yeah , it is  com m on in  wom en.  About 40 percent o f 

wom en have  them .  Many don ' t know they do .  But they're  very 

com m on.   
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Q Okay.  And these  fib ro id  tum ors , is  it typ ica l fo r a  wom an jus t 

to  have  one  or m ultip le  tum ors  or there 's  no  rea l associa tion?   

A They -- you  can  have  -- you  can  have  one  or you  can  have  

m any.   

Q Okay.  And how big , like  in  te rm s  of a , you  know, pea  or a  

p ing-pong  ba ll o r som eth ing  like  tha t, how b ig  do  these  -- can  these  

tum ors  ge t?   

A So  they vary.  They can  be  the  s ize  of a  pea  and  hard ly 

no ticeable , and  they can  be  the  -- you  know, the  s ize  o f a , you  know, 

grapefru it o r la rger.  Yeah .   

Q So  you 've  seen  them  the  s ize  of a  grapefru it?   

A Yes .  And probably even  la rger.   

Q All righ t.  So  I want to  m ove  now in to  your op in ions  

regard ing  th is  particu la r ca se .  So  you  reviewed Ms. Taylo r's  m edica l 

h is tory and  m edica l records  prior to  today in  order to  form  your 

op in ions , correct?   

A Yes .   

Q Okay.  Can  you  g ive  us  an  idea  of Ms. Taylor's  genera l 

m edica l h is tory from  an  OB/GYN perspective  prior to  her April o f 2017 

procedure?   

A So  she  had  been , you  know, com pla in ing  of heavy m ens trua l 

periods , the  m enorrhagia , which  -- periods  las ting  longer than  they 

should , heavie r flow than  expected , im pacting  her life , and  I be lieve  she  

had  som e, you  know, pe lvic d iscom fort and  pe lvic pa in .   

Q Okay.  Is  m enorrhagia  h ighly unusua l?   
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A No.   

Q Do m any of your pa tien ts  tha t see  you  have  com pla in ts  o f 

m enorrhagia?   

A Yes .   

Q And so  ju s t ta lking  about it in  the  tim e period  of the  -- the  few 

m onths  prior to  th is  p rocedure , what so rt o f trea tm ent was  Ms. Taylor 

ge tting  from  an  OB/GYN pe rspective?   

A I be lieve  she  was  on  b irth  contro l p ills , which  we  use  for the  

horm ones  to  kind  o f regula te  the  cycles , were  -- were  m entioned  and  

tried  and  then  the  decis ion  to  proceed  with  the  procedure  tha t occu rred .   

Q Did  she  rece ive  a  b iopsy?   

A Yeah .  I be lieve  she  had  a  b iopsy in  the  office , yes .   

Q Okay.  Would  --  

A An endom etria l b iopsy to  check the  lin ing  of the  u te rus  to  be  

sure  tha t the  ce lls  in  there  were  norm a l, so .   

Q And were  there  any cancerous  ce lls?   

A There  were  no t.   

Q Okay.  And I guess  I would  say m alignant cance rous  ce lls .   

A Yeah .   

Q And there  --  

A No.  The re  was  no  evidence  of any cancer in  the  ins ide .   

Q Did  she  rece ive  a  p rocedure  ca lled  a  co lposcopy?   

A Yes .  Tha t was  re la ted  to  d iffe ren t -- to  a  d iffe ren t is sue  

though.  Tha t's  fo r the  cervix though, so .   

Q Okay.  So  exp la in  to  the  ju ry what happens  during  a  
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co lposcopy and  why tha t was  recom m ended fo r Ms. Taylo r.   

A So  if you  have  an  abnorm al Pap  sm ear, which  is  the  cervica l 

screening  tes t, you  often tim es  do  a  co lposcopy, which  is  actua lly looking  

a t the  ce rvix with  a  m icroscope , to  be  sure  tha t the  Pap  sm ear d idn ' t 

m iss  any a reas  of in flam m ation  tha t could  be  precancerous  in  the  fu ture .  

Biops ies  a re  done  o ften , and  then  based  on  wha t the  resu lt is , you  can  

p lan  if you 're  go ing  to  do  a  p rocedure  to  the  cervix to  rem ove  those  ce lls  

o r jus t m onitor it m ore  close ly with  m ore  frequent Pap  sm ears .   

Q Okay.  And what were  the  resu lts  o f Ms. Taylor' s  co lposcopy?   

A I'd  have  to  check the  record  aga in .  I'm  sorry.  I don ' t reca ll.   

Q Okay.  Do you --  

A I be lieve  -- we ll, I'm  -- I don ' t reca ll anyth ing  in  the  record  

saying  tha t the re  was  any cance rous  ce lls  in  her cervix, so .   

Q Okay.  And tha t's  what the  p rocedure  is  to  --  

A Would  have  --  

Q -- check for?   

A Would  have  identified , yeah .   

Q Okay.  So  prio r to  the  hys te roscopy procedure , is  it fa ir to  say 

tha t Dr. Brill had  done  som e o ther procedures  and  ru led  out any 

m alignant cancer?   

A Defin ite ly.  Yes .   

Q Okay.  The  procedure  in  th is  case  then , we 've  been  ca lling  it 

a  hys te roscopy genera lly, bu t what d iffe ren t p rocedures  had  been  

recom m ended for Ms. Taylor?   

A The  recom m endation  and  the  kind  of p re -op  d iagnos is  was  
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hys te roscopy, which  is  looking  a t the  ins ide  of the  u te rus  with  a  cam era , 

resection  of a  fib ro id , which  was  identified  on  an  u ltra sound, and  then  a  

procedure  ca lled  endom etria l ab la tion .   

Q Expla in  what endom etria l ab la tion  is .   

A So  the  endom etrium  is  the  lin ing  o f the  u te rus .  So  the  u te rus  

m uscle , and  it' s  on  the  ins ide  part where  the  wom b is  where  the  baby 

would  have  been , the re 's  a  lin ing  ca lled  the  endom etrium .  Those  a re  the  

ce lls  tha t fill up  with  b lood  every m onth  and  ge t b igger based  on  

horm ones , and  then  com e out, if you 're  no t p regnant, and  cause  the  

m ens trua l flow.  Endom etria l ab la tion  is  rem oving  the  endom etrium .   

Q Okay.  And so  how is  it rem oved?  How is  it done?   

A There 's  d iffe ren t ways  to  do  tha t.  It can  be  burned  with  

e lectricity, burned  with  a  ho t -- hea ted  water, it can  be  frozen , it can  be  -- 

as  a  way to  do  it with  co ld  a lso .  Those  a re  the  --  

Q And so  what's  the  goa l o r the  des ire , the  end  re su lt fo r an  

endom etria l ab la tion?   

A The  resu lt -- the  des ired  resu lt is  to  decrease  the  m ens trua l 

flow.  So  a  wom an who has  an  endom etria l ab la tion , we  would  like  her 

to  have  fewer days  of b leed ing , le ss  flow, and  hopefu lly m aybe  never 

have  a  m ens trua l cycle  aga in .  But tha t's  no t as  com m on.   

Q Now, g iven  your review of Ms. Taylor' s  records , do  you  th ink 

tha t those  procedures  tha t Dr. Brill recom m ended for her were  

appropria te  g iven  her sym ptom s?   

A Yes .   

Q And do  you  th ink there 's  anyth ing  abou t her ana tom y or he r 
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m edica l h is tory tha t m ade  those  procedures  som ehow inhe ren tly 

unsafe?   

A Hys te roscopy and  the  fib ro id  resection , no .  The  endom etria l 

ab la tion  is  kind  of a  tough  one .  In  a  b icornua te  u te rus  with  a  u te rine  

a rch itecture  tha t's  kind  of d iffe ren t, those  ab la tion  procedures , o r the  one  

tha t was  chosen , would  be  d ifficu lt to  perform .   

Q Okay.  And we 're  flash ing  fo rward  here  in  jus t a  m inu te , bu t 

u ltim ate ly Dr. Brill d id  not even  a ttem pt endom etria l ab la tion  in  the  

procedure , correct?   

A That's  co rrect.   

Q Okay.  In  reviewing  the  reco rds , was  -- well, I guess  I should  

lay m ore  foundation .  Did  Ms. Taylor have  a  re troverted  u te rus?   

A Yes .  Tha t was  iden tified  on  u ltrasound  tha t she  had  a  

re trove rted  u te rus .   

Q Okay.  And had  she  been  d iagnosed  with  a  b icornua te  

u te rus?   

A Yes .  The  sam e way; with  u ltrasound.   

Q And she  had  been  d iagnosed  with  m enorrhagia?   

A Yes .  By her h is tory and  sym ptom s, yeah .   

Q Okay.  Were  a ll o f those  conditions  well-known to  Dr. Brill 

p rior to  the  procedure , the  hys te roscopy?   

A Yeah .   

Q I'd  like  you  to  tu rn  -- if you 'd  look in  those  books  -- and  aga in , 

I'm  sorry, I don ' t know which  volum e it is .  But I'd  like  you  to  look a t 

Exhib it 5.  It' s  book 3.  So  I th ink it would  be  the  -- beh ind  you  there .   
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A Okay.   

MR. BREEDEN:  You can  go  ahead  and  put it up .   

MS. J OHNSON:  Num ber 43? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yes .   

THE WITNESS:  Did  you  say Exhib it 5?   

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  Exhib it 5.  And then  you ' re  go ing  to  

look for what's  ca lled  a  Bate s  num ber in  the  lower righ t --   

THE WITNESS:  Okay.   

MR. BREEDEN:  -- and  tha t's  HH43.  You a lso  have  a  m onitor 

there  in  fron t o f you .  Is  tha t m onito r on?   

THE WITNESS:  Yeah .   

MR. BREEDEN:  So  you  can  fo llow a long  with  the  m onitor or 

you  can  fo llow a long  --  

THE WITNESS:  Okay.   

MR. BREEDEN:  -- on  the  paper copy in  fron t o f you , 

whichever's  m ore  convenien t for you .   

THE WITNESS:  Okay.   

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Have  you  seen  Exhib it 5, Ba tes  HH43 before?   

A I have .   

Q This  is  part o f the  records  you  reviewed?   

A Yes .   

Q What is  th is  record?   

A This  is  the  opera tive  report by Dr. Brill fo r the  procedure  

done , the  hys te roscopy done , on  April 26th .   
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Q Okay.  And --  

A That's  --  

Q -- looking  a t the  page  righ t before  th is  one  --  

MR. BREEDEN:  Kris ty, if you  could  bring  tha t up .   

BY MR. MR. BREEDEN:   

Q What was  Dr. Brill' s  p reopera tive  d iagnos is?   

A His  preopera tive  d iagnos is  was  m enorrhagia , fib ro id  u te rus , 

and  b ico rnua te  u te rus .   

Q And what was  h is  ind ica tion  for su rgery on  Ms. Taylo r?   

A His   ind ica tion  was  she  had  m enorrhag ia .  She  had  

u ltrasound find ings  of a  b ico rnua te  u te rus  with  a  fib ro id  in  the  righ t 

horn .   

Q So  Dr. Brill no t on ly knew tha t she  had  a  fib ro id  and  a  

b icornua te  u te rus , bu t he  knew it was  som ewhere  on  the  righ t horn  of 

the  u te rus?   

A Yes .   

Q Okay.  And he  knew a ll tha t before  he  began  the  procedure?   

A Yes .   

Q All righ t.  Going  to  the  next page  now, we  have  sort o f the  -- 

the  narra tive  of the  opera tive  report.  I don ' t want you  to  jus t read  tha t to  

the  ju ry --  

A Uh-huh.   

Q -- bu t I want you  to  sort o f go  through it and  expla in  to  the  

ju ry wha t happened  during  the  procedure  and  what Dr. Brill d id .   

A Okay.  Do you  want m e to  s ta rt a t the  beginning?  So  --  
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Q There  -- there ' s  a  g rea t p lace  to  s ta rt.   

A Yeah .  So  the  pa tien t was  taken  to  the  opera ting  room  and  

properly identified .  She  was  p laced  on  the  opera ting  room  tab le  and  

g iven  genera l anes thes ia  by LMA by the  anes thes io logis t.  She  was  

p laced  in  a  litho tom y pos ition  us ing  candy cane  s tirrups .  Her lower 

abdom en  and  vagina  were  prepped  and  draped  in  a  norm al s te rile  

fash ion .  Her b ladder was  s tra igh t ca the te rized  for a  sm all am ount of 

u rine  by the  opera tive  room  nurse .   

Q Now, I'm  going  to  s top  you  for a  m om ent.  It says  tha t the  

pa tien t was  g iven  anes thes ia .  Was  she  pu t unde r com ple te  anes thes ia?   

A Yeah , tha t's  genera l anes thes ia .   

Q Yeah .  Wom en  are  no t awake , pa rtia lly awake  during  th is  

p rocedure , a re  they?   

A No, no t in  th is  case .   

Q Okay.  And it s ays  tha t she  was  p laced  in  the  litho tom y 

pos ition .  What does  tha t m ean?   

A So  the  -- with  the  -- with  the  s tirrups .  The  bes t way to  

describe  tha t is  bas ica lly on  her back with  her fee t up  in  the  a ir.   

Q Okay.  And she  was  a lso  ca the te rized .  Why is  tha t done?   

A I th ink you  could  say tha t tha t could  be  done  to  avoid  an  

in jury to  the  b ladde r, o r it could  be  done  so  when she  wakes  up , she  

doesn ' t have  to  try and  be  taken  to  the  ba throom  when  she 's  rea lly 

s leepy.  But tha t's  defin ite ly kind  of no t a  required  th ing .   

Q Do you  a lways  do  tha t for your pa tien ts  when  you  pe rform  

hys te roscopy?   
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A With  hys te roscopie s , typ ica lly I have  the  nurses  jus t le t them  

use  the  res t room  before  they go  back to  the  opera ting  room .  It' s  no t -- 

it' s  no t a  righ t o r wrong th ing  to  do .  It' s  jus t a  choice .   

Q Go ahead  and  continue  with  the  opera tive  report and  te ll u s  

how the  opera tion  proceeds  next.   

A Sure .  An exam ina tion  under anes thes ia  was  done , which  

revea led  a  re troverted  u te rus  approxim ate ly e igh t weeks '  s ize .   

Q Okay.  Again , I'd  like  to  s top  you .  Wha t does  tha t m ean , 

e igh t weeks '  s ize?   

A So  even  though th is  is  gynecology and  not obs te trics  and  

even  though tha t Kim berly wasn ' t p regnant a t the  tim e , we  in  

gynecology m easure  how b ig  a  u te rus  fee ls  to  u s  based  on  the  

pregnancy s ize  of the  u te rus .  So  an  e igh t-week u te rus  is  a  rea l sm all 

u te rus , kind  of corresponding  to  an  e igh t-week pregnancy, very, very 

low.  For ins tance , a  20-week u te rus  would  be  like  a t the  be lly bu tton .  

Roughly a round the re .  So  tha t's  kind  of how we judge  -- describe  to  

o ther people  how b ig  a  u te rus  is .   

Q Okay.  So  for a  nonpregnant pa tien t undergoing  a  

hys te roscopy, is  the re  anyth ing  unusua l about be ing  an  e igh t-week s ize?   

A No.   

Q Okay.  Go ahead  and  continue .   

A Okay.  "A tying  out p rocedure  was  perform ed" -- o r -- "I then  

p laced  a  speculum  in to  the  vagina  and  perform ed a  parace rvica l b lock 

us ing  a  to ta l o f 10ccs  of quarte r-pe rcent Marca ine  with  ep inephrine , and  I 

used  a  sp ina l needle  to  do  tha t.  I p laced  a  s ing le -too th  tenaculum  on  the  
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an te rior lip  of the  cervix.  I a ttem pted  to  p lace  a  Uterine  Sound, bu t the  

u te rine" -- tha t's  a  typo  -- "u te rine  os" it' s  supposed  to  say, no t los t -- 

"was  s tenotic a t the  cervix."  

Q Okay.  So  le t m e  ask you , what's  a  Uterine  Sound?   

A A Uterine  Sound is  a  m eta l rod  tha t has  a  b lun t end  on  it tha t 

we  put th rough the  cervix gently to  touch  the  top  of the  u te rus  to  

m easure  how b ig  the  u te rus  is  in  cen tim eters .   

Q Okay.  And so  tha t te lls  the  doctor perform ing  the  

hys te roscopy how m uch space  he  has  to  work with  --  

A Essentia lly.   

Q -- with  the  u te rus?  Okay.   

A The  s ize  of the  u te rine  cavity, yeah .   

Q And d id  anyth ing  go  wrong or ou t o f the  ord inary when 

Dr. Brill a ttem pted  to  perform  the  Uterine  Sound?   

A Well, he  s ta ted  tha t he  couldn ' t do  it because  of a  s tenotic 

ce rvix.  And what tha t m eans  -- s tenos is  m eans  jus t a  very -- it' s  like  a  

narrowing  and  tigh ten ing .  So  he  -- when  you  have  a  s tenotic cervix, you  

can ' t actua lly pu t anyth ing  through tha t eas ily.  You have  to  -- you  have  

to  rea lly kind  o f try harder to  ge t anyth ing  through tha t ce rvix, so .   

Q Okay.  So  even  though he  had  trouble  with  the  Uterine  

Sound, which  is  des igned  to  te ll the  OB/GYN how m uch space  he  has  in  

a  u te rus  --  

A Uh-huh.   

Q -- he  proceeded  with  the  procedure?   

A He d id  proceed  with  the  procedure , bu t because  he  used  
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som e d ila tors  to  try to  open  up  the  cervica l opening , the  ce rvica l os .   

Q Okay.  And what d id  he  do  next?  You can  s ta rt with ; I p laced  

the  d iagnos tic hys te roscope .   

 A "I p laced  a  d iagnos tic hys te roscope  in to  the  u te rine  cavity, 

be ing  ca refu l to  fo llow the  pa thway of the  d ila tion .  Norm al sa line  was  

used  for d is tens ion  m edium ."  

Q Okay.  I'd  like  to  s top  you  there .  So  what -- what does  tha t 

m ean , th is  d is tens ion  m edium  and  insertion  of sa line?  What's  

happening?   

A Okay.  So  in  its  norm al kind  of s itua tion , the  u te rus  isn ' t open  

rea l wide  where  you  can  actua lly have  any room  to  see  or anyth ing  

ins ide  there .  It' s  ve ry m uch kind  of co llapsed  on  itse lf.  So  we  put the  

hys te roscope  in , one  of the  channe ls  of the  hys te roscope  puts  sa line  

th rough the  scope  and  in to  the  u te rus  to  open  -- to  open  it up .  So  it 

crea tes  space .  You  can  see .   

Q So  it' s  so rt o f like  if you  had  a  defla ted  ba lloon  and  then  you  

put sa line  or a ir in  it, and  it s ta rts  to  b low up  or --  

A That's  a  perfect exam ple .   

Q Okay.  So  wha t d id  Dr. Brill do  next?   

A Okay.  So  he  s ta tes , "I was  ab le  to  see  what appeared  to  be  a  

white  u te rine  sep tum  and  two sm all a reas  tha t appeared  to  be  the  

u te rine  horns ."  

Q Now, le t m e  s top  you  there .  Did  you  find  tha t unusua l tha t 

he 's  saying  -- he 's  no t saying  he  found what they a re ; he 's  saying  th ings  

appear to  be .  Did  you  find  tha t unusua l?   
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A It does  -- well, it does  in troduce  a  little  b it o f uncerta in ty in to  

it, yes .   

Q Okay.  And so  what d id  he  write  next about whether he  was  

ab le  to  im m edia te ly find  the  fib ro id  tum or?   

A Well, he  sa id  there  was  -- there  is  no  obvious  fib ro ids  seen  a t 

the  righ t s ide  because  there  was  a  -- there  was  white  tis sue  here  tha t he  

fe lt could  be  the  sep tum  covering  the  a rea .   

Q And then  he  took p ictures  of tha t --  

A Yeah .   

Q -- righ t?   

A Yeah , he  took p ictures .   

Q Okay.  So  when Dr. Brill went to  do  the  resection , the  fib ro id  

tum or re section , he  could  no t loca te  the  fib ro id  tum or orig ina lly; is  tha t 

righ t?   

A That -- tha t's  co rrect.   

Q Okay.  And so  he  fe lt tha t it m ight be  concea led  by som e 

white  tis sue  tha t he  saw, righ t?   

MR. MCBRIDE:  Objection .  It' s  lead ing , Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined .   

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q So  why d id  Dr. Brill say he  was  having  d ifficu lty find ing  the  

fib ro id  tum or?   

A Because  he  appeared  -- he  be lieved  tha t the  sep tum  was  

covering  it up  or som e white  tis sue  was  covering  it up , tha t he  thought 

m ight have  been  the  sep tum .   
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Q What d id  he  decide  to  do  next?   

A Okay.  At tha t po in t he  switched  over to  the  resectoscope  and  

he  pu t the  -- he  pu t th is  -- the  resectoscope  through the  cervix and  back 

in to  the  u te rine  cavity.   

Q Okay.  And what d id  he  do  next?   

A He looked  aga in  and  sa id  he  was  ab le  to  visua lize  what 

appeared  to  be  the  sep tum , and  then  us ing  the  ye llow peda l o f the  

resectoscope  began  to  cu t what appeared  to  be  the  sep tum  ante riorly on  

the  u te rus .   

Q Now, le t m e  ask you , what's  the  s ign ificance  of us ing  the  

ye llow peda l?  Wha t does  tha t m ean?  Where  is  the  ye llow peda l 

pos itioned?   

A So  the  hys te roscope  is  he ld  in  your hand  and  the  -- and  the  -- 

and  then  the  peda ls  a re  a t your fee t, and  you  can  -- with  th is  

resectoscope , you  can  choose  be tween  two d iffe ren t peda ls , a  b lue  and  a  

ye llow, which  contro lled  d iffe ren t functions  on  the  resectoscope . 

Q Do you  reca ll what type  of resectoscope  Dr. Brill was  us ing? 

A It was  a  Sym phion . 

Q And so  what happened  im m edia te ly a fte r Dr. Brill s ta rted  

us ing  the  ye llow peda l? 

A Alm ost im m edia te ly a fte r, he  m entioned  tha t he  used  the  

ye llow peda l, he  s ta ted  tha t he  saw was  appeared  to  be  a  u te rine  

perfora tion . 

Q Okay.  And d id  he  describe  where  tha t perfora tion  was? 

A Not in  th is  -- we ll, no .  He  d id  say he  was  cu tting  an te riorly, 
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and  then  noticed  the  -- no ticed  the  perfora tion  a fte rwards . 

Q Okay.  Do you  know from  la te r records  where  the  perfora tion  

was? 

A Yes , it was  -- it was  an te rior on  the  u te rus . 

Q And is  tha t in  the  a rea  where  Dr. Brill was  in tend ing  to  resect 

the  white  tis sue? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  So  be tween  the  tim e  tha t Dr. Brill activa ted  the  ye llow 

peda l to  begin  resection , and  the  tim e tha t he  observed  the  perfora tion , 

what was  he  do ing  ins ide  the  u te rus? 

A By the  tim e he  activa ted  the  peda l and  noticed  the  

perfora tion? 

Q Yes , be tween . 

A Well, he  was  cu tting  tis sue  and  then  saw the  pe rfora tion . 

Q It was  im m edia te ly a fte rward? 

A That's  what it s eem s like  in  the  no te . 

Q And so  what d id  he  do  next a fte r he  observed  a  perfo ra tion  

in  the  u te rus? 

A Okay.  Where  is  it?  Tha t he  sa id  he  no ted  tha t the  tip , tha t 

the  -- tha t the  u te rine  horns  were  narrow.  He  ju s t m ade  an  observa tion  

there , and  then  he  sa id  he  -- I im m edia te ly s topped  the  use  of the  

resectoscope  a t the  tim e  of the  perfora tion .  I rem oved  the  hys te roscope  

and  rep laced  it with  a  d iagnos tic hys te roscope , so  --  

Q I'm  sorry.  Le t m e in te rrupt you  --  

A Yup. 
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Q -- for jus t a  second. 

A Yup. 

Q Why wou ld  you  s top  us ing  the  resection  ins trum ent once  

you  iden tified  a  perfora tion? 

A Because  it' s  no t sa fe  to  continue  resecting  when  you  have  a  

ho le  in  the  u te rus . 

Q Okay.  And so  go  ahead  and  continue ; what d id  Dr. Brill do  

next? 

A So  he  switched  ove r to  the  d iagnos tic s cope , so  he  took the  

resectoscope  out, he  aga in  used  sa line  for the  d is ten tion  m edium , and  

then  he  no ted  there  d id  appear to  be  an  an te rior perfo ra tion . 

Q Okay. 

A So  a t tha t po in t he  confirm ed tha t it was  an te rior. 

Q Did  he  look for a  bowel perfora tion  or o ther evidence  of 

in jury to  som eth ing  o ther than  the  u te rus? 

A So  in  the  next sen tence , yes  he  sa id  the re  was  no  evidence  of 

bowel or o ther organs  a t the  a rea  of it.  So  he  -- so  no , it d idn ' t appear 

tha t he  looked  a t -- fo r in jury, he  ju s t no ticed  tha t there  wasn ' t any bowel 

near the  a rea  of pe rfora tion . 

Q Does  he  s ta te  very clearly what he  d id  to  look fo r po ten tia l 

bowel in jury? 

A No.  It jus t s ta tes  tha t he  -- le t' s  see .  He  -- well, he  used  the  

scope  to  look is  what it sounds  like  he  d id , bu t they d idn ' t rea lly s ta te  

what -- how he  d id  tha t. 

Q Okay.  Now is  it your op in ion  tha t Ms. Taylor actua lly d id  
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sus ta in  a  bowe l in ju ry or bowel pe rfora tion  during  th is  p rocedure? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Objection , Your Honor.  It' s  lead ing .  He  can  

ask what's  -- o r h is  op in ion , bu t he ' s  lead ing  in to  the  op in ions . 

THE COURT:  Counse l approach . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Thank you .  

[S idebar a t 10:22 a .m ., ending  a t 10:24 a .m ., no t transcribed] 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q So  d id  -- during  th is  p rocedure , d id  Dr. Brill iden tify any 

perfora tion  to  the  bowel? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  What d id  he  do  next? 

A He decided  not to  u se  the  resectoscope  any longer, and  then  

he  decided  to  no t do  the  endom etria l ab la tion . 

Q What -- I'm  sorry.  What is  your op in ion  as  to  whethe r or no t 

Ms. Taylor actua lly had  a  bowel perfora tion  a t tha t tim e? 

A My opin ion  is  tha t's  when  the  bowel in jury occurred . 

Q Even  though Dr. Brill d id  no t find  it? 

A Correct. 

Q And so  what d id  Dr. Brill do  next? 

A Then  he  perform ed a  sharp  cure ttage  a fte r rem oving  the  

hys te roscope . 

Q Expla in  to  the  ju ry what a  sharp  cure ttage  is . 

A So  a  cure tte  is  kind  of a  -- like  a  loop  of m eta l on  a  rod  tha t is  

very, very, very sha rp .  It is  -- it wou ld  cu t you  if you  dragged  it across  

your skin , and  it' s  u sed  to  go  ins ide  the  u te rus  and  rem ove  som e of tha t 
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endom etria l lin ing  to  send  it to  the  lab  to  see  if the  ce lls  a re  norm al, you  

can  use  it to  rem ove  the  th ick tis sue  to  try and  he lp  m aybe  m ake  he r 

period  im prove , it can  -- it can  be  therapeutic, a s  well, o r it can  rem ove , 

you  know, sm all po lyps  or a  little  g rowth  or som eth ing  tha t would  be  -- 

be  in  the re . 

Q Why wou ld  Dr. Brill do  th is  fo r Ms. Taylor? 

A So  I be lieve  he  -- I'm  not sure  if it -- to  ge t a  sam ple  o f the  

u te rine  lin ing , to  reeva lua te  it, to  be  su re  there  were  norm al ce lls  s till. 

Q He  had  a lready done  som e o ther tes t to  eva lua te  for 

m alignant cancerous  ce lls , correct? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  It -- wou ld  th is  cure ttage  be  m ore  defin itive  than  h is  

o ther tes t?  Is  there  som e reason  why he  would  want to  do  th is  in  

addition  to  the  o the r tes t? 

A It can , it can  be  m ore  defin itive .  You can  poten tia lly ge t m ore  

tis sue . 

Q And so  a fte r us ing  the  sharp  cure tte  to  ob ta in  tis sue  sam ples , 

what d id  Dr. Brill do? 

A He then  a t tha t po in t s topped  the  procedure , d id  no t do  any 

m ore  re secting , and  d id  no t do  the  ab la tion . 

Q How long  does  a  hys te roscopy typ ica lly take? 

A So  what I te ll m y pa tien ts , anywhere  be tween  five  m inutes  

and  30 m inute s , jus t on  -- depending  on  what has  to  be  done , what we  

find , if we  do  have  to  resect a  fib ro id  or a  po lyp  or som eth ing , so  --  

Q Do you  reca ll how long  Ms. Taylor's  hys te roscopy las ted? 
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A I'd  have  to  double -check tha t.  No, I don ' t reca ll. 

Q Okay.  If you  could  look a t the  previous  page , tha t m igh t say 

when the  procedure  began  and  s topped . 

A Okay.  Thank you .  

Q Is  it re flected  on  the re? 

A Let's  see .  I don ' t see  it.   

Q That's  okay.  I m us t have  the  wrong re fe rence .  I'd  like  you  to  

look a t HH 158 next. 

A Okay.  There  is  a  tim es tam p  of when  -- well, yeah .  I'm  so rry, 

which  num ber?  58? 

Q I’m  sorry.  I don ' t want you  to  no t answer.  Wha t's  the  

tim es tam p? 

A Well, I m ean  he  -- it says  pe rform  and  s ign , and  tha t was  a  

two-hour th ing , window there , bu t I don ' t know if tha t was  done  righ t 

away, and  I th ink tha t there ' s  p robably no tes  som ewhere  in  the  cha rt tha t 

would  de fin ite ly pu t the  s ta rt tim e  and  the  s top  tim e  m ore  accura te ly 

than  th is . 

Q What's  the  tim es tam p on  the  opera tive  report tha t it was  

prepared  by Dr. Brill? 

A 10:08 a .m . 

Q Okay.  Is  the  opera tive  report ava ilab le  to  o ther m edica l ca re  

providers  befo re  it' s  o fficia lly closed  and  s igned  by Dr. Brill? 

A That's  a  tough  ques tion  to  answer.  Depending  on  if they 

used  the  sam e  e lectron ic hea lth  record , they m ay be  ab le  to  see  the  dra ft 

o f it before  it' s  s igned , bu t if they're  in  a  sys tem  where  they can ' t ge t 
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these  records , then  -- then  no , you  wou ldn ' t have  any reco rd  of it ye t. 

Q Okay.  I'd  like  you  to  next look a t HH158. 

A 158? 

Q 158.  What's  th is  docum ent? 

A This  is  the  -- the  pa thology report from  an  endom etria l 

cure ttage . 

Q And are  those  from  the  -- where  the  ce lls  from  the  cure ttage  

you 're  jus t describ ing  were  ana lyzed? 

A Yes .  Those  would  have  went to  the  -- a  lab  and  were  

ana lyzed  by a  pa tho logis t. 

Q Did  they show anyth ing  unusua l fo r those  ce lls? 

A No. 

Q Does  tha t report, in  your m ind , rea lly have  any s ign ificance  in  

th is  case  as  to  when  or how the  pe rfora tions  of the  u te rus  and  the  sm all 

bowel occurred? 

A No. 

Q Why is  tha t? 

A Why does  the  report no t re flect the  cause?  Is  tha t what --  

Q Why do  you  th ink it' s  no t pa rticu la rly re levant to  th is  case? 

A J us t because  it jus t says  norm al benign  endom etria l tis sue . 

Q Okay.  I m ean , if the re  were  perfo ra tions  during  the  

procedure , is  it go ing  to  show up  in  tha t pa thology report? 

A I don ' t th ink so , no . 

Q Doctor, in  Defendan t's  opening  s ta tem ents , a  rem ark was  

m ade  tha t the  u te rine  perfo ra tion  was  repa ired .  Did  you  see  any 
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no ta tion  in  Dr. Brill' s  report tha t he  repa ired  the  u te rus  perfora tion? 

A No. 

Q And so  what so rt o f trea tm ent is  needed  for u te rine  

perfora tions , ju s t in  genera l? 

A So  in  an  uncom plica ted  u te rine  perfora tion , wha t the  

s tandard  practice  to  do  is  to  s top  any re section  p rocedures , if tha t was  

done , go  ahead  and  te ll the  pa tien t a fte rwards  tha t the re  was  a  

perfora tion , and  she  m ight expect a  little  m ore  cram ping  than  usua l, 

m aybe  som e -- a  little  m ore  vagina l b leed ing  than  usua l, and  tha t's  it. 

Q Okay.  In  your expe rience , do  u te rus  pe rfora tions  typ ica lly 

require  a  surg ica l repa ir? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  Have  you  seen  som e tha t do? 

A No, I've  heard  of them , o the r co lleagues  have  done  tha t, bu t 

it' s  very -- it' s  uncom m on. 

Q Okay.  So  I want to  contras t tha t with  a  bowel pe rfora tion .  In  

your experience , do  m os t bowel pe rfora tions  require  surg ica l repa ir? 

A Yes . 

Q And so  why is  tha t?  What's  the  d iffe rence?  Why does  the  

bowel need  repa ir, bu t the  u te rus  doesn ' t necessarily need  repa ir? 

A Well, like  we  sa id  before , the  u te rus  is  a  b ig  m uscle  and  if 

you  have  a  s im ple , uncom plica ted  perfora tion , the  m uscle  contracts , and  

a  sm all am ount of b leed ing  usua lly ge ts  conta ined  with  tha t, and  tha t's  

what causes  those  cram ps; bu t when  you  perfora te  a  bowel you  leak 

flu id  from  ins ide  the  in tes tines  in to  your body and  tha t can  cause  a  very  
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-- a  lo t o f s ickness , and  even  -- and  even  dea th  if it' s  no t iden tified  and  

fixed . 

Q Okay.  And where  was  Kim  taken  a fte r she  was  taken  out o f 

the  opera ting  room ? 

A She  wen t to  the  pos t-anes thes ia  care  un it ca lled  the  PACU or 

what they ca ll the  recovery room  back in  the  o ld  days . 

Q Okay.  And so  in  your expe rience , for a  norm al hys te roscopy 

procedure , what's  a  typ ica l am ount of tim e  to  spend  in  a  PACU? 

A So m ost pa tien ts  spend  be tween , you  know, 30 m inute s  and  

an  hour m ax in  the  PACU.  Once  they're  awake  and  a ren ' t com pla in ing  of 

nausea  from  anes thes ia  and  if the ir pa in  is  contro lled  with  pa in  

m edica tions  wh ich  a lways  usua lly is , the ir ride  com es , and  they ge t to  

leave . 

Q Okay.  How long  was  Kim berly Taylor in  the  PACU? 

A Approxim ate ly seven  hours . 

Q Do you  th ink tha t's  unusua lly long? 

A I th ink tha t's  unusua lly long . 

Q In  your experience , what sort o f pa in  leve ls  o r sym ptom s do  

wom en have  a fte r a  hys te roscopy when they're  in  the  PACU or recovery 

room ? 

A So the  m os t com m on pa in  m edica tion  we  g ive  in  PACU is  a  

m edica tion  ca lled  Toradol which  is  jus t p re tty m uch IV Ibuprofen , and  

when I s end  people  hom e from  these  p rocedures , tha t's  the  on ly 

m edica tion  I g ive  them , usua lly Motrin  or Ibupro fen , and  we  don ' t u se  

any narco tic pa in  m edica tions  like , you  know, Vicodin , Norco; these  a re  
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the  m edica tions  tha t a re  s tronger. 

Q So  do  you  th ink tha t's  ou t o f the  ord ina ry to  have  to  

adm inis te r m edica tion  such  as  Dilaudid  or Fentanyl to  a  pa tien t who 's  

recovering  from  a  hys te roscopy? 

A Certa in ly. 

Q What were  Kim 's  pa in  com pla in ts  while  she  was  in  the  

PACU/ 

A She  com pla ined  of, you  know, ten  ou t o f ten  pa in , and  had  

som e as socia ted  nausea  with  tha t. 

Q And aga in , in  your experience , is  it typ ica l for pa tien ts  when  

they have  a  hys te roscopy, and  they go  to  the  recovery room  or the  PACU 

to  report ten  ou t o f ten  pa in? 

A Not typ ica lly.  Pa in  leve l can  be  very subjective , bu t ten  ou t o f 

ten  pa in  is  rea lly severe , and  tha t's  a  leve l tha t' s  h igher than  would  be  

expected  from  a  -- from  a  hys te roscopy. 

Q Now up  to  th is  po in t in  tim e  when Kim  has  had  the  

procedures  and  is  in  the  PACU, d id  you  see  any ind ica tion  in  the  records  

tha t anyone  had  advised  he r tha t she  had  a  perfora tion  during  the  

surgery? 

A No. 

Q So  I wan t to  ta lk about a fte r Kim  was  d ischarged  from  the  

hospita l. 

A Uh-huh. 

Q There  cam e a  tim e  when Kim  ca lled  an  am bulance  and  

re turned  to  the  em ergency room ; do  you  reca ll reviewing  those  records? 

X APPX001980



 

- 76 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Can  you  p lease  tu rn  to  Exhib it 1 a t 1211?  So  tha t's  

p robably in  another book the re  behind  you . 

A Going  to  be  in  there . 

Q Think you  can  close  tha t one  up , we 're  -- I th ink we 're  done . 

A You 're  done  with  th is  one?  Okay.  This  is  book one? 

Q Yes . 

A Okay.  I have  Exhib it 1 in  fron t o f m e. 

Q And we 're  looking  a t page  1211.   

A Page  1211? 

Q Yes .  There 's  a  Bate s  num ber in  the  bo ttom , no t the  page  

num ber, bu t the  Bates  num ber. 

A Let's  see  here . 

Q It will have  a  SRDH in  fron t. 

A SRDH, and  you  wan t 1211? 

Q Correct. 

A This  book only goes  to  730-som eth ing . 

Q Oops , so rry.  It will have  to  be  the  next vo lum e. 

A Getting  a  workout with  these  books .  Alm ost there .  Okay.  I 

have  SRDH1211 in  fron t o f m e. 

Q Grea t.  So  when Kim  was  taken  by param edics  to  the  

em ergency room , what sym ptom s  d id  she  report? 

A Abdom ina l pa in , and  nausea , vom iting , severe  pa in . 

Q And what d id  she  report to  the  pa ram edics? 

A That she  had  -- tha t she  jus t had  a  -- a  fib ro id  rem oval and  
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rem oval of the  u te rine  sep tum , and  a  D&C. 

Q Okay.  And how did  she  ra te  her pa in? 

A Let's  see  here .  Severe  abdom ina l pa in , e igh t ou t o f ten .  So   

-- I’m  sorry.  I d idn ' t lie .  I m isspoke .  Pa tien t s ta tes  pa in  ten  ou t o f ten , 

th roughou t the  abdom ina l pa in , and  then  a t -- in  the  ER it was  e igh t, bu t 

yeah .  So  when she  saw and  ta lked  with  the  param ed ics  she  was  

com pla in ing  of ten  ou t o f ten  pa in . 

Q Okay.  And where  d id  she  describe  the  pa in?  Where  was  it 

on  her body? 

A She  says  d iffuse , which  is  a ll ove r, th roughout the  abdom en 

and  upper pe lvis , and  she  sa id  it was  cons tan t, so  it wasn ' t go ing  away. 

Q Okay.  And so  I know th is  is  kind  of on  the  lower le ft o f th is  

report -- well, you  know what I' ll s trike  tha t.  Once  Kim  arrived  in  the  

em ergency room , what sort o f trea tm ent was  adm inis te red  to  her? 

A Lab  work was  drawn, IV flu ids , and  an  IV was  s ta rted  and  she  

was  ge tting  pa in  m edica tion .  

Q And do  you  reca ll the  nam e  of the  doctor who saw he r a t tha t 

tim e? 

A That was  Dr. Chris tensen , the  firs t ER. 

Q Okay.  Did  she  a lso  have  rad io logy? 

A And then  had  -- yeah , she  had  im aging  like  a  CAT scan , a  CT 

scan . 

Q And what d id  the  CT scan  show? 

A The  CT scan  showed what they ca ll pneum operitoneum  

which  is  a ir in  the  abdom ina l peritonea l cavity, and  flu id  -- increased  
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flu id  in  the  abdom ina l and  pe lvic cavity. 

Q Okay.  And so  what do  those  find ings  on  CT ind ica te  to  you? 

A They ind ica te  -- when  you  see  pneum operitoneum  tha t is  

s trongly susp icious  for a  perfora tion  to  an  in te rna l o rgan .  And flu id  -- 

the  couple  of th ings  tha t flu id  could  be , bu t it could  be  b lood .  It could  be  

flu id  from  hys te roscopy, bu t it defin ite ly could  be  bowel conten ts .  

Q And was  Ms. Taylor g iven  any further trea tm ent on  tha t trip  

to  the  em ergency room  or was  she  re leased? 

A She  was  re leased . 

Q Okay.  Do you  know where  she  went a fte r she  was  re leased? 

A She  wen t back hom e. 

Q Okay.  Did  the re  com e a  tim e  where  she  re turned  to  the  

em ergency room ? 

A Yes , severa l hours  la te r the  next day she  re turned  via  

am bulance  to  the  em ergency room  because  the  pa in  and  her nausea  and  

vom iting  continued .  

Q What em ergency room  doctor d id  she  see  a t tha t tim e? 

A That was  Dr. Frank tha t tim e . 

Q What was  Dr. Frank's  asses sm ent and  d iagnos is  o f he r? 

A Dr. Frank seem ed concerned  tha t there  was  a  bowel 

perfora tion . 

Q And d id  he  a ttem pt to  consult any o ther phys icians  on  tha t 

working  d iagnos is? 

A Yes .  So  the  -- as  done  in  m any m edica l g roups , the  pe rson  

who is  on  ca ll fo r the  group  fie lded  the  phone  ca ll and  rece ived  th is  
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in form ation  and  then  was  asked  fo r -- a t th is  -- it was  a  wom an, so  we  

asked  fo r her op in ion  on  wha t trea tm en t s teps  were  needed  next.   

Q Okay.  And do  you  rem em ber what her assessm ent was? 

A That it was  -- her as sessm en t was  tha t she  was  having  pa in  

bu t -- and  tha t she  had  a  u te rine  perfora tion  but d id  no t be lieve  tha t there  

could  have  been  a  bowel pe rfora tion . 

Q Okay.  And do  you  have  any reason , o r do  you  know why 

tha t docto r would  doubt there  was  a  bowel perfora tion? 

A J us t because  of how uncom m on it is .  

Q And so  what happened  next for Kim berly the  second tim e  

she  was  taken  to  the  hospita l? 

A She  eventua lly had  a  consulta tion  from  a  genera l surgeon  

who went over the  labs  and  the  CAT scan  report.   

Q Okay.  And what was  tha t -- 

A And exam ined  her and  de te rm ined  tha t -- her find ings . 

Q Do you  rem em ber tha t surgeon 's  nam e? 

A That's  Dr. Ham ilton .  

Q Okay.  And so  I'd  like  you  to  p lease  tu rn  in  Exhib it 1 -- it 

m ight be  in  the  o ther book or the  firs t book -- to  page  39? 

A Okay. 

Q All righ t.  What is  th is  exhib it? 

A This  is  Dr. Ham ilton , the  surgeon 's  fu ll opera tive  report o f the  

opera tion  on  Kim berly Taylor. 

Q What was  Dr. Ham ilton 's  p reopera tive  d iagnos is? 

A Periton itis .  Concern  for bowel perfora tion .  And then  a  
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recent u te rine  hys te roscopy for m enorrhagia  with  a  reported  u te rine  

perfora tion . 

Q Okay.  So  the  o ther day we  actua lly hea rd  tes tim ony from  Dr. 

Ham ilton  so  I don ' t want to  have  you  read  her en tire  opera tive  report 

aga in  word  for word , bu t can  you  expla in  to  the  ju ry very genera lly what 

type  of opera tion  was  perfo rm ed on  Ms. Taylo r and  what Dr. Ham ilton  

found? 

A Okay.   So  in itia lly, Dr. Ham ilton  m ade  a  sm all incis ion  and  

inserted  a  laparoscope  which  is  a  cam era  to  look ins ide  the  abdom ina l 

and  the  pe lvic cavity.  And then  when she  saw the  extens ive  leakage  of 

bowel conten ts  and  infection , converted  to  m aking  a  la rge r incis ion  so  

she  could  see  be tte r and  correct the  pe rfora tion .   

Q Okay.  And d id  she  find  a  u te rine  perfora tion? 

A She  noted  tha t she  saw an  an te rior u te rine  perfora tion .  

Q And what was  the  s ize  of it? 

A She  sa id  the  u te rine  perfora tion  was  about one  cen tim eter.  

Q Okay.  And how does  tha t com pare  to  the  s ize  o f the  

resectoscope? 

A That's  b igger than  the  resectoscope .  The  resectoscope  is  

about th ree-and-a-ha lf m illim eters .   

Q Okay.  So  the  one-centim ete r perfora tion  then  is  -- you  know, 

two-and-a-ha lf, th ree  tim es  g rea te r than  the  d iam eter o f the  

resectoscope? 

A About two-and-a -ha lf tim es  g rea te r than  the  d iam eter o f tha t 

scope , yeah . 
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Q All righ t.  And d id  Dr. Ham ilton  find  a  bowel perfora tion? 

A Yes .  Dr. Ham ilton  saw a  th ree -centim eter bowel perfo ra tion .  

Q Okay.  And where  was  th is  perfora tion  in  the  body? 

A She  says  it' s  -- it was  a  foo t from  the  te rm ina l ileum  so  tha t' s  

-- yeah .   In  the  m iddle  of the  -- 

Q Can you  jus t expla in  tha t in  lay pe rson 's  te rm s , what tha t 

m eans? 

A So  we have  our s tom ach, then  we  have  our sm all in tes tine , 

which  is  you  know, 20 fee t o f kind  of tangled  s tu ff, and  then  we  have  our 

b ig , la rge  co lon  and  th is  was  in  the  sm a ll in tes tine  up  h igh . 

Q And I'd  like  you  to  tu rn  now in  Exhib it 1 to  page  1121 and  22.   

You know, Doctor, I'm  sorry.  Befo re  you  do  tha t, I fo rgot to  ask you  -- 

A Yeah .  

Q When Dr. Ham ilton  found the  bowel pe rfora tion  what d id  she  

do  to  fix or repa ir tha t? 

A She  had  to  resect a  bowel on  e ithe r s ide  of the  perfora tion  

and  then  reconnect it toge the r aga in .  

Q Okay.  And how la rge  of a  portion  of the  sm all bowel d id  she  

have  to  rem ove? 

A I would  need  to  take  a  -- I th ink she  sa id  seven  to  n ine  

cen tim eters  is  what she  sa id , som eth ing  like  tha t.  

Q And so  can  you  p lease  tu rn  now to  Exh ib it 1, 1121? 

A 1121? 

Q Yes .  

A Okay.  1121.  
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Q Okay.  So  wha t's  th is  report? 

A This  is  the  pa thology report for the  rem oved bowel tha t had  

the  perfo ra tion  in  it. 

Q Now, the  pa thologis t, is  he  actua lly the re  during  the  surgery? 

A No.  Not in  th is  case , no . 

Q Okay.  How does  he  or she  ge t the  specim en then  tha t' s  

taken  out o f the  pa tien t.   

A Okay.  so  im m edia te ly a fte r it' s  taken  out o f the  pa tien t, it' s  

pu t in  a  fixa tive , like  form alin , which  is  liqu id  and  then  som eone  brings  it 

down to  the  lab  and  it s its  there  like ly un til the  next day when the  

pa thologis t will s ta rt exam in ing  it. 

Q What d id  the  pa thologis t in  th is  case  no te  in  h is  report? 

A He noted  sm all bowel m ucosa  with  m arked  acute  se ros itis  

and  a  gross ly identified  transm ura l defect with  m arked  acute  se ros itis .    

Q Oh gosh .  Can  -- 

A Yes . 

Q -- can  you  trans la te  tha t in to  norm al English  for people? 

A So  essen tia lly, what tha t m eans  is  in flam m ation  of the  lin ing  

a round the  in te s tine  and  a  transm ura l m eans  like  th rough the  wall so  a  

defect -- tha t' s  a  fancy way of saying  a  perfora tion .  

Q And so  how b ig  d id  the  pa thologis t record  the  perfora tion? 

A The  pa thologis t sa id  tha t the re  was  a  1.6-by-1.2 cen tim eter 

transm ura l defect.  So  1.6-by-1.2 cen tim eter perfora tion  o f the  sm a ll 

in tes tine .  

Q Okay.  And aga in , I' ll re fe r you  to  th is  report and  it m ight 
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re fresh  your m em ory.  How big  was  the  actua l portion  of sm all bowel 

tha t was  rem oved from  Kim berly? 

A Seven  centim eters  long . 

Q And does  the  pa tho logis t report te ll you  one  way or another 

whether the  perfora tion  was  caused  by a  therm al in jury as  opposed  to  

jus t a  puncture  or a  push  type  in jury? 

A The  pa thology report doesn ' t m ention  e ither way wha t was  

the  cause  of the  perfora tion . 

Q Is  there  any ind ica tion  in  the  record  tha t the  pa thologis t was  

asked  to  com m ent on  tha t is sue? 

A No. 

Q All righ t.  Docto r, what is  your op in ion  as  to  when  and  how 

the  u te rus  perfora tion  was  caused  during  Dr. Brill' s  surgery? 

A So  in  m y opin ion , read ing  the  ope ra tive  report, it seem s clear 

to  m e tha t the  perfo ra tion  occurred  during  resecting  with  the  ye llow 

peda l as  tha t's  the  firs t tim e  it' s  m entioned  righ t a fte r Dr. Brill pushed  the  

ye llow peda l,  he  no ted  a  perfora tion .  

Q And does  tha t m ean  tha t the  perfo ra tion  was  caused  with  

therm al energy or hea t? 

A Yes . 

Q And what is  your op in ion  as  to  how and  when the  bowel 

perfora tion  occurred? 

A I be lieve  the  bowel perfora tion  occurred  a t the  sam e tim e  as  

the  hea ted  re sectoscope  cu t th rough the  u te rus  and  continued  to  cu t in  

th rough the  bowel.  
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Q Okay.  Now, is  it poss ib le  to  have  what' s  ca lled  a  de layed  

therm al in jury? 

A It' s  poss ib le . 

Q Okay.  And so  what does  de layed  therm al in jury m ean? 

A So  tha t's  where  -- well, de layed  therm a l in jury of the  bowel 

would  be  where  you  burned  the  bowel bu t d idn ' t cu t th rough it.  But tha t 

burn  causes  so  m uch weakening  of the  wall tha t even tua lly it perfora tes  

on  its  own.  

Q Okay.  And in  th is  particu la r case , do  you  th ink th is  is  a  

de layed  therm al in jury or do  you  jus t th ink it was  perfora ted  with  the  

resectoscope  when the  resectoscope  firs t touched  it? 

A I th ink based  on  her sym ptom s and  her in itia l CAT scan  

find ings  and  everyth ing , it happened  righ t away with  tha t resectoscope .  

I don ' t th ink it was  a  de layed  in ju ry.  It was  a  cu t in to  the  bowel.  

Q Afte r he r bowe l resection  su rgery, how long  d id  Kim  have  to  

s tay in  the  hospita l? 

A She  s tayed  fo r n ine  days .   

Q What sort o f trea tm ent and  therap ies  d id  she  have  to  go  

through while  she  was  in  the  hosp ita l? 

A She  had  to  ge t pa in  m edica tion , frequent lab  work, IV flu ids .  

She  wasn ' t ea ting  very well and  in travenous  an tib io tics .   

Q When Kim  was  re leased  from  the  hospita l, what sort o f hom e 

care  d id  she  have  to  com ple te? 

A So  she  had  to  have  a  specia l IV p laced  in  her a rm  tha t goes  

a ll the  way from  the  ve ins  here  a ll the  way in to  your heart to  adm in is te r 
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long-te rm  antib io tics  tha t she  se lf-adm inis te red  a t hom e fo r four weeks .  

Q Doctor, I want to  ask you , you  know, som e of your op in ions  

on  s tandard  of care  now.  Do you  be lieve  tha t Dr. Brill fe ll be low the  

s tandard  of ca re  for a  phys ician  when he  perform ed the  orig ina l 

hys te roscopy and  fibro id  tum or resection? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  In  your op in ion , what a re  a ll the  ways  Dr. Brill fe ll 

benea th  the  s tandard  of care? 

A So  I th ink tha t no t be ing  sure  where  you 're  cu tting  in  regards  

to  ana tom y of the  u te rus  and  cu tting  in  an  a rea  tha t you  can ' t visua lize  as  

well as  you  need  to , us ing  the  resectoscope  in  a  way tha t was  unsafe  

tha t no t on ly cu t though the  u te rus  bu t cu t in to  bowel.  I don ' t th ink it' s  

s tandard  practice  to  pu t a  sharp  cu re tte  in to  perfo ra ted  u te rus  because  I 

th ink tha t could  open  yourse lf up  to  in juring  the  bowel if the  cure tte  was  

pu t in  the re  and  went th rough  tha t perfora ted  hole , and  it rea lly is  

s tandard  of ca re  when  you  perfora te  the  u te rus  us ing  an  energy device  

like  the  resectoscope  which  was  used  in  th is  ca se  no t iden tifying  -- o r no t 

eva lua ting  the  bowel m ore  care fu lly to  try and  find  an  in jury.  And by 

tha t it' s  s tanda rd  of care  while  us ing  an  energy device  to  do  a  

laparoscopy which  would  be  to  look from  ins ide  to  look a t the  bowel to  

be  sure  it was  in jured .  

Q Okay.  And do  you  have  any opin ions  regard ing  a le rting  the  

pa tien t o f the  in jury? 

A Certa in ly, g iving  the  pa tien t warn ing  s igns , you  know, tha t 

they had  a  u te rine  perfora tion , and  they m ight expect m ore  pa in  and  if 
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they do , to  -- you  know, to  ca ll and  be  seen  sooner and  to  m ention  tha t.  

But tha t would  be  som eth ing  I th ink the  pa tien t would  need  to  know. 

Q Okay.  So  we ' re  go ing  to  go  back and  ta lk about these  is sues  

one  by one .  So  the  firs t op in ion  tha t you  have  was  tha t Dr. Brill fe ll 

benea th  the  s tandard  of care  in  h is  cu tting  in  the  u te rus  and  in  us ing  the  

resectoscope ; is  tha t correct? 

A Correct.  

Q Okay.  Is  it your op in ion  tha t the  procedure  requires  a  doctor 

to  be  ab le  to  visua lize  where  he 's  cu tting  when he 's  us ing  the  

resectoscope? 

A Yes , visua liza tion  is  you  know, a  huge  key to  hys te roscopy.  

The  flu id  m anagem ent sys tem s , tha t sa line  d is ten tion  tha t we  ta lked  

about, tha t' s  a ll goes  th rough  a  pum p tha t he lps  provide  p ressure  to  

open  the  u te rus  b igger so  you  can  see  be tte r.  It tries  to  use  the  suction  

to  recircu la te  tha t flu id  and  ge t the  b lood  out because  you  can  see  som e  

b leeding .  So  visua liza tion  is  very necessary and  im portan t in  these  

procedures .  

Q In  your op in ion , is  it benea th  the  s tanda rd  of care  to  use  the  

cu tting  e lem ent of the  resectoscope  if you  can ' t clearly visua lize  what 

you 're  cu tting? 

A I th ink so  -- yes . 

Q And in  th is  case , regard less  of how the  u te rine  perfora tion  

was  perform ed , Dr. Brill d id  no t see  h im se lf actua lly perfo ra te  the  u te rus , 

d id  he? 

A He d idn ' t ind ica te  tha t in  the  no tes , so  no . 
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Q He ind ica ted  tha t he  was  cu tting  and  then  saw the  

perfora tion  la te r? 

A Yes , tha t' s  what he  sa id  in  the  no te . 

Q Does  the  s tandard  of care  a lso  require  the  docto r to  avoid  

cu tting  or push ing  so  hard  with  the  resectoscope  tha t it causes  a  

perfora tion  -- 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Objection , Your Honor.  Again , it' s  lead ing . 

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined .  

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q What does  the  s tandard  of care  require  as  to  the  use  o f force  

for these  ins trum en ts  in  the  u te rus? 

A I'm  not certa in  there 's  a  s tandard  of ca re  for tha t.  But 

certa in ly, be ing  carefu l and  cautious  during  cu tting  procedures  would  be  

necessa ry to  perform  these  sa fe ly.   

Q You m entioned  tha t you  fe lt Dr. Brill fe ll benea th  the  

s tandard  of ca re  in  the  use  of the  cure tte .  What does  the  s tandard  o f 

care  require  of a  phys ician  perform ing  a  hys te roscopy once  he  or she  

observes  a  perfora tion? 

A So  aga in , if it' s  a  s im ple , uncom plica ted  perfora tion  us ing  

b lunt ins trum ents , I th ink the  s tandard  practice  would  be  to  s top  any 

o ther procedure  you 're  go ing  to  do  so  you  don ' t in flict m ore  in jury.  And 

then , in fo rm ing  the  pa tien t o f the  risks  and  the  precautions . 

Q And the  use  of the  cure tte  by Dr. Brill a fte r he  had  a lready 

identified  a  pe rfora tion , is  tha t be low the  s tanda rd  of care  in  your 

op in ion? 

X APPX001992



 

- 88 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

A I don ' t th ink tha t's  s tandard  practice  to  pu t a  sha rp  

ins trum ent th rough  a  perfora ted  u te rus . 

Q And when Dr. Brill used  the  cure tte  a fte r the  perfora tion  was  

identified , does  he  have  visua liza tion  o f tha t cure tte? 

A No.  No.  So  when you  do  the  cure ttage , tha t is  ou ts ide  the  

body.  You 're  -- you 're  pu tting  it th rough the  cervix and  not see ing  where  

you 're  -- what you 're  cure tting .  So  a  sharp  -- a  sharp  ins trum ent in  the  

u te rus  where  you  wouldn ' t know where  it would  be . 

Q When there 's  a lready an  identified  perfora tion . 

A In  th is  ca se , where  there  was  a lready an  identified  

perfora tion . 

Q Okay.  You m entioned  tha t you  fe lt Dr. Brill fe ll be low the  

s tandard  of ca re  in  assess ing  the  pa tien t for further in jury beyond the  

u te rus  repa ir; is  tha t true? 

A I d id  say tha t. 

Q Okay.  What does  the  s tandard  of care  require  in  te rm s  of 

looking  fo r in jury to  the  bowel or o ther ad jacent o rgans  a fte r a  u te rine  

perfora tion  is  iden tified? 

A So  aga in , a fte r a  u te rine  pe rfora tion  with  a  -- with  a  -- with  a  

b lun t ins trum ent and  no  ene rgy and  no  cu tting , p recau tions  and  

inform ation  for the  pa tien t.  When you ' re  us ing  a  hea ted  energy device  

tha t can  cause  in jury to  the  bowel, you  need  to  de te rm ine  if tha t 

happened  or no t.  And tha t would  be  th rough the  lapa roscopy. 

Q Okay.  Does  use  of the  therm al re sectoscope  device , does  

tha t p resen t a  grea te r risk to  the  pa tien t o f in jury than  another 
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ins trum ent tha t doesn ' t have  -- doesn ' t com e with  hea t? 

A Yes .  Yes . 

Q Okay.  Expla in  for the  ju ry what laparoscopic exam ina tion  of 

the  bowe l would  include . 

A So  laparoscopy would  be  m aking  an  incis ion  a round the  

be lly bu tton  a rea  and  putting  a  cam era  th rough tha t a rea , u s ing  carbon  

d ioxide  gas  to  kind  of b low up  the  a rea  so  you  can  see , and  then  looking  

a t the  in tes tines  with  your -- with  your eyes . 

Q Okay.  And is  tha t s tandard  o f care  in  your op in ion? 

A Afte r a  perfora tion  with  ene rgy -- hea t, yes . 

Q Okay.  And d id  you  re ly on  any m edica l texts  o r trea tises  in  

order to  form  tha t op in ion? 

A Yes .  A couple  of the , you  know, early books  on  hys te roscopy 

and  som e of the  kind  of s tandard  textbooks  for opera tions  in  gynecology 

s ta te  jus t tha t, tha t further eva lua tion  of the  bowel with  laparoscopy is  

necessa ry with  a  pe rfora tion  like  Kim berly Taylor had . 

Q So  th is  isn ' t jus t som eth ing  you 've  com e up  with  today.  This  

is  som eth ing  tha t's  in  m edica l texts  on  how to  perform  th is  p rocedure? 

A Yeah . 

Q And once  there  is  a  u te rine  perfora tion , what do  you  th ink 

the  s tandard  of care  require s  the  doctor to  do  in  te rm s  of advis ing  the  

pa tien t o f tha t? 

A What -- I'm  sorry.  What's  the  s tandard  of care  in  te rm s  o f 

advis ing  her? 

Q Yes .  What should  be  done  by the  docto r to  advise  the  
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pa tien t tha t a  perfora tion  has  occurred? 

A Well, you  jus t te ll her tha t the  -- what happened  and  tha t 

they're  go ing  to , you  know, tha t the  procedure  tha t was  expected  to  be  

done  wasn ' t done .  And then , the  kind  of expected  sym ptom s tha t she  

would  have  a t hom e.  And then  the  precautions  of wha t would  m ake  her 

fee l like  there  was  som eth ing  m ore  se rious  go ing  on  and  what to  do  

about tha t. 

Q Now, I'd  like  to  ta lk a  little  b it abou t perfora tions  during  

hys te roscopy.  Som etim es , perfora tions  of the  u te rus  do  happen  during  

tha t p rocedure , don ' t they? 

A Yes . 

Q What is  it about th is  particu la r case , Ms. Taylor' s  case , tha t 

m akes  you  fee l Dr. Brill fe ll be low the  s tandard  of care , then? 

A Because  h is  u te rine  perfora tion  wasn ' t confined  to  the  u te rus  

and  went a ll the  way through  the  u te rus  in to  another o rgan  and  in jured  

it.  And then , fa ilu re  to  kind  of eva lua te  tha t s itua tion  and  d iagnose  it 

ea rlie r. 

Q Have  you  ever caused  a  bowel pe rfora tion  during  

hys te roscopy? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  Is  tha t cons idered  a  typ ica l risk of tha t p rocedure? 

A I th ink it' s  a  ve ry uncom m on risk of tha t p rocedure . 

Q Now, based  on  previous  tes tim ony in  th is  case  prior to  tria l, 

the  Defense  m ay sugges t tha t th is  was  no t a  the rm al in jury with  the  

resectoscope  while  the  resectoscope  was  activa ted , bu t ins tead , tha t the  
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tip  of the  resectoscope  s im ply pushed  through  the  u te rus . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Objection .  Your Honor, aga in , m is lead ing . 

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined . 

MR. BREEDEN:  I'm  jus t laying  a  founda tion .  I' ll a sk m ore  

genera lly, then . 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q What a re  a ll the  reasons  why you  th ink th is  in jury happened  

during  use  of the  therm al cu tting  device  as  opposed  to  the  b lunt tip  of 

the  ins trum ent? 

A Well firs t o ff, because  tha t's  when  it was  identified .  In  the  

opera tive  report, it was  s ta ted  tha t the  ye llow peda l was  used , and  then  

there  appeared  to  be  u te rine  perfora tion .  While  advancing  the  

resectoscope , you 're  supposed  to  be  ab le  to  see  where  you 're  go ing  well 

and  to  approach  the  u te rine  wall and  keep  push ing  seem s unlike ly.  It 

seem s m ore  like ly than  not tha t the  in jury occurred  during  the  resection  

with  the  -- us ing  the  ye llow peda l.   

Q And -- 

A And a lso  -- sorry.  But a lso , the  s ize .  The  s ize  of the  u te rine  

perfora tion  would  -- I would  expect it to  be  sm alle r if it was  done  by tha t 

3.5-m illim eter scope  -- resection  device  ra ther than  the  -- the  resu lt o f -- 

o f cu tting , which  would  m ake  a  b igger defect. 

Q When the  docto r is  us ing  the  resectoscope , if you  touch  the  

lin ing  of the  u te rus , can  a  doctor fee l tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q And can  you  describe  to  the  ju ry, like , how easy or how 
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d ifficu lt is  it to  perfora te  the  u te rus  in  tha t m anner?  What does  the  

doctor fee l? 

A So  you  would  fee l res is tance , which  is  the  -- you 're  h itting  up  

aga ins t the  u te rine  m uscle .  And you  should  notice  tha t, tha t res is tance . 

Q Dr. Brill d idn ' t lis t any such  res is tance  in  h is  ope ra tive  report, 

d id  he? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  Doctor, I jus t want to  change  top ics  here  brie fly.  You 

trave led  here  from  Californ ia  to  te s tify today, co rrect? 

A Yes . 

Q And you 've  previous ly reviewed m any m edica l records  and  

written  reports  rega rd ing  your op in ions  in  th is  case , correct? 

A I have . 

Q Okay.  And if you  weren ' t here  today and  doing  those  sorts  o f 

th ings , you  wou ld  be  see ing  pa tien ts  o f your own, righ t? 

A Yes . 

Q And so  d id  you  cha rge  for the  work tha t you 've  done? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And in  to ta l, you  know, as  of today, how m uch has  

been  charged  or how m uch is  owed  to  you  for the  work tha t you 've  

done? 

A Not including  today, bu t it' s  about, you  know, $6,000 to  da te . 

Q Okay.  And as  part o f your p repara tion  for th is  case , d id  you  

review the  records  of Hende rson  Hospita l? 

A Yes . 
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Q And do  those  include  the  opera tive  report o f Dr. Brill and  the  

PACU records? 

A Yeah . 

Q Do those  include  the  anes thes io logy records  of Dr. Yeh , who 

tes tified  before  you? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And do  you  find  tha t the  pos t-opera tive  trea tm ent tha t 

was  adm inis te red  a t the  hospita l was  reasonab le  and  necessary? 

A At the  -- a t the  surgery cen te r o r a t the  hosp ita l? 

Q At Henderson  Hosp ita l, a fte r the  hys te roscopy in  the  PACU. 

A I d id  ques tion  the  PACU nurse 's  decis ions  to  no t inquire  a s  to  

why the  pa tien t con tinued  to  have  such  bad  pa in  for such  a  pro longed  

period  of tim e  afte r the  procedure . 

Q But the  trea tm ent tha t was  adm inis te red , keep ing  he r and  

adm inis te ring  m edica tion , d id  you  find  tha t a ll to  be  reasonable  and  

necessa ry? 

A Well -- yes .  Reasonable  and  necessary g iven  what she  had  

done . 

Q Okay.  And do  you  be lieve  the  reason  the  hys te roscopy was  

unsuccess fu l was  due  to  the  perfo ra tion  caused  by Dr. Brill? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Aga in , it' s  lead ing , Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined . 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Why do  you  be lieve  the  hys te roscopy was  unsuccess fu l? 

A Because  there  was  a  com plica tion  crea ted  by Dr. Brill when  
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he  perfo ra ted  the  u te rus  and  the  bowel. 

Q Was  the re  any reason  o ther than  the  perfora tion  tha t tha t 

p rocedure  was  unsuccess fu l? 

A You couldn ' t continue  the  ab la tion  with  a  perfora tion .  But 

tha t would  have  been  a  s im ple  com plica tion , and  th is  was  d iffe ren t. 

Q Do you  be lieve  the  perfora tions  caused  the  pa in  and  

suffe ring  and  o ther sym ptom s tha t Ms. Taylor reported  a t Henderson  

Hospita l? 

A Yes . 

Q Did  you  a lso  review the  m ed ica l records  of Dignity Hea lth  or 

S t. Rose  Dom in ican  S iena  Hospita l? 

A Yes . 

Q And d id  those  include  the  records  of Dr. Frank? 

A Yes . 

Q Did  those  include  the  records  of Dr. Ham ilton? 

A Yes . 

Q Did  they include  the  records  of Dr. Ram an? 

A Yes . 

Q Did  those  include  the  records  of Dr. Lipm an? 

A Yes .  

Q Do you  reca ll what sort o f trea tm ent those  providers  

adm inis te red?  We ' ll s ta rt with  Dr. Frank. 

A What he  -- he  gave  her pa in  m edica tions  and  an tib io tics . 

Q But what type  of doctor is  he? 

A Oh, em ergency room  phys ician .  Sorry. 
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Q Okay.  And then , Dr. Ham ilton , wha t so rt o f docto r is  she  and  

what d id  she  do? 

A She 's  a  genera l surgeon , and  she  perfo rm ed the  bowe l 

resection . 

Q And sam e ques tion  for Dr. Ram an. 

A Dr. Ram an was  the  hospita lis t who m anages  the  da ily, kind  if 

inpa tien t care  of -- o f Ms. Taylor. 

Q And sam e ques tion  for Dr. Lipm an. 

A Lipm an was  an  infectious  d isease  specia lis t who  was  

consulted  by the  hospita lis t to  ta ilo r the  -- ta ilo r the  an tib io tics  to  Ms. 

Taylor based  on  the  type  of in fection  she  had . 

Q Okay.  And does  the  trea tm ent a t the  hosp ita l include  

rad io logy and  labs? 

A It d id . 

Q Okay.  And so  in  your op in ion , is  a ll the  trea tm ent tha t Ms. 

Taylor rece ived  a t S t. Rose  Hospita l rea sonable  and  necessary? 

A Yes . 

Q And was  it caused  by the  perfora tions? 

A Yes . 

Q And in  your op in ion , a re  the  sym ptom s tha t Ms. Taylor 

reported  during  her trea tm ent a t S t. Rose  Hospita l, a re  those  caused  by 

the  perfo ra tions? 

A Yes , they were . 

Q And you 've  te s tified  tha t you 're  aware  tha t Ms. Taylor had  to  

be  taken  by am bulance  to  the  hospita l twice .  Do  you  reca ll tha t? 
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A Yep.  Yes , s ir. 

Q And in  your op in ion , is  tha t am bulance  trea tm ent and  

transport to  the  hospita l rea sonab le  and  necessary? 

A Yes , it was . 

Q And in  your op in ion , was  tha t caused  by the  pe rfora tions  tha t 

Dr. Brill d id? 

A Yes . 

Q And are  the  sym ptom s, such  as  the  pa in  and  suffe ring  and  

o ther th ings  reported  on  those  reco rds , is  tha t causa lly re la ted  by those  

perfora tions? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Doctor, have  your op in ions  during  your tes tim ony 

here  today been  s ta ted  to  a  reasonable  degree  of m ed ica l p robability? 

A They have . 

Q Okay.  And do  you  be lieve  the  perfora tion  in juries , you  know, 

jus t as  sum m ary.  Do you  be lieve  the  perfora tion  in juries  we  d iscussed  

were  a  resu lt o f Dr. Brill fa iling  to  m eet the  s tandard  of care  for the  

hys te roscopy procedure? 

A Yeah . 

Q Do you  be lieve  a ll the  trea tm ent Kim berly had  a fte rward  to  

address  her in juries  was  re la ted  to  the  perfora tions? 

A Yes . 

Q Do you  be lieve  tha t care  was  reasonable  and  necessary? 

A It was . 

Q And do  you  be lieve  tha t Kim 's  sym ptom s, such  as  he r pa in  
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and  suffe ring  and  the  o ther sym ptom s  she  reported  during  her s tay, do  

you  th ink those  were  caused  by the  perfora tions? 

A Yes . 

MR. BREEDEN:  J us t a  m om ent, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Those  a re  a ll m y ques tions .  Thank you . 

THE COURT:  Cross -exam ina tion . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Thank you , Your Honor. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Good m orning , Dr. Berke .  How a re  you? 

A Good m orning . 

Q Good.  Now, you  and  I have  neve r m et before , righ t? 

A No. 

Q All righ t.  And Dr. Berke , you 're  here  to  tes tify aga ins t Dr. 

Brill, tha t h is  conduct fe ll be low the  s tandard  of care ; is  tha t righ t? 

A It is . 

Q And it' s  a lso  co rrect tha t you , yourse lf, have  not used  and  do  

not use  the  Sym phion  device  in  your practice , true? 

A True .  I u se  a  device  ca lled  the  MyoSure  tha t I fee l is  s a fe r.  It 

does  no t have  hea t associa ted  with  it. 

Q It' s  a  yes  or no  ques tion .  And  if you 're  -- if counse l wan ts  to  

ask a  fo llow-up  ques tion , it' s  a  yes  or no  ques tion . 

A Sure . 

Q You don ' t use  the  Sym phion  device , righ t? 
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A No. 

Q And you  don ' t have  any experience  us ing  tha t Sym phion  

device , true? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  No, tha t's  true? 

A I do  not have  any experience  us ing  the  Sym phion  device . 

Q Okay.  And in  fact, when  you  ta lked  about the  s ize  of the  

Sym phion  device , the  m easurem ent, you  sa id  the  Sym phion  device  is  

3.6 m illim eters , I th ink? 

A Yeah . 

Q Okay.  The  s ize  of the  resectoscope  is  a  little  b it la rger.  It' s  

6.3 m illim eters , correct? 

MR. BREEDEN:  I ob ject.  It m iss ta tes  the  evidence . 

THE COURT:  Counse l, app roach . 

[S idebar a t 11:08 a .m ., ending  a t 11:10 a .m ., no t transcribed] 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Let m e cla rify, Doctor.  The  hys te roscope  tha t the  Sym phion  

s lips  ins ide , the  s ize  of tha t is  -- a t the  end  is  6.3 m illim eters , correct? 

A I know there  a re  d iffe ren t s izes , bu t tha t's  a  norm al s ize , yes . 

Q Okay. 

A I would  agree  tha t tha t is  the  hys te roscope  part. 

Q Correct.  Now, Doctor, le t m e  go  back and  s ta rt with  a  little  

b it o f your background.  You 're  a  doctor of os teopa th  m edicine , correct? 

A Correct. 

Q All righ t.  And d id  you  apply to  any m edica l schools  o ther 
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than  os teopa th ic schools? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  And you  were  a  fe llow in  the  Am erican  College  of 

Os teopa th ic OBGYNs, correct? 

A Yes . 

Q That's  no t the  sam e  organiza tion  tha t Dr. Brill be longs  to , 

correct? 

A No.  It is  no t the  sam e. 

Q Okay.  And you  had  tes tified  in  your depos ition  -- do  you  

rem em ber having  your depos ition  taken  in  th is  case? 

A Yes . 

Q You tes tified  tha t u te rine  pe rfora tions  a re  a  known risk and  

com plica tion  of a  procedure  like  Dr. Brill perform ed, co rrect? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Object, Your Honor. 

THE WITNESS:  I te s tified  tha t a  -- 

THE COURT:  Hold  on  one  second.  Counse l, approach . 

[S idebar a t 11:11 a .m ., ending  a t 11:11 a .m ., no t transcribed] 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Doctor, do  you  reca ll having  your depos ition  taken? 

A Yes . 

Q All righ t.  Do you  reca ll tes tifying  tha t u te rine  perfora tion  is  a  

known risk and  com plica tion  of the  procedure  perform ed by Dr. Brill? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  You a lso  tes tified  tha t a  bowel perfora tion  is  a  known 

risk and  com plica tion  of th is  p rocedure , true? 
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A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And you  would  agree  with  m e tha t u te rine  

perfora tions  can  and  do  occur in  the  absence  of negligence?  

A Sim ple  ones , yes . 

Q Well, Doctor, you  would  agree  tha t they can  occur in  the  

absence  of negligence , righ t? 

A I would .  Yes , I agree . 

Q Okay.  And in  fact, you 've  had  a t leas t 10 to  20 pa tien ts  with  a  

u te rine  perfora tion , correct? 

A Yes . 

Q Ten  to  twenty pa tien ts  in  s ix hundred , by your es tim ate , 

p rocedures  tha t Dr. Brill perform ed?  S im ila r p rocedures? 

A Yes . 

Q So  you 're  aware  tha t's  a lm os t twice  as  m any u te rine  

perfora tions  and  ha lf as  m any hys te roscopies  a s  Dr. Brill? 

A I am  now. 

Q You -- we ll, you  read  Dr. Brill' s  depos ition , righ t? 

A Yes . 

Q You read  Dr. McCarus '  depos ition , d idn ' t you? 

A Yes . 

Q You 're  aware  tha t Dr. McCarus , who has  been  p racticing  

s ince  the  1980s  tes tified  he  has  done  thousands  of hys te roscopies  and  

has  had  a  dozen  or so  u te rine  perfora tions? 

A Yes , s ir.  I -- 

Q Okay. 
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A -- d id . 

Q Yet you  tes tified  in  your depos ition , you  be lieve  you  m et the  

s tandard  of ca re  in  each  of those  ins tances , righ t? 

A Yes . 

Q And it' s  because  you  tes tified  tha t you  fe lt tha t it was  

because  of the  b lun t end  of the  ins trum ent caused  the  perfora tion , 

correct? 

A I'm  not su re  what you  m ean . 

Q Well, do  you  reca ll your depos ition  tes tim ony? 

A Yes .  I don ' t -- what would  you  -- what do  you  m ean  about 

the  b lunt tip  of the  ins trum en t?  I'm  sorry.  If you  could  repea t the  

ques tion , I would  -- I would  answer it aga in . 

Q Sure .  I'm  happy to  ge t your depos ition  tes tim ony out and  

read  it from  your depos ition  if you  want. 

A So  a re  you  asking  d id  I tes tify, o r d id  I -- o r a t the  depos ition , 

d id  I s ta te  tha t the  perfora tions  tha t I caused  were  from  the  b lunt tip  of 

an  ins trum ent?  Yes . 

Q Okay. 

A I d id  say tha t. 

Q And you  neve r d id  a  laparoscopy with  regard  to  any of those  

u te rine  perfora tions , true? 

A I never needed  to  because  I d idn ' t suspect bowe l in jury. 

Q Okay.  And in  your perfora tions , those  occurred  in  the  

cervica l d ila ta tion  o f the  procedure , righ t? 

A Either the  cervica l d ila ta tion  or the  u te rine  sound ing . 
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Q Okay.   

A The  b lind  part o f the  procedure . 

Q What you 're  m easu ring , as  you  -- as  you  ta lked  about, the  

length  of the  u te rus? 

A Yeah , from  the  cervix to  the  top  of the  u te rus . 

Q All righ t.  And you  would  a lso  agree  with  m e tha t the  -- there  

a re  m any known risks  or com plica tions  of a  procedure , such  as  a  u te rine  

perfora tion , o r even  a  bowel perfo ra tion .  They' re  no t a lways  identified  

a t the  tim e  of the  procedure , correct? 

MR. BREEDEN:  I ob ject, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Counse l, app roach . 

MR. BREEDEN:  It' s  the  sam e issue  as  before , Your Honor, if 

you  want to  -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Go ahead .  Overru led . 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Do you  want m e to  rephrase  tha t? 

A Please . 

Q All righ t.  You would  agree  tha t there  a re  m any of the  known 

risks  and  com plica tions  of a  procedure , such  as  a  bowel perfora tion  o r a  

u te rine  perfora tion  a ren ' t a lways  identified  a t the  tim e  they occur? 

A Yes , I agree  with  tha t. 

Q Okay.  And jus t because  a  known risk occurs  doesn ' t m ean  

there  was  neg ligence , true? 

A That's  true . 

Q You ta lked  ea rlie r about how the  risk of a  u te rine  perfora tion  
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can  increase  with  a  b icorna te  u te rus ; is  tha t righ t? 

A Yes , any ana tom ica l varian t could  cause  an  increased  risk 

during  com plica tion  -- during  procedure . 

Q Right.  And you  -- and  you , I th ink, tes tified  here  today tha t .4 

percent o f wom en have  a  b icorna te  u te rus ; is  tha t righ t? 

A Yeah , tha t was  som e inform ation  I jus t looked  up , yes . 

Q Okay.  And in  Ms. Taylor's  case , she  had  both  a  b icorna te  

u te rus  and  a  re troverted  u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q Now, you  tes tified  tha t Dr. Brill' s  trea tm ent p lan , the  

trea tm ent recom m endations  tha t the  opera tion  tha t he  in tended  to  

proceed  was  appropria te , righ t? 

A Yes .  I on ly ques tioned  the  endom etria l ab la tion  part o f it 

because  I thought tha t was  d ifficu lt to  do  the  way he  was  go ing  to  try 

and  do  it, bu t tha t's  -- never go t done  anyway, so  it' s  a  m oot po in t. 

Q It' s  a  m oot po in t, righ t? 

A Yeah . 

Q And you ' re  no t -- you 're  no t te lling  the  ju ry or anyone  tha t 

th is  was  -- tha t the  procedure , the  endom etria l ab la tion  procedure  was  

perform ed? 

A No, exactly, it was  no t perfo rm ed. 

Q All righ t.  And Doctor, you , yourse lf, have  been  nam ed as  a  

defendant in  a  m alp ractice  case  on  a t leas t two occas ions? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Object, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Counse l, app roach . 
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[S idebar a t 11:17 a .m ., ending  a t 11:18 a .m ., no t transcribed] 

THE COURT:  All righ t.  Ladies  and  gentlem en, we 're  go ing  to  

go  ahead  and  take  our a fte rnoon b reak for lunch , and  I'm  going  to  have  

you  back here  a t -- le t' s  see , a t 12 -- le t' s  do  12:45.   

And during  the  break, you  a re  in s tructed  not to  ta lk to  each  

o ther, anyone  e lse  about any subject o r is sue  connected  with  th is  tria l.  

You a re  no t to  read , watch , o r lis ten  to  any report o r com m entary on  

anyth ing  connected  in  th is  case  by any m edium  of in form a tion , 

including , without lim ita tion , newspape rs , in te rne t o r rad io . 

You 're  no t to  conduct any research  on  your own  re la ted  to  

th is  case , such  as  consulting  d ictionaries , us ing  the  in te rne t, o r re fe rence  

m ateria ls , tes t any theory of the  case  including  any aspect o f the  case , o r 

in  any o ther way, inves tiga te  or lea rn  about the  case  on  your own. 

You 're  no t to  ta lk with  o thers , text o the rs , Twee t o the rs , 

Google  is sues  or any o ther kind  of book or com puter research  with  

regard  to  any issue , party, o r a tto rney involved  in  th is  case .  And fina lly, 

you 're  no t to  fo rm  or express  any opin ion  on  any subject connected  to  

th is  tria l un til the  ca se  is  fina lly subm itted  to  you .  And  I' ll s ee  you  back 

a t 12:45. 

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry.  Mem bers , p lease  close  

your no tepads  and  leave  them  on  the  cha irs . 

[J ury ou t a t 11:19 p .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  The  jury has  cleared  the  courtroom , Your 

Honor. 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 
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THE COURT:  Thank you .  You m ay be  sea ted .  We 're  ou ts ide  

the  -- 

MR. BREEDEN:  Should  the  doctor be  d ism issed , Your 

Honor? 

THE COURT:  I'm  about to  adm onish  h im  and  then  I' ll 

d ism iss  h im .  Thank you . 

You can  have  a  sea t.  We 're  ou ts ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry, 

and  I jus t wanted  to  adm onish  you , your tes tim ony is  ongoing , so  you 're  

no t to  speak about the  case  to  anyone  -- 

THE WITNESS:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- about your tes tim ony.  

THE WITNESS:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And then  I' ll s ee  you  a t 12:45, a fte r 

lunch . 

THE WITNESS:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  You m ay be  excused . 

All righ t.  So  le t' s  address  the  m os t recent ob jection .  

Counse l, on  cross -exam ina tion , is  a ttem pting  to  ge t in to  Dr. Berke 's  

m edica l m alpractice  cla im s , and  Mr. Breeden , you  objected .  Do you  

want to  go  ahead? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Well, yeah , I don ' t th ink tha t's  appropria te  to  

ask abou t cases , a llega tions  in  o ther ca ses , which  a re  essen tia lly 

hearsay, case  resu lts .  You know, a re  you  figh ting  the  case?  Did  you  take  

a  case  to  tria l?  Things  like  tha t a re  no t re levant.  I tried  to  th ink th is  

th rough.  I m ean , look, if they're  go ing  to  a rgue  tha t they can  im peach  

X APPX002010



 

- 106 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

h im  by saying , you  know, has  som eone  ever accused  you  o f m alpractice , 

then  I ought to  be  ab le  to  go  in to  tha t with  Dr. Brill.  Dr. Brill' s  go t s evera l 

p roceedings  aga ins t h im  in  the  pas t tha t we  ta lked  about during  h is  

depos ition . 

I don ' t -- I'm  worried  tha t the re  m ight be  a  way to  do  th is  

tha t's  pe rm iss ib le , bu t it ce rta in ly wouldn ' t be  if they're  go ing  to  say how 

m any tim es  have  you  been  sued?  You  know, what a re  the  resu lts  o f a ll 

the  lawsuits?  How m uch m oney d id  you  have  to  pay?  Et ce te ra , e t 

ce te ra . 

And especia lly, g iven  tha t if th is  p roceeding  is  s till ongoing , 

there  hasn ' t been  any find ing  or anyth ing  like  tha t, and  the  a llega tions  

a re  denied , I ce rta in ly don ' t th ink tha t's  re levan t. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And your response? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  I'm  going  to  le t Ms . Hall addres s  th is , s ince  

she  took Dr. Berke 's  depos ition . 

MS. HALL:  So  as  we  d iscussed  a t the  bench , Your Honor, 

when  I took Dr. Berke 's  depos ition  in  J u ly of th is  yea r, I ve ry specifica lly 

asked  h im , as  I do  p re tty m uch every re ta ined  expert in  a  m edica l 

m alpractice  case , I asked  h im  a t page  28 of h is  depos ition , le t' s  see , 

"Have  you  ever been" -- th is  is  line  16 o f page  28, "Have  you  ever been  

nam ed a s  a  defendant in  a  m edica l m a lpractice  case?  Answer:  Yes ." 

I asked  h im , "On how m any occas ions?"  He  to ld  m e, "One ."  

And I asked , "When  was  tha t?  What year?"  And he  sa id , "It' s  an  ongoing  

case ."  And he  went on to  g ive  m e som e  de ta ils  regard ing  tha t case .  And 

Mr. Breeden , during  the  depos ition , asked  tha t I no t ge t in to  too  m any 
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specifics , g iven  tha t it was  ongoing , bu t there  was  som e genera l 

d iscuss ion  of tha t m atte r, and  it continued  onto  page  29 of Dr. Be rke 's  

depos ition . 

The  d iffe rence  in  the  Defense 's  perspective , the  d iffe rence  

be tween  asking  tha t o f the  Defendant is  the  purpose  o f tha t would  be  to  

bring  in  o ther bad  acts  -- a lleged  bad  acts , to  try and  show action  in  

conform ity therewith , so  tha t would  be  im proper characte r evidence . 

There  was , and  I've  asked  m y office  to  em ail m e  a  copy of it.  

I apologize  I don ' t have  it in  fron t o f m e , bu t m y recollection  is  tha t the  

s tipu la tion  on  m otions  in  lim ine , which  was  subm itted  in  th is  case , 

included  a  s tipu la tion  am ong Pla in tiff and  Defense  tha t there  would  be  

no  re fe rence  to  any prior litiga tion  or cla im s  involving  the  defendants  in  

th is  case .  Tha t is  a  very d iffe ren t is sue  in  m y m ind  from  ques tion ing  a  

re ta ined  expert on  the ir litiga tion  h is tory because  it goes  to  the ir 

cred ib ility. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. MCBRIDE:  And Your Honor, I don ' t in tend  on  going  in to  

any grea t de ta il about -- ce rta in ly no t never to  inquire  in to  se ttlem ents .  

His  pos ition  on  those  sorts  o f th ings , it' s  very cursory based  on  wha t the  

in form ation  he  tes tified  to  in  h is  depos ition . 

THE COURT:  So  your in ten t is  jus t to  a sk have  you  -- do  you  

have  a  m edica l m alpractice  -- what is  your in ten t? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Yeah , bas ica lly, tha t, and  tha t it' s  -- tha t' s  it' s  

curren tly ongoing , tha t it' s  a  case  involving , you  know, jus t the  

in form ation  tha t he  provided  a t h is  depos ition . 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  Mr. Breeden . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Well, so  it' s  no t even  the  case  where  there 's  

been  som e sort o f find ing  of m alpractice  aga ins t h im .  It ha sn ' t been  

ad judica ted .  And J udge , I p rom ise  you , I am  cons tan t as  the  Northern  

S ta r.  When they approached  m e with  the  is sues  they have  with  Dr. Brill, 

I sa id , well, yeah , tha t's  -- it' s  rea lly no t re levan t tha t he 's  had  o ther 

lawsuits  o r a rb itra tions  where  he ' s  had  to  pay and  been  found tha t -- to  

have  been  negligen t, and  I'm  taking  the  sam e pos ition  here , a lthough it' s  

even  clearer, I th ink, with  th is  witness  s ince  there 's  been  no  find ing  tha t 

he 's  ever com m itted  m alpractice  before . 

And I would  a lso  say, if it' s  jus t be ing  o ffe red  to  a ttack h is  

cred ib ility, it' s  no t a s  if he  s ta ted  in  h is  depos ition , no , I've  never been  

sued  by anybody, and  then  they found a  lawsuit and  tha t was  un tru thfu l.  

So  they' re  no t -- it' s  no t to  cred ib ility of -- on  tha t exten t.  He  was  tru thfu l.  

And of course , the  scope  of d iscovery is  b roader than  what' s  po ten tia lly 

adm iss ib le . 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So  I do  have  a  concern  tha t there 's  no t 

been  a  find ing .  I th ink tha t tha t's  d iffe ren t if there  was  a  find ing  of a ctua l 

m alpractice .  I th ink tha t wou ld  be  a  little  m is lead ing  and  confus ing  for 

the  ju ry, so  I'm  going  to  sus ta in  the  ob jection . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Tha t's  fine , Your Honor.  Then  we 're  a t lunch  

until 12:45? 

THE COURT:  Yes .  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Thank you , Your Honor. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Thank you , Your Honor. 
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THE COURT:  Anyth ing  -- oh , wait.  Do we need  to  pu t the  

ob jections  on  the  record? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  I th ink it was  Mr. Breeden 's  continu ing  

objection  on  the  risk and  com plica tions . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yes .  Your Honor, th is  was  well d iscussed  in  

th is  tria l.  I've  m ade  severa l contem porous  [s ic] -- contem poraneous  

ob jections  with  the  risks  and  com plica tions .  Otherwise , the  on ly th ing  I 

can  reca ll a re  som e  objections  about m aybe  form  or phras ing  of the  

ques tion  tha t we  tried  to  clean  up . 

THE COURT:  Right.  And the re  was  one  specifica lly to  the  

s ize  of -- well, there  was  a rgum ent as  to  whether the  hys te roscope  o r the  

resectoscope , and  we d iscussed  a t the  bench , I th ink it was  jus t 

confus ion .  We sa id  he  would  rephrase  and  de te rm ine  which  ins trum ent 

he  was  ta lking  abou t.   

Anyth ing  furthe r on  tha t, Mr. Breeden? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  The  only -- where  I had  a  problem  

with  is  tha t Mr. McBride  represen ted  tha t the  resectoscope  -- and  the  

resectoscope  and  the  endoscope  with  the  cam era  and  eve ryth ing , those  

a re  d iffe ren t ins trum ents .  One  fits  ins ide  the  o ther.  Okay.  So  the  

endoscope , you  know, the  whole  shebang  with  the  cam era  on  it and  

everyth ing  is  som eth ing  like  6.3 m illim eters .  The  tip  of the  resectoscope , 

which  is  what the  Defense  is  cla im ing  caused  th is  in jury, is  on ly 3.5 or 

3.6. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. BREEDEN:  And there  hasn ' t been  any tes tim ony up  to  
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tha t po in t about the  s ize  of the  ins trum ents , o ther than  the  tip  of the  

resectoscope .  So  he  cam e out o f le ft fie ld  with  tha t m easu rem ent, and  

tha t's  no t an  accura te  m easurem ent.  So  if he  wants  to  lay a  foundation  

for what the  s ize  of those  ins trum ents  a re , tha t's  fine , bu t he  -- he  s ta ted  

a  -- a  fact tha t is  un true  as  to  the  s ize  of the  resectoscope . 

THE COURT:  Well, I m ean , to  be  fa ir, it' s  cross -exam ina tion .  

Obvious ly, he ' s  a llowed to  ques tion  like  tha t.  And if tha t was  wrong, I 

th ink the  witnes s  could  have  answered .  But then  I asked  h im  to  rephrase  

anyways , and  I th ink we  es tab lished  what we  were  -- ins trum ent we  were  

ta lking  about.  And obvious ly, you  can  clean  tha t up  on  d irect and  b reak 

it down however you  see  fit to  m ake  su re  tha t the  s ize s  a re  be ing  

d iscussed  a re  with  the  appropria te , e ither portion  of the  ins trum ent o r 

ins trum ent. 

Anyth ing  furthe r? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  No.  And Your Honor, I would  s im ply offe r 

tha t he  actua lly tes tified  there 's  d iffe ren t s izes , depending  on  those  -- the  

sys tem s  tha t a re  used . 

THE COURT:  Right.  And I be lieve  he  sa id  the  6.6 was  a  

norm al s ize . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Right. 

THE COURT:  Anyth ing  furthe r? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  I don ' t th ink so . 

THE COURT:  All righ t.  I' ll see  you  back a t 12:45. 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Thank you , Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you . 
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[Recess  taken  from  11:28 a .m . to  12:44 p .m .] 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 

THE COURT:  All righ t.  Le t's  ge t back on  the  record  in  case  

num ber A-18-772472-C, Taylor v. Brill.  Counse l for bo th  s ides  a re  

presen t and  we 're  ou ts ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry.  And any m atte rs  

before  we  ca ll the  ju ry back in?  

MR. BREEDEN:  Noth ing  from  Pla in tiff.  

MR. MCBRIDE:  And, Your Honor, no th ing  from  the  Defense . 

But jus t trying  to  ge t -- and  aga in , I jus t wanted  cla rifica tion  in  te rm s  of 

the  an ticipa ted  witnesses  a fte r Dr. Berke  jus t so  tha t we 're  on  the  sam e 

page .  

MR. BREEDEN:  We ' ll be  ca lling  Ms. Taylor a fte r Dr. Berke .  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Okay, perfect.  

MR. BREEDEN:  And I th ink tha t will take  us  th rough the  res t 

o f the  day.   

MR. MCBRIDE:  Perfect.  Awesom e .  Thank you .  

THE COURT:  All righ t.  Thank you .   

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry.  

[J ury in  a t 12:49 p .m .]  

THE MARSHAL:   The  ju ry is  a ll p resen t, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Thank you .  You m ay be  sea ted .  We 're  go ing  

to  continue  with  cross -exam ina tion  of Dr. Berke .   

THE MARSHAL:  So rry abou t tha t, J udge .   My rad io  was  

go ing  off.  I d idn ' t hear you .   

THE COURT:  Rem em ber Dr. Berke , you  unders tand  you 're  
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s till unde r oa th .  

THE WITNESS:  Yes .  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Go ahead .   

CROSS-EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Thank you , Your Honor.  Good a fte rnoon, Dr. Berke .  

A Good afte rnoon .  

Q Now I jus t had  a  couple  of th ings  to  fo llow up  on  -- regard ing  

your background.  You ind ica ted  you  were  board  certified , correct?  

A Yes .  

Q And obs te trician  and  gyneco logy.  

A Right.  

Q What group  board  certified  you? 

A It' s  the  AOBOG, the  Am erican  Osteopa th ic Board  of OB/GYN, 

Q Okay, no t ACOG? 

A ACOG is  no t a  certifying  boa rd .  

Q Right.  And not the  Am erican  Board  of Obs te trics  and  

Gynecology?  

A No.  They don ' t ce rtify people  who do  os teopa th ic 

res idencies .  

Q Okay.  And tha t's  what you  do?  

A That's  what I d id .  

Q All righ t.  Okay, so  Doctor, you 've  no t au thored  any 

textbooks  or m edica l a rticles  specifica lly on  m in im ally invas ive  

procedures  on  pa tien ts , correct?  
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A I have  not.  

Q Okay.  You a lso  have  not lectured  or taught o the r surgeons  

or OB/GYN's  across  the  coun try in  m in im ally evas ive  techn iques , 

correct?  

A No, I have  not.  

Q You sa id  tha t you  have  done  work for the  m edica l board , the  

Os teopa th ic m edica l board  in  Californ ia , correct?  

A Yes .  

Q But a t the  tim e  of your depos ition , the  las t tim e  you  d id  tha t 

was  ove r a  year ago , correct?  

A Yes .  

Q All righ t.  You ta lked  about, in  your d irect tes tim ony, you  

ta lked  about the  m edica l trea tm en t tha t was  provided  to  Ms. Taylo r.  But 

you  would  agree  with  m e tha t she  will no t require  any fu tu re  surge ries  

re la ted  to  the  in jury to  the  bowel, correct?  

A I can ' t s ay tha t with  com ple te  certa in ty, no .  

Q Well, do  you  rem em ber in  your tes t -- in  your depos ition  

where  you  tes tified , she  will no t require  fu ture  trea tm ent fo r the  in ju ry to  

her body?  

A Fa ir enough.  

Q Okay.  

A Can I add  a  com m ent or am  I on ly a llowed to  do  the  yes  o r 

no?  

Q Counse l can  a sk about tha t.  

A I apprecia te  tha t.  
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Q And I'm  jus t re fe rencing  your depos ition  tes tim ony.  

A In  regard  to  tha t in jury, no .  

Q Okay.  You tes tified  a lso  in  your depos ition  tha t you  

participa ted  in  a  conference  ca ll with  Ms. Taylor ea rly on  in  the  case  with  

her orig ina l a tto rney.  

MR. BREEDEN:  I ob ject, Your Honor.  May we approach? 

THE COURT:  Yes .  

[S idebar a t 12:52 p .m ., ending  a t 1:00 p .m ., no t transcribed ]  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q All righ t.  Dr. Berke .  

A Yes .  

Q So  do  you  reca ll having  a  conversa tion  where  you  

participa ted  in  where  Ms. Taylor was  on  the  phone  ca ll a round April 10 

of 2018?  

A I reca ll it happening .  I don ' t reca ll the  conten t.  

Q Okay.  Well in  fact, you  obta ined  inform ation  d irectly from  

Ms. Taylor a t tha t po in t abou t what she  cla im s  had  happened  to  her, 

correct? 

A I hones tly don ' t rem em ber the  conten t.  I rem em ber the  

conversa tion .  I rem em ber it was  happening .  My recollection  is  she  was  

kind  of in  the  background and  I d idn ' t rea lly rem em ber he r speaking  tha t 

m uch.  

Q Okay.  Did  she  speak a t a ll?  

A Did  she  speak a t a ll?  

Q Yeah .  
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A Yes , s ir.  Very brie fly.  

Q Okay.  And she  gave  you  inform ation  about what she  fe lt had  

happened  to  her as  well as  any com m unica tions  with  Dr. Brill?  

A I don ' t rem em ber the  conten t o f the  conversa tion . I don ' t 

reca ll her te lling  m e  how she  fe lt o r what she  thought happened . 

Q Okay.  Now the  op in ions  tha t you 've  rendered  in  your 

orig ina l decla ra tion  in  th is  ca se  as  well as  the  subsequent reports  tha t 

you 've  prepa red  in  th is  case  -- and  there 's  a  to ta l o f th ree  reports , 

including  your orig ina l decla ra tion , correct?  

A Yes .  

Q You tes tified  tha t you  though t tha t Bruce  Hutch ins , the  nurse  

in  the  PACU a t Henderson  Hospita l and  Hende rson  Hospita l had  fa llen  

be low the  s tandard  of care , correct?  

MR. BREEDEN:  I' ll ob ject, Your Honor.  This  has  been  

d iscussed  in  m otions  previous ly.  Renew the  ob jection .  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Sam e ru ling .  Thank you .  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q You can  answer.   

A I sa id  tha t I thought tha t the  PACU nurse , Bruce 's  handling  of 

the  pa tien t was  be low the  s tandard  of care  because  he  d idn ' t no tify Dr. 

Brill tha t th is  pa tien t was  requiring  increased  pa in  m edica tion  and  hadn ' t 

le ft the  PACU for seven  hours , and  tha t' s  Hende rson  Hospita l.  So  yes , 

tha t's  the  sam e, one  in  the  sam e.  

Q Do you  need  your decla ra tion  to  re fresh  your reco llection  of 

the  specific a llega tions  you  m ade  aga ins t doctor --  
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A Sure . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Okay.  Your Honor, can  I approach?  

THE COURT:  Yes .  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q It' s  on  page  five  of your report.  And you  can  see  it 

h igh ligh ted  there .  And could  you  read  for m e what your op in ions  were  

under th is  sworn  decla ra tion  unde r pena lty of perjury a fte r your review 

of the  m edica l records  in  th is  case , wha t your op in ions  were  about Bruce  

Hutch ins , R.N. and  Henderson  Hospita l?  

A It' s  exactly what I ju s t sa id .  Tha t Bruce  Hutch inson  and  

Henderson  Hospita l fa iled  to  contact Dr. Brill and  obta in  an  OB/GYN 

consult desp ite  the  excess ive  pa in  m ed ica tion  g iven  to  Ms. Taylor, which  

is  the  firs t th ing  I s ta ted .  Secondly, fa ilu re  to  contact Dr. Brill p rior to  

re leas ing  Ms. Taylo r.  Those  kind  o f go  toge ther.  They d idn ' t ask h im  

anyth ing .  And then  re leas ing  Ms. Taylor desp ite  her ongo ing  abdom ina l 

pa in .  

Q Okay.  And a lso , you  go  on  to  a lso  criticize  the  care  and  

trea tm ent provided  by Dr. Todd Chris tensen  a t S t. Rose  Hospita l, righ t?  

MR. BREEDEN:  Sam e objection , Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Thank you .  Go  ahead .  

THE WITNESS:  Yes .  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Okay.  Can  you  read  what you  wro te  about those  op in ions  

tha t you  form ula ted  in  your decla ra tion  sworn  under pena lty of perjury 

a fte r reviewing  a ll the  m edica l records  in  the  case?  
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A That I thought tha t Dr. Chris tensen  fa iled  to  m a in ta in  

consulta tion  with  an  OBGYN, or a  surgeon  based  upon the  CT find ing .  

And tha t he  re lease  Ms. Taylor desp ite  the  CT report even  though she  

had  ongo ing  severe  pa in .  And he  d idn ' t ru le  ou t a  m ore  se rious  in ju ry 

with  a  CT scan  tha t was  cons is ten t with  in tes tina l perfora tion  or in ju ry, 

which  she  had .   

MR. MCBRIDE:  Okay.  And can  I approach , Your Honor?  

THE COURT:  Yes .  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q And, Doctor, do  you  reca ll -- Dr. Berke , do  you  reca ll a lso  

tes tifying  a t your depos ition  tha t you  s till he ld  those  sam e opin ions?  

A Yes .  

Q Okay.  So  with  rega rd  to  the  -- your depos ition , you  would  

agree  tha t you  can ' t quantify the  s tanda rd  of care  by the  s ize  of a  

perfora tion?  Do you  rem em ber te s tifying  to  tha t?  

A I don ' t rem em ber saying  those  words , bu t if you  say I sa id  it 

and  if you  want to  show it to  m e, I will be lieve  tha t is  sa id  tha t.  

Q Well aga in , do  you  want m e to  show it to  you? 

A No.  It' s  fine  if you  got it, so .  

Q And your depos ition  was  no t taken  tha t long  ago , was  it?  

A No.  

Q But you 've  reviewed it before  today, co rrect?  

A Yes .  

Q All righ t.  You 've  reviewed it a t leas t m ore  than  once  before  

today, co rrect?  
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A Probably, yes .  

Q Okay.  So  you  a lso  tes tified  tha t it' s  m ore  how the  perfora tion  

occurred , correct?  

A I'd  like  to  be  a llowed to  expand on  tha t if tha t's  what I sa id .  

Q And you ' ll ge t tha t opportun ity with  your counse l.   

A Grea t.  You know what I sa id .  It' s  in  b lack in  white .  If I sa id  

tha t, then  I d id , bu t I'd  like  to  expound on  tha t w ith  m y counse l.  

Q Okay.  But tha t's  what you  te s tified  to  in  your depos ition , 

true?  

A Yes .  

Q Okay.  And, Doctor, you  a lso  agreed  tha t if a  perfora tion  

occurs  with  the  b lunt end  of an  ins trum ent, the  s tandard  of care  does  no t 

require  a  laparoscopy be  perform ed, correct?  

A Correct.  

Q That -- in  fact, tha t's  what happened  in  your ins tances  of the  

s ix to  ten  u te rine  pe rfora tions  tha t you  had , righ t?  

A Correct.  

Q Now you  a lso  don ' t know the  s ize  o f the  perfora tion  tha t 

occurred  a t the  tim e  of Dr. Brill' s  surge ry, true?  

A We only have  what Dr. Ham ilton  sa id  she  saw, and  she  sa id  it 

was  it was  th ree  cen tim eters .  

Q Well we  actua lly have  the  surg ica l pa thology, which  is  

actua lly m ore  accura te  representa tion  of the  s ize  of tha t perfora tion , 

true?  

MR. BREEDEN:  Object.  

X APPX002023



 

- 119 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

THE WITNESS:  I d isagree  tha t tha t's  m ore  accu ra te .  

THE COURT:  Hold  on .   What's  the  bas is  o r do  you  want to  

approach?  

MR. MCBRIDE:  I' ll withdraw it.  

THE COURT:  Thank you .   

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q You d isagree  with  the  surg ica l pa thologis t who 's  exam ining  

the  s ize  of th is  perfora tion  both  gross ly and  m icroscopica lly and  us ing  

m easurem ents  to  de te rm ine  the  s ize  of the  perfora tion?  

A I be lieve  tha t the  living  tis sue  tha t Dr. Ham ilton  saw would  

represent m ore  accura te ly what the  s ize  of the  perfora tion  was  than  a  

m easurem ent done  a fte r it' s  been  s itting  a ll n igh t in  flu id  and  is  now jus t 

th is , you  know life le ss  tis sue  in  a  ja r.  

Q Okay.  And Dr. Ham ilton  was  here  and  tes tified  yes te rday.  

You 're  aware  of tha t?  

A I was  aware  tha t she  tes tified .  

Q Okay.  And Dr. Ham ilton , when  I asked  her the  ques tions  

about how she  m easured  the  s ize  of tha t perfora tion  a t the  tim e  of her 

opera tion , she  jus t eyeba lled  it.  Are  you  aware  of tha t?  

A Yes .  

Q Okay.  She  d idn ' t take  ou t any m easurem ent device  o r too ls  

to  m easu re  the  exact s ize  of the  pe rfora tion .  You 're  aware  of tha t?  

A Yes .  

Q Okay.   Now, Doctor, you  had  ta lked  about your op in ions  tha t 

you  fe lt tha t Dr. Brill needed  to  do  a  further laparoscopy to  de te rm ine  the  
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exten t o f any in jury to  po ten tia l bow el o r o ther o rgans , righ t?  

A Yes , and  there  was  an  in jury to  the  bowel.  

Q Okay.  And -- bu t aga in , in  te rm s  of the  laparoscopic 

approach  tha t you  m entioned , you  described  it as  m aking  one  incis ion  to  

do  a  laparoscopic approach , true?  

A In itia lly one .  If you  want m e to  g ive  the  technica l de ta ils  o f 

laparoscopy, you  can  m ake  one  up  to  four inches  depending  on  needing  

to  access  d iffe ren t parts  o f abdom en.  But yeah , you  s ta rt with  one .   

Q And in  fact, if you 're  --  

A Dr. Ham ilton  s ta rted  with  one .  

Q Okay.  And in  fact, if you 're  go ing  to  m anipula te  the  va lve  to  

run  the  va lve  to  de te rm ine  if there 's  any perfora tions , m ore  than  one  or 

m ultip le  perfora tions , you  would  need  additiona l ins trum ents  and  

d iffe ren t ho lts , ports  bas ica lly or incis ions  to  m anipula te  the  va lve  with  

those  ins trum ents , correct?  

A Yes .  Probably th ree  to ta l.  

Q Now you  don ' t wan t -- you  would  agree  tha t you  don ' t want 

to  perform  a  procedure  un le ss  you  have  a  clin ica l ind ica tion  to  do  so , 

correct?  

A I do  agree .  

Q Okay.  And the re  a re  risks , po ten tia l risks  and  com plica tions  

involved  in  pe rform ing  lapa roscopy, true?  

A True .  

Q In  fact, bowel perfo ra tions  is  one  o f them , righ t?  

A Yes .  
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Q In  fact, it' s  one  of the  m os t com m on experienced  

com plica tions  o r risks  of a  laparoscopic procedure , true?  

A True .  

Q I'm  sorry?  

A Yes , true .  

Q I wanted  to  show you the  opera tive  no te  of Dr. Brill rea l qu ick 

tha t you  ta lked  about.  Le t m e  find  it.  Court's  indulgence .  Oh, here  it is .  

It' s  page  42.  In  fact, I jus t had  it in  fron t o f you . I th ink you  closed  the  

book.  It' s  page  42 o f Exhib it 5.  It' s  a lso  on  the  screen  if you  want to  look 

a t it tha t way.  And th is  is  the  sam e ope ra tive  report tha t you  were  

re fe rring  to  with  Pla in tiff' s  counse l, correct?  

A Yes .  

Q And you  noted  the  da te  of the  s igned  report by Dr. Brill, and  

it was  s igned  a t 10:08 the  day of the  su rgery, 04/26/2017? 

A Yes .  

Q I want you  a lso  to  -- d id  you  have  an  unders tand ing  tha t the  

PACU nurse  who te s tified  he re  yes te rday, tha t he  had  access  or wou ld  

have  had  access  and  tes tified  he  would  have  access  to  the  opera tive  

report o f Dr. Brill a fte r, som e tim e afte r 10:08 a .m . in  the  m orning?  

A I th ink with  an  e lectron ic m edica l record , yes .  Tha t would  

have  been  inform ation  you  would  have  as  soon  as  it' s  s igned .  

Q Right.  And he  a lso  tes tified  tha t he  m akes  it regula r p ractice  

to  review the  opera tive  no te s  as  soon  a s  the ir ava ilab le?  

MR. BREEDEN:  I' ll ob ject.  Miss ta tes  te s tim ony.  

THE COURT:  Counse l approach .  
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MR. MCBRIDE:  Sure .  

[S idebar a t 1:12 p .m ., ending  a t 1:14 p .m ., no t transcribed ] 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q I want you  to  a ssum e a  hypothe tica l.  I want you  to  a ssum e 

tha t hypo the tica lly tha t Mr. Hutch ins  te s tified  yes te rday tha t if the  

opera tive  report was  in  the  records , tha t h is  cus tom ary practice  wou ld  

have  been  to  review it, if ava ilab le . 

A Okay. 

Q Okay.  Given  tha t in form ation , you  wou ld  agree  with  m e tha t, 

assum ing  tha t hypo the tica l, tha t Mr. Hu tch ins  would  have  seen  tha t 

pos te rior com plica tion  perfora tion  of the  u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q So  I wan t you  to  look a t the  report for the  record .  And le t m e  

see  if I can  zoom  ou t.   

Okay.  And do  you  reca ll the  se ries  of ques tions  tha t Mr. -- tha t 

counse l -- Pla in tiff' s  counse l was  a sking  you  throughout your tes tim ony, 

where  he  was  asking  you  what d id  -- what happened  next a fte r you  were  

read ing  the  report? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q What -- is  tha t a  yes? 

A Yes . 

Q What Dr. Brill d id  next.  Do you  reca ll tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And, in  fact, when  he  ta lks  abou t th is  portion , Dr. Brill, 

in  h is  no te , "I was  ab le  to  p lace  a  Sym phion  hys te roscope  in to  the  cavity 
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and  was  ab le  to  visua lize  what appeared  to  be  the  sep tum ."  Did  I read  

tha t accu ra te ly? 

A Yes . 

Q He says , "I u sed  the  ye llow peda l and  began  to  cu t what 

appeared  to  be  the  sep tum  ante rio rly," correct? 

A Yes . 

Q And then  when he  asked  -- when  Ms. -- when  Pla in tiff' s  

counse l asked  you  to  read  what d id  he  do  next, he  le ft ou t, "As  I was  ab le  

to  s lowly advance  the  cam era  du ring  th is  p rocess ."  Do you  reca ll tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q And in  fact, the  fact is  tha t you  read  "d id  appea r to  be  u te rine  

perfora tion ," correct? 

A Yes . 

Q So  based  on  Dr. Brill' s  descrip tion  of what he  was  do ing  

im m edia te ly before  d iscove ring  the  perfora tion , he  was  s lowly 

advancing  the  cam era , correct? 

A That's  what h is  no te  says .  Tha t's  correct. 

Q Now are  you  aware  -- you  saw the  surg ica l pa thology tha t 

Pla in tiff' s  counse l showed you  a  second ago .  And us ing  the  Sym phion  

device , a re  you  aware  tha t the  Sym phion  device  has  a  can is te r a ttached  

to  it, o f which  a lso  conta ins  a ll o f the  co llection  o f surg ica l specim en tha t 

a re  cu t and  taken  during  the  procedure? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q Is  tha t a  yes? 

A Yes .  Yes .  It -- there 's  a  -- it' s  des igned  for tha t.  Yes . 
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Q Okay.  And you  would  agree  tha t tha t surg ica l can is te r then  

ge ts  transfe rred  -- the  en tire ty of tha t can is te r then  ge ts  transfe rred  to  

surg ica l pa thology for an  eva lua tion  exam ina tion , true? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  So  tha t would  include  any and  a ll portion  of the  

resectoscope , when  the  resectoscope  was  actua lly active ly cu tting  any 

m ateria l, correct? 

A Yes . 

Q And in  fact, th is  is  the  HH156.  It m entions  an  aggrega te  

m ucoid  m ateria l m ixed  with  b lood  clo t and  red-tan  tis sue  aggrega ted  in  

4.25 -- 4.2 tim es  2.5 tim es  .5 cm .  Tha t's  the  en tire ty of the  specim en tha t 

was  co llected  from  the  Sym phion , correct? 

A Yes . 

Q And in  th is  report from  the  m ateria ls  subm itted  a t bo th  the  

m icroscopic exam ina tion  and  gross  exam ina tion , there 's  no  evidence  of 

any bowel m ateria l? 

A True .  True . 

Q And, in  fact, I th ink one  of your criticism s  is  tha t Dr. Brill 

should  no t have  used  the  cu re tte  fo llowing  the  d iscovery of the  u te rine  

perfora tion , true? 

A That's  true . 

Q Okay.  And I th ink -- jus t so  it' s  clear, Doctor, you 're  no t 

saying  tha t Dr. Brill inserted  the  cu re tte  in to  the  a rea  o f the  u te rine  

perfora tion . 

A No.  I'm  saying  there 's  a  risk of do ing  tha t by us ing  it. 
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Q But you 're  no t saying  tha t occurred  in  th is  ins tance? 

A I'm  saying  I don ' t know if tha t occu rred  in  tha t ins tance . 

Q Okay.  Well, in  fact, if tha t occurred , the  m ateria l tha t was  

taken  from  tha t -- and  tha t's  one  of your theorie s  in  th is  ca se , tha t tha t 

po ten tia lly could  have  caused  the  in jury to  the  bowel, true? 

A That's  one  of the  theories . 

Q Right.  One  of the  -- o f seve ra l theories  tha t you  have , righ t? 

A I don ' t -- I'm  not sure  I have  severa l theories , bu t yeah . 

Q Okay.  One  of a t lea s t two theories , righ t, as  to  how th is  could  

have  occurred? 

A The  m ost -- tha t' s  the  less  like ly theory. 

Q Okay.  But you  ind ica te  tha t, neve rthe le ss , tha t's  your 

criticism  of h im  us ing  the  cu re ttage? 

A Is  tha t he  could  have  caused  an  in jury by us ing  it.  Yes . 

Q And you  have  no  evidence  tha t an  in jury to  the  bowel 

occurred , correct? 

A I have  a  -- I do  have  evidence  tha t in jury to  the  bowel 

occurred . 

Q From  the  cure ttage . 

A Correct.  I don ' t have  evidence  of which  way it occurred . 

Q Exactly.  It -- 

A Although I do  have  m ore  evidence  than  no t, especia lly  in  

th is  part o f the  no te  where  he  m entions  tha t a fte r he  s ta rted  cu tting , he  

no ted  the  perfo ra tion . 

Q Doctor, he  d idn ' t in sert the  cure tte  in to  the  perfora tion .   
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A No.  I m eant th is  was  a  -- I was  ta lking  about the  

resectoscope . 

Q Okay.  Lis ten  to  m y ques tion  if you  can .  He  d id  no t insert the  

cure tte  ins ide  the  a rea  of the  u te rine  pe rfora tion , true? 

A I don ' t know the  answer to  tha t. 

Q Well, in  fact, he  took the  cure tte  and  applied  it in  a  to ta lly 

d iffe ren t loca tion  from  the  a rea  of the  u te rine  perfora tion , true? 

A That's  what he  in tended  to  do . 

Q Okay.  Tha t's  what described  in  h is  report too , correct? 

A Yes . 

Q And tha t' s  what he  tes tified  to  in  h is  depos ition , true? 

A True , bu t no  one  could  see  th is  happen ing . 

Q Okay.  Doctor, if he  had  in jured  the  bowel with  the  cu re tte  

tha t you ' re  cla im ing  was  neg ligently applied  in  th is  ca se  fo llowing  the  

d iscovery of the  u te rine  perfora tion , you  would  expect to  find  bowel a t 

the  m ate ria l tha t would  have  been  sen t to  pa tho logy on  tha t. 

A I th ink tha t's  an  in te res ting  -- it' s  an  in te res ting  way to  look a t 

it, tha t you  m ight.  But I'm  not sure  the  pa tholog is t was  looking  for 

som eth ing  like  tha t, bu t I unders tand  what you 're  saying . 

Q And you  would  agree  tha t tha t evidence  would  have  been  

there  po ten tia lly? 

A No.  I don ' t th ink it' s  a  g iven  tha t it would  be  there .  I ge t your 

po in t, bu t you  don ' t --  

Q You have  not --  

A You don ' t a lways  ge t back what you  th ink you 're  go ing  to  ge t 
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back. 

Q Okay.  Doctor, you  have  never p racticed  as  a  surg ica l 

pa thologis t in  your career, righ t? 

A No.  No, I have  not. 

Q Okay.  You 're  no t here  to  te s tify to  the  s tandard  of ca re  tha t -- 

o f a  surg ica l pa thologis t and  what they saw and  what they should  have  

seen  or d idn ' t s ee , true? 

A That's  true . 

Q In  fact, your practice  is  lim ited  to  Rivers ide , Ca liforn ia , 

correct? 

A And the  surrounding  a reas , yeah . 

Q All righ t.  So  fo llowing  up  with  tha t rea l qu ick, le t m e  jus t 

read  through m y no tes .   

You reca ll repa iring  -- p repa ring  your report da ted  Augus t 16, 

2021, where  you  s ta ted  it would  be  poss ib le  tha t the  in jury to  the  bowel 

could  have  occurred  from  the  b lunt end  of the  resectoscope? 

A That is  poss ib le .   

Q Okay.  Now you a lso  tes tified  tha t -- we ll, you  would  agree  

tha t Dr. Brill appropria te ly counse led  Ms. Taylo r on  the  risks  and  

com plica tions  of the  procedure  before  she  unde rwent the  procedure , 

true? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Object, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Sam e  ru ling .  Thank you . 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q You can  answer. 
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A It' s  com m on practice , and  I assum e tha t he  d id .  Yes . 

Q Okay.  Well, you  saw it in  h is  no tes , co rrect? 

A Yes .  Yes .   

Q And you  a lso  saw h is  -- read  h is  depos ition  tes tim ony where  

he  --  

A Yes . 

Q -- tes tified  to  tha t, correct? 

A Yes . 

Q Under pena lty of pe rjury, righ t? 

A Right.   

Q That's  som eth ing  you  do  on  a  regula r bas is , righ t? 

A Yes . 

Q Now were  you  to ld  yes te rday about the  conversa tion  tha t Dr. 

Ham ilton  had  with  Ms. Taylor before  her surge ry? 

A No.   

Q I want you  to  a ssum e, hypothe tica lly speaking , tha t Dr. 

Ham ilton  tes tified  under sworn  tes tim ony tha t Ms. Taylor was  the  one  

who advised  her tha t she  had  had  a  u te rine  pe rfora tion  be fore  the  

surgery tha t Dr. Ham ilton  pe rform ed, okay?  If tha t's  the  case , you  would  

agree  with  m e  tha t Ms. Taylor was  in fo rm ed of a  u te rine  perfora tion  a t 

the  tim e  of her surgery with  Dr. Brill, co rrect? 

A I can ' t a ssum e tha t.  Po ten tia lly, Dr. Chris tiansen  to ld  her she  

had  a  u te rine  perfora tion .  I don ' t know.  I don ' t know who to ld  her. 

Q Okay. 

A And I have  no  way of knowing  tha t. 
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Q You d idn ' t see , you  d idn ' t see  any records  in  Dr. 

Chris tiansen 's  no te s  tha t he  no tified  he r tha t she  had  a  u te rine  

perfora tion , d id  you? 

A No, I d idn ' t see  tha t. 

Q Okay.  So , aga in , I don ' t want you  to  as sum e ce rta in  th ings  

tha t a ren ' t here .  I want you  to  base  your op in ions  on  the  records  tha t 

you 've  reviewed. 

A Okay. 

Q Did  you  see  anyth ing  in  the  records  from  Dr. Chris tiansen  

tha t he  in form ed he r tha t he r u te rus  had  been  perfora ted? 

A No, no t by Dr. Chris tiansen  nor Dr. Brill.  

Q Well, you 're  aware  tha t Ms. Taylor tes tified  tha t she  spoke  to  

Dr. Brill in  the  recovery room ?  You read  tha t? 

A I have  -- I don ' t reca ll read ing , bu t I'd  be  happy to  read  it. 

Q Wouldn ' t tha t be  im portan t to  you  if tha t's  one  of your 

criticism s  tha t you  have  of Dr. Brill, is  tha t he  should  have  inform ed her 

of th is?  And wouldn ' t it have  been  im portan t to  you  to  look a t her 

depos ition  to  see  what she  tes tified  today? 

A Like  I s a id , I can  look a t it righ t now and  we can  ta lk about it, 

bu t I don ' t reca ll tha t he  d id  ta lk to  her about tha t. 

Q Okay.   

A She  has  tes tified  tha t he  d idn ' t ta lk --  

Q I'm  ta lking  about Ms. Taylo r a t th is  po in t. 

A Okay. 

Q Okay.  Dr. Brill tes tified  he  d idn ' t reca ll.  Do you  reca ll tha t 
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tes tim ony? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Do you  reca ll what Ms . Taylor te s tified  to  about a  

d iscuss ion  with  Dr. Brill fo llowing  the  p rocedure? 

A I'm  sorry.  I'm  saying  I don ' t reca ll. 

Q Now you 're  aware  tha t Dr. -- tha t Bruce  Hutch ins , a t no  tim e , 

based  on  h is  records  and  I' ll represent to  you  h is  tes tim ony yes te rday -- 

tha t a t no  tim e  d id  he  ever ca ll Dr. Brill with  any concerns  or com pla in ts  

o f severe  pa in  or any issues  with  Ms. Taylor the  en tire  tim e  tha t she  was  

in  the  PACU.  You 're  aware  of tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q And tha t' s  why you ' re  critica l o f Mr. Hutch ins , true? 

A The  care  he  p rovided , yes . 

Q And you  had  -- I th ink had  acknowledged  tha t Mr. Hutch ins  

fe ll be low the  s tandard  of ca re  because  he  should  have  contacted  Dr. 

Brill before  Ms . Taylor was  u ltim ate ly d ischarged? 

A Yeah .  I th ink he  have  had  a  h igher index of susp icion  tha t 

there  was  a  bowel in jury, and  he  d idn ' t.   

Q And you  --  

A Or an  in jury and  he  d idn ' t. 

Q And you  would  a lso  agree  tha t Mr. Hutch ins  never con tacted  

Dr. Yeh  with  any concerns  of excess ive  pa in?   

A I d idn ' t s ee  anyth ing  there  tha t he  d id  tha t e ithe r. 

Q Now a  phys ician  such  as  yourse lf has  a  du ty to  re ly on  the  

nurses  in  the  PACU, as  well as  on  the  floor, o r to  advise  them  of any 
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changes  in  the  pa tien t's  condition , true? 

A True .  

Q That -- I m ean  they' re  the  eyes  and  ea rs  of the  doctor when  

you 're  no t there , co rrect? 

A Yes . 

Q You have  to  have  the  ab ility to  re ly on  them  to  -- in  the ir 

background, tra in ing , and  experience , to  iden tify s igns  and  sym ptom s of 

po ten tia l com plica tions  fo llowing  su rge ry, correct? 

A Correct.  

Q And the  criticism s  o f Dr. Chris tiansen  tha t we  ta lk about and  

S t.  Rose , you ' re  aware  tha t, aga in , you  fee l tha t Dr. Chris tiansen  and  S t. 

Rose  fe ll be low the  s tandard  of ca re , co rrect? 

A Yes . 

Q And tha t you 're  aware  tha t a t no  tim e  d id  Dr. Chris tiansen  

ever a ttem pt to  ca ll Dr. Brill?  Are  you  aware  of tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q And fina lly, doctor, you  would  agree  tha t the  en tire ty of your 

op in ions  here  today a re  based  on  the  benefit o f h inds ight, correct? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Object.   

THE COURT:  Overru led . 

THE WITNESS:  This  happened  in  the  pas t.  Yes .  So  --  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q In  fact, you  knew going  in to  the  case  what the  a llega tions  

were  and  tha t the  a llega tions  were  tha t Ms. Taylor had  suffe red  a  u te rine  

perfora tion  and  a  bowel perfora tion  fo llowing  the  hys te roscopy by Dr. 
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Brill, correct?  

A That was  the  com pla in t, yeah . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Tha t's  a ll the  ques tions  I have . 

THE COURT:  Redirect.   

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Doctor, you  were  asked  som e ques tions  in  your 

cross -exam ina tion  about the  Sym phion  device  here  or the  resectoscope . 

A Uh-huh. 

Q Do you  use  a  d iffe ren t m ode l of re sectoscope  in  your 

practice? 

A Yeah .  I use  a  d iffe ren t one .  It' s  ca lled  a  MyoSure , and  it' s  

d iffe ren t.  It ha s  a  reciproca ting  b lade  but -- and  does  no t u se  any energy, 

m eaning  it doesn ' t use  any hea t.   

Q Are  you  fam ilia r with  the  Sym phion  sys tem  and  how it 

works? 

A From  what I've  read  about it in  prepara tion  for th is  tria l. 

Q Okay.  Did  you  th ink tha t, fo r som e  reason , jus t because  you  

don ' t use  th is  particu la r m odel in  your practice , d id  you  fee l tha t you  

weren ' t qua lified  to  com m ent on  the  Sym phion  device? 

A I fee l like  I'm  qua lified  to  com m ent on  it. 

Q Okay.  Do you  reca ll hearing  tha t the  Defense 's  re ta ined  

expert a lso  does  no t use  the  Sym phion  device?  Do you  reca ll read ing  

tha t? 

A I do  reca ll.  Yes . 
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Q Okay.  You were  asked  som e ques tions  --  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Be la ted  objection .  It m iss ta tes  the  evidence  

in  th is  ca se , bu t go  ahead . 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Okay.  Doctor, you  were  asked  som e ques tions  about 

m easurem ents .  And I th ink there  was  a  little  confus ion  tha t I want to  

clear up  for the  ju ry.  So  th is  ins trum en t here  is  ca lled  the  resectoscope , 

correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Now does  it have  a  cam era  and  a  ligh t on  it? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  There ' s  another ins trum ent tha t has  a  cam era  and  a  

ligh t on  it, correct? 

A Yeah .  Tha t's  ca lled  a  hys te roscope .   

Q The  hys te roscope .  Is  tha t a lso  ca lled  an  endoscope? 

A Not -- tha t jus t m eans  a  scope  tha t you ' re  looking  ins ide  

som eone 's  body with .  So  the  ones  -- it could  be  ca lled  tha t too , bu t it' s  

m ore  accura te ly a  hys te roscope . 

Q Okay.  So  the  resectoscope  goes  in s ide  the  hys te roscope? 

A It goes  th rough a  -- yes .  It goes  th rough the  s leeve  o f the  

hys te roscope . 

Q And then  the  resectoscope  peaks  ou t the  end  of the  

hys te roscope .  Is  tha t --  

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  So  we  need  to  ta lk about the  d iffe ren t d im ens ions .  If 
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we  ta lk about the  very tip  of the  resectoscope , how m any m illim eters  is  

tha t? 

A That's  supposed  to  be  a t 3.5 m illim eters . 

Q Okay.  And if you  proceeded  so  fa r, like  if you 're  caus ing  a  

perfora tion , and  you  actua lly go t the  po in t where  the  resectoscope  was  

in  the  hys te roscope , and  you  pushed  the  hys te roscope  with  the  cam era  

and  eve ryth ing  through a  pe rfora tion , so  how m any centim eters  or 

m illim eters  would  tha t be? 

A Probably a t leas t a  cen tim eter.   

Q Okay.  Do you  be lieve  tha t jus t because  som eth ing  is  a  risk of 

a  surgery, tha t if it happens , it is  no t negligent? 

A I don ' t be lieve  tha t.  Yeah . 

Q Okay.  So  to  you , the  m ere  fact tha t som eth ing  is  ca lled  a  risk 

of a  procedure  does  no t bear on  whether the  doctor u sed  a  require d  

skilled , tra in ing , and  experience  when perform ing  the  procedure? 

A Yes , I agree  with  tha t. 

Q Okay.  You spoke  earlie r about s im ple  perfora tions  du ring  

th is  p rocedure .  Describe  aga in  for the  ju ry what a  s im ple  perfora tion  

would  be? 

A Well, I m ean  s im ple  or uncom plica ted  would  m ean  tha t the  

pa tien t d idn ' t su ffe r any long-las ting  e ffects .  So  a  s im ple  perfora tion , 

you  perfora te  the  u te rus .  You te ll the  pa tien t it happened .  You exp la in  

to  her the  precautions , and  she  doesn ' t need  to  do  anyth ing  e lse  except 

for po ten tia lly com e back and  have  a  p rocedure  repea ted .  Whereas  a  

m ore  com plica ted  one  would  involve  the  involvem ent of o ther docto rs , 
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ca t scans  and  bowe l resections  and  IV an tib io tics .  I th ink tha t's  a  way to  

kind  of s epara te  those  two by the  degrees  of the ir severity. 

Q Okay.  What m akes  what occurred  in  th is  particu la r ca se  a  

m ore  com plex perfora tion  to  you  tha t is  benea th  the  s tandard  of ca re?  

Describe  it fo r the  ju ry. 

A The  severity of the  in juries  tha t Ms. Taylor expe rienced . 

Q We ta lked  a  little  b it about laparoscopic surgery to  

inves tiga te  a round a  u te rine  perfora tion .  Do you  reca ll tha t top ic? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And so , if the  -- well, le t m e  ask you .  Based  on  the  

opera tive  report, d id  it appear tha t Dr. Brill knew exactly how he  had  

perfora ted  the  u te rus  a t the  tim e? 

A I don ' t -- he  d idn ' t s ta te  tha t he  knew how he  d id  it, bu t he  

s ta ted  when he  no ticed  it. 

Q Do you  th ink it wou ld  have  been  reasonable  for h im  a t the  

tim e to  be  concerned  tha t he  d id  it with  the  therm al cu tting  part o f the  

resectoscope? 

A Absolu te ly. 

Q And if you  suspected  tha t as  a  phys ician  perform ing  th is , 

what aga in  does  the  s tanda rd  of care  require? 

A To eva lua te  the  in te rna l o rgans  with  laparoscopy. 

Q Can you  do  tha t -- can  you  eva lua te  the  ad jacen t o rgans  from  

a  cam era  s till ins ide  the  u te rus? 

A Looking  through  the  u te rine  perfora tion , no .  I don ' t th ink you  

ge t a  good  enough p icture  of what you  needed  to  see . 
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Q Okay.  So  you  would  have  to  perform  another laparoscopic 

eva lua tion , so  you  could  see  on  the  ou ts ide  of the  u te rus? 

A To be  tho rough, yes . 

Q You ind ica ted  tha t som e perfora tions  happened  during  a  

b lind  part o f hys te roscopy.  So  expla in  to  the  ju ry what the  b lind  parts  o f 

th is  p rocedure  a re . 

A So  I th ink we  d iscussed  befo re , when  you  d ila te  the  cervix to  

ge t the  sound and  to  m easu re  how b ig  it is , you  a re  us ing  ins trum en ts  

jus t from  the  ou ts ide .  You 're  no t looking  a t anyth ing  except for the  

pa tien t.  And then  when you 're  u s ing  the  u te rine  sound to  see  how b ig  

the  cavity is , you 're  pu tting  a  p iece  of ins trum en ta tion  through there  

without a  cam era .  Those  -- tha t m eans  b lind .  But when  you 're  do ing  it 

with  a  cam era , you ' re  actua lly watch ing  yourse lf en te r the  cavity. 

Q And in  your op in ion , d id  the  perfora tion  of Ms. Taylor, d id  

tha t occu r during  a  b lind  part o f the  procedure  o r a  part o f the  procedure  

where  the  cam era  was  in  use? 

A Again , a ll we  have  is  -- a ll I have  is  -- to  go  off is  the  ope ra tive  

report, tha t it never m entioned  the  perfora tion  until the  resection  device  

was  used . 

Q So  do  you  th ink it' s  m ore  like ly than  not tha t th is  perfora tion  

happened  during  a  tim e  when the  cam era  was  in  use? 

A I be lieve  tha t is  true . 

Q Do you  be lieve  you  have  s im ila r tra in ing  and  experience  to  

Dr. Brill? 

A I be lieve  so . 
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Q The  type  of hys te roscopies  you  pe rform , a re  they d iffe ren t in  

any subs tan tive  way from  what Dr. Brill does? 

A No. 

Q You were  asked  som e ques tions  earlie r about fu ture  

trea tm ent of Ms . Taylor.  And you  had  m ore  to  add , bu t the  ques tion  had  

ended . 

A Uh-huh. 

Q And so , I wanted  to  ask you  now.  What m ore  d id  you  have  

to  add  about fu ture  trea tm ent or sym ptom s tha t Ms. Taylor m ight 

experience? 

A I don ' t th ink the  bowel in jury she  sus ta ined  is  go ing  to  cause  

her any m ore  problem s, because  tha t p iece  of bowel with  the  ho le  in  it is  

gone , because  it was  rem oved, and  the  o ther two  p ieces  of bowel were  

connected  toge ther.  But anytim e you  have  a  b ig  surgery like  tha t, where  

you  have  an  incis ion , you 're  a t risk for adhes ions  or s car tis sue  tha t 

could  cause  problem s in  the  fu ture , such  as  bowel obs truction .  In  fact, 

p rior abdom ina l surgeries , the  num ber one  cause  is  a  bowel obs truction .  

So  th ings  like  tha t a re  th ings  tha t she 's  a t risk fo r in  the  fu ture .  And  

tha t's  what I m eant by tha t one .  Yeah . 

Q And do  you  be lieve  Ms. Taylor m ay experience  som e 

abdom ina l d iscom fort with  bowel m ovem ents  in  the  fu ture? 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Objection .  This  goes  beyond the  scope  of h is  

reports  as  well as  h is  depos ition . 

MR. BREEDEN:  I can  show you the  report where  th is  is  

addressed  and  --  
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THE COURT:  Absolu te ly.  Approach .  

[S idebar a t 1:36 p .m ., ending  a t 1:38 p .m ., no t transcribed ] 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Doctor, I'm  going  to  rephrase  m y las t ques tion  a  little  b it.  

A Okay. 

Q Do you  th ink it' s  m ore  like ly than  not, tha t in  the  fu ture , Ms. 

Taylor w ill continue  to  expe rience  m ild  abdom ina l d iscom fort, as  a  resu lt 

o f the  pe rfora tions? 

A I th ink tha t's  no t ou t o f the  ques tion . 

Q Well, do  you  th ink it' s  m ore  like ly than  not? 

A I do .   

Q You were  asked  som e ques tions  on  cross -exam ina tion  about 

your criticism s  of the  care  tha t Bruce  Hutch ins  p rovided  fo r Ms. Taylor.  

Do you  reca ll tha t? 

A I do . 

Q Okay.  Do you  be lieve  tha t Mr. Hutch ins  caused  the  

perfora tions? 

A No. 

Q Do you  be lieve  tha t any de lay in  d iagnos is  tha t Mr. Hutch ins  

caused  was  the  reason  why Ms. Taylor would  need  bowel resection  

surgery? 

A No, I th ink with  the  u te rine  perfora tion  tha t occu rred , she  

would  have  needed  d iscove ry if it was  d iscovered  im m edia te ly or la te r, 

yes . 

Q Okay.  So  hypothe tica lly then  I guess  I would  say --  
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MR. BREEDEN:  Well, no , le t m e  rephrase  it.   

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q In  your op in ion  then , what sort o f dam ages  d id  Mr. Hutch ins '  

fa ilu re  to  find  th is  ou t fas te r, cause  Ms. Taylor? 

A Only the  pa in  tha t she  expe rienced . 

Q Only a rguably som e additiona l pa in  and  suffe ring? 

A Som e additiona l pa in  tha t she  would  have .  

Q Okay.  Now I have  a  s im ila r ques tion  fo r Dr. Chris tensen  and  

S t. Rose .  Did  Dr. Chris tensen  cause  e ither of the  perfora tions  in  your 

op in ion? 

A No, he  d id  no t. 

Q And d id  Dr. Chris tensen  and  S t. Rose , d id  they cause  the  

need  for bowel -- fo r bowel resection  surgery, o r bowel repa ir surgery? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  So  a t m os t, in  your op in ion , what a re  the  add itiona l 

dam ages  tha t Ms. Taylor m ight have  sus ta ined  because  of Dr. 

Chris tensen  or S t. Rose? 

A J us t the  de lay in  do ing  the  surgery and  the  additiona l pa in  

tha t she  dea lt with  while  she  waited  to  go  back to  the  E.R. the  second 

tim e . 

Q And do  you  rem em ber, we  ta lked  abou t de lay.  How long  d id  

Ms. Taylor see  Mr. Hutch ins? 

A She  was  there  for s evera l hours , seven  hours  or som eth ing  

like  tha t. 

Q And do  you  reca ll how m any hours  she  saw Dr. Chris tensen  
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a t S t. Rose? 

A She  was  in  the  E.R. I th ink fou r or five  hours . 

Q There  was  som e tes tim ony earlie r abou t the  d iffe rence  

be tween  Dr. Ham ilton 's  report o f the  perfora tion  be ing  three  cen tim eters  

and  a  la te r pa thologis t report tha t m easured  it a t I be lieve  1.6 

cen tim eters .  Again , for the  ju ry's  benefit, why do  you  be lieve  tha t the  

surgeon  a t the  tim e  of surge ry, tha t the ir m easu rem ent or es tim ate  

m ight be  d iffe ren t from  the  pa thologis t? 

A Because  surgeons  -- I've  never s een  a  surgeon  take  a  ru le r 

ou t and  m easu re  anyth ing  tha t they're  looking  a t to  iden tify how b ig  it is .  

They're  pre tty well tra ined  a t looking  a t som eth ing  and  saying  how b ig  

they th ink it is  . She  was  looking  a t living  tis sue  from  a  fresh  in jury tha t 

had , you  know, b lood  flow to  it and  everyth ing  like  th is .  And I th ink the  

d iffe rence  be tween  what she  saw and  what the  pa thologis t saw cou ld  be  

expla ined  by it be ing  put in to  a  conta iner with  a  fixa tive  tha t sa t 

overn igh t and , you  know, was  no  longe r a live . 

Q And so  when the  pa thologis t sees  it, there 's  no  m ore  b lood  

flow in  the  sam ple , righ t? 

A No, no t a t a ll.   

Q And you  say it' s  in  a  fixa tive .  I m ean  expla in  to  the  ju ry what 

tha t m eans .  

A Som eth ing  to  prese rve , like  form aldehyde  or a  form alin  tha t 

they use  now days .  But yes , it' s  som eth ing  to  keep  it fresh  so  it won ' t, 

you  know, ro t overn ight.  And then  you  can  exam ine  it m ore  close ly 

when you  ge t to  work.  
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Q So  in  your -- in  your experience  with  tis sue  sam ples  like  tha t, 

will they shrink a fte r they've  been  taken  out o f the  body? 

A It' s  a  -- I im agine  so . 

MR. MCBRIDE:   We ll, I'm  going  to  ob ject.  Tha t lacks  

foundation .  It' s  beyond the  scope  o f th is  witness '  expertise .  He 's  no t a   

pa thologis t.   

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined .  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Can  we a lso  s trike  tha t answer? 

THE COURT:  Yes .  

MR. MCBRIDE:  Thank you . 

BY DR. BREEDEN:   

Q In  your op in ion , during  Kim 's  hys te roscopy, was  there  a  

clin ica l ind ica tion  fo r Dr. Brill tha t he  should  laparoscopica lly explo re  

ad jacent o rgans? 

A Yes . 

Q Adjacent to  the  u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q And what were  the  clin ica l ind ica tions  for tha t? 

A That he  caused  a  u te rine  pe rfora tion  while  us ing  an  

e lectricity device  tha t causes  hea t and  can  dam age  o ther o rgans . 

Q Do you  have  any reason  to  be lieve  tha t Bruce  Hutch ins  knew 

of any perfora tions  to  Ms. Taylor? 

A I don ' t -- I don ' t have  knowledge  tha t he  knew. 

Q Do you  have  any reason  to  be lieve  tha t Dr. Chris tensen , the  

firs t em ergency room  doctor, ever knew tha t there  were  perfora tions  

X APPX002046



 

- 142 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

caused  during  the  p rocedure? 

A I th ink only un til a fte r h is  CAT scan  cam e back.  Afte r the  CAT 

scan  cam e back. 

Q So  you  were  asked  som e ques tions  about a  portion  of Dr. 

Brill' s  te s tim ony where  he  m entions  tha t a fte r us ing  the  ye llow peda l, he  

was  advancing  the  cam era , and  tha t's  when  he  saw the  pe rfora tion .  Do 

you  reca ll tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q Based  on  h is  report, do  you  th ink the  perfora tion  happened  

with  the  cam era , o r do  you  th ink it happened  prior to  h im  advancing  the  

cam era? 

A I be lieve  it happened  prior to  h im  advancing  the  cam era .   

Q With  the  resectoscope? 

A With  the  resectoscope .   

Q And do  you  be lieve  tha t it is  m ore  like ly tha t it happened  

while  the  therm al cu tting  part was  activa ted , o r jus t because  the  end  of it 

was  pushed  through the  u te rus? 

A The  therm al part. 

Q Which  way do  you  th ink it would  be  eas ie r to  cause  such  a  

perfora tion? 

A With  the  cu tting  device . 

Q If you  -- hypothe tica lly, if you  advance  th is  in to  the  u te rus , to  

the  po in t tha t the  tip  of the  resectoscope  touched  the  wall o f the  u te rus , 

does  the  surgeon  fee l tha t? 

A Yeah , I th ink we  d iscussed  earlie r tha t the  u te rus  is  m uscle .  
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So  you  can  fee l the  res is tance  up  aga ins t the  wa ll when  you 're  -- when  

you 're  touching  it, yeah . 

Q And does  Dr. Brill' s  report anywhere  ind ica te  tha t he  fe lt 

res is tance  from  the  tip  like  tha t? 

A No. 

Q And does  it ind ica te  anywhere  tha t, fo r exam ple , m aybe  he  

fe lt som e  res is tance  and  then  lack of re s is tance  suddenly, as  if he  had  

jus t caused  a  perfora tion? 

A No, he  d idn ' t m ention  tha t. 

Q We ta lked  about a  pa thologis t report aga in  when  the  ce lls  

form  the  cure ttage  were  ana lyzed .  Do you  reca ll tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q And there  were  no  -- counse l s ta ted  tha t there  was  no  s too l 

in  those  sam ples . 

MR. MCBRIDE:  Objection .  Miss ta tes  the  -- m iss ta tes  the  

ques tion .  

MR. BREEDEN:  Le t m e  see  if I can  rephrase .   

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q If we  assum e tha t Dr. Brill caused  the  perfora tions  by cu tting  

with  the  therm al e lem ent of the  resectoscope , a ll the  way through the  

u te rus  and  in to  the  sm all bowel, do  you  th ink you  wou ld  abso lu te ly see   

en te ric conten ts  in  those  sam ples? 

A I don ' t th ink by not see ing  them , tha t tha t p roves  he  d idn ' t do  

it tha t way.  So  I th ink tha t you  could  ge t a  s itua tion  where  you  d idn ' t see  

it.  
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Q Now, the re  was  b lood  or b lood  clo t in  those  sam ples , 

correct? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Did  you  see  any ind ica tion  in  Dr. Brill' s  report tha t he  

encounte red  b leed ing  while  he  was  resecting  the  white  tis sue? 

A I d id  no t s ee  tha t in  h is  report tha t he  sa id  tha t. 

Q And in  fact in  the  opera tive  report, does  he  report b leed ing  a t 

a ll? 

A No. 

Q Do you  th ink it' s  m ore  like ly than  not, tha t the  b lood  in  those  

sam ples  cam e  from  the  perfora tions? 

A Yes .  Either the  perfora tion  of the  u te rus  or the  bowel, yes . 

Q There  was  som e ques tions  a sked  of you  whethe r it was  

poss ib le  tha t Dr. Brill actua lly caused  these  perfora tions  with  the  use  of 

the  cure tte  a fte r he  s topped  use  of the  resectoscope .  Do you  reca ll tha t? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  Is  it your tes tim ony tha t there 's  another m ore  like ly 

scenario  in  your op in ion? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And what is  the  scenario  tha t is  m ore  like ly than  not in  

your op in ion? 

A It' s  m ore  like ly than  not tha t he  d id  -- the  perfora tion  

happened  earlie r, because  tha t's  when  he  saw it, m uch  earlie r.  So  

anyway, he  no ticed  the  perfo ra tion  when he  was  us ing  the  ye llow peda l, 

which  is  when  the  perfora tion  occurred , which  is  when  I be lieve  the  
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in jury occurred . 

Q Okay. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Those  a re  a ll the  ques tions  tha t I have .  

Thank you .   

THE COURT:  Recross? 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q A few fo llow up  ques tions  fo r you , Doctor.  Would  you  agree  

with  m e tha t the  -- when  you  perform  hys te roscopie s  and  cure ttage  and  

a re  us ing  resection  of -- a  re section  device  during  a  hys te roscopy, tha t 

you  a re  bound to  encounter som e m in im al b leed ing? 

A Yes . 

Q Yeah .  It happens  when you  use  a  sharp  cure ttage , co rrect? 

A Yes . 

Q All righ t.  And I wan t to  re fe r you  back to  the  -- if we  can  

switch  it back to  the  pa thology report tha t you  ta lked  about.  You would  

agree  with  m e  it says  cons is ted  of an  aggrega te  of m ucoid  m ateria l, 

m ixed  with  b lood  clo t.  It doesn ' t s ay excess ive  am ounts  of b lood .  It 

says  b lood  clo t .  And tha t could  com e from  actua lly the  use  of the  

cure ttage  tha t Dr. Brill described  us ing  a fte r the  resectoscope , true? 

A True . 

Q Okay.  And I'm  sorry, I don ' t th ink I asked  the  ques tion  -- I'm  

not -- I never a sked  you  the  ques tion  if you  would  expect to  find  en te ric 

conten ts .  My ques tion  tha t I asked  you  was  whether you  would  expect 

to  find  bowel. 
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A Yes . 

Q Do you  rem em ber tha t? 

A Yeah . 

Q And you  ind ica ted  tha t it is  poss ib le  if Dr. Brill had  resected  

or used  the  re sectoscope  and  had  caused  a  perfora tion  with  the  

resectoscope .    

A Uh-huh. 

Q Is  tha t righ t? 

A I wasn ' t -- was  tha t a  ques tion , sorry? 

Q Yes , tha t was  a  ques tion .   

A Can you  ask it aga in , p lease? 

Q Yes .  You acknowledged  ea rlie r tha t if Dr. Brill had  used  a  

resectoscope  to  cause  tha t perfora tion , tha t it was  poss ib le  tha t tha t 

would  have  been  in  the  m ateria ls  found  in  the  pa thology specim en. 

A Yes , it' s  poss ib le  it would  be .  It' s  a lso  poss ib le  it wouldn ' t 

be .  

Q But you  don ' t know, because  you ' re  no t a  surg ica l 

pa thologis t, and  you  have  no  experience  in  ana lyzing  surg ica l pa thology 

specim ens  fo llowing  a  hys te roscopy, true?   

DR. BREEDEN:  Object as  a sked  and  answered . 

THE COURT:  Overru led . 

THE WITNESS:  All we  know is  the re  was  a  perfora tion  and  --  

BY MR. MCBRIDE:   

Q Doctor, m y ques tion  was  -- it' s  a  yes  or no  answer.  You don ' t 

know one  way or another because  you 're  no t a  surg ica l pa thologis t, 
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true? 

A Yes , tha t's  true .   

Q Okay.  You 'd  be  specula ting . 

A I agree . 

Q All righ t.  You don ' t want to  do  tha t, do  you? 

A I agree , I don ' t want to  do  tha t.  

Q Okay.  You were  asked  ques tions  abou t Ms. Taylor's  

recovery.  And in  your report o f February 10, 2021, you  acknowledged  

and  here  today, you  acknowledged  tha t she  com pla ins  of m ild  

abdom ina l pa in  sym ptom s on  occas ion , correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And you  th ink those  a re  re la ted  to  the  bowel in jury she  m ay 

have  suffe red? 

A I th ink m ore  like ly than  not, they can  be  re la ted  to  tha t. 

Q And you  a lso  ind ica te  tha t they would  require  no  fu ture  

trea tm ent, true? 

A In  and  of itse lf, from  the  actua l in jury po in t o f view, no , bu t 

as  I exp la ined  to  the  ju ry -- 

Q Doctor, le t m e  show you your report.   

MS. HALL:  Can  I approach , Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Yes .   

BY MS. HALL:   

Q If you  can  read  from  righ t there , she  com pla ins .  

A "She  com pla ins  of m ild  abdom ina l pa in  sym ptom s on  

occas ion  which  I do  th ink a re  re la ted  to  the  perfo ra tion  but will requ ire  
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no  fu ture  trea tm ent." 

Q That was  your tes tim ony in  th is  report, correct?  Correct? 

A Her curren t sym ptom s m ay not need  -- 

Q Doctor, the  ques tion  was  tha t was  your -- 

A Yes .  Yes .  I ju s t read  tha t, yes . 

Q -- your s ta tem ent? 

A Yes .   

Q Okay.  And you  a lso  say she  appears  to  have  m ade  a  nearly 

com ple te  recovery from  the  perfora tion , true? 

A I sa id  tha t, too . 

Q All righ t.   You a lso  were  asked  som e ques tions  about wha t 

in juries  or wha t conduct by Dr. Chris tensen  m ay have  caused , o r what 

in juries  m ay have  caused  a s  a  re su lt o f h is  b reach  of the  s tandard  o f 

care .  Do you  reca ll tha t? 

A Yes .  

Q And in  fact, you  tes tified  in  your depos ition  tha t the  

vio la tions  of the  s tandard  of care  of Dr. Chris tensen  led  to  increased  pa in  

and  suffe ring  and  a  worsening  of the  pa tien t's  condition  when the  

d iagnos is  was  de layed .  True? 

A Yes . 

Q In  fact, Bruce  Hutch ins , if he  had  contacted  Dr. Brill e a rly on  

in  the  pe riod  of tim e  she  was  in  the  PACU where  com pla in ts  o f pa in , o r 

abnorm a l pa in , as  you  sugges ted , then  a t tha t po in t, there  was  a  

poss ib ility tha t the  surgeon  or som eone , would  have  been  ab le  to  

eva lua te  any com pla in ts  o f her pa in  and  could  have  found the  bowe l 
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perfora tion  then , co rrect? 

A That's  specula tive , a lso , bu t tha t's  poss ib le . 

Q Well, tha t's  what you  expected  of resections , and  you  

an ticipa ted  it should  have  been  done , correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And tha t would  have  m eant tha t Ms. Taylor's  use  of long  

te rm  or an tib io tics  for a  long  period  of tim e  a lso  like ly would  have  been  

lessened , true? 

A That's  a  hard  -- tha t's  hard  to  answer.  Because  tha t' s  very 

specula tive  tha t if they would  have  done  surge ry sooner they would  

have  prevented  fou r weeks  of an tib io tics .  I don ' t know the  answer to  

tha t. 

Q Oh, so  you  don ' t know the  answer to  tha t, bu t you  

acknowledge  tha t the  de lay by Dr. Chris tensen  led  to  a  worsening  of the  

pa tien t's  condition , true? 

A Agreed .  But a lso  -- m aybe  not s ta ted  specifica lly the re , bu t it 

could  have  been  a  life -threa ten ing  infection  tha t she  would  have  had  to  

dea lt with  during  tha t tim e , which  would  have  been  a  risk tha t was  

unnecessary. 

Q Now Doctor, I th ink you  answered  som e ques tions .  I want to  

g ive  you  a  reverse  of a  ques tion  tha t Ms. -- tha t Pla in tiff' s  counse l asked  

a  second  ago .  If Dr. Brill d id  no t expect a  bowel perfora tion  because  he  

knew he  was  no t opera ting  the  ye llow peda l, there 's  no  reason  to  

perform  a  laparoscopy, true? 

A So  if he  never touched  -- if he  never used  the  resectoscope  or 
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used  the  ye llow peda l, he  wouldn ' t have  to  do  a  laparoscopy.   

Q Okay, tha t's  no t m y ques tion .  Lis ten  ve ry care fu lly.  If a t the  

tim e he  was  advancing  the  cam era , and  he  knew tha t he  was  no t us ing  

the  resectoscope  and  then  d iscove red  the  u te rine  perfora tion , you  would  

agree  with  m e , there 's  no  reason  to  do  the  lapa roscopy?  

A Yes .  In  tha t ca se . 

Q That's  a ll the  ques tions  I have .  Thank you .   

MR. MCBRIDE:  Tha t's  a ll the  ques tions  I have .  Thank you . 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  Do  we have  any ques tions  from  

our ju rors?   All righ t, no  ques tions .  Thank you  so  m uch.  You m ay be  

excused .   

DR. BREEDEN:  Can  we jus t approach  about scheduling? 

THE COURT:  Yes .  

[S idebar a t 1:54 p .m ., ending  a t 1:55 p .m ., no t transcribed ] 

THE COURT:  All righ t.  Ladies  and  gentlem en, as  I advised  

you  befo re , we 're  go ing  to  be  ending  a t 3:00, bu t I don ' t know if we ' ll a ll 

m ake  it un til then .  So  we 're  jus t go ing  to  take  a  qu ick five  m inute  

ba throom  break and  then  we ' ll com e back and  then  we ' ll com e back and  

then  we ' ll end  a t 3:00 for the  a fte rnoon . 

So  during  the  b reak, you 're  ins tructed  not to  ta lk with  each  

o ther or anyone  e lse  about any subject o r is sue  connected  to  th is  tria l.  

You 're  no t to  read , write , o r watch  or lis ten  to  any report o r com m entary 

on  the  tria l by any person  connected  with  th is  ca se  by any m edium  of 

in form ation , including  withou t lim ita tion  newspapers , te levis ion , 

in te rne t, o r rad io .   
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You 're  no t to  conduct any research  on  your own  re la ted  to  

th is  case , such  as  consulting  a  d ictiona ry, us ing  the  in te rne t, o r re fe rence  

m ateria ls , tes t any theory of the  case , repea t any aspect o f the  case  or in  

any o the r way inves tiga te   o r lea rn  about the  case  on  your own.  You 're  

no t to  ta lk with  o the rs , text o thers , twee t o thers , Google  is sues , o r lea rn  

about any o the r is sue , party, witness , o r a tto rney involved  in  th is  case .  

You 're  no t to  fo rm  or express  any opin ion  on  any subject connected  to  

th is  tria l un til the  ca se  is  fina lly subm itted  to  you .   

So  we ' ll take  a  qu ick five  m inute  b reak. 

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry.  

[J ury ou t a t 1:56 p .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  J u ry's  cleared   the  courtroom , Your Honor.  

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 

THE COURT:  Thank you .   We 're  ou ts ide  the  presence  of the  

ju ry.  Anyth ing  -- what a re  we  putting  on  the  record?  Le t' s  see .   

MR. MCBRIDE:  I fo rgot. 

DR. BREEDEN:   I have  them , Your Honor.  If you  jus t want 

Pla in tiff to  speak these .  During  the  cross-exam ina tion  there  were  

ob jections  tha t -- ques tions  about conversa tions  be tween  Ms. Taylor, m y 

clien t's  fo rm er a tto rney and  the  expert.  And our pos ition  is , firs t o f a ll, 

it' s  irre levant, bu t s econd , they're  a tto rney work product.  They're  no t 

d iscoverab le .  They're  essen tia lly privileged , even  though technica lly it' s  

a  work p roduct exem ption . 

There  were  a lso  num erous  ob jections  go ing  to  the  risk and  

com plica tions  is sue  tha t perm eate s  th is  tria l.  And there  were  a lso  
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num erous  ob jections  when tes tim ony regard ing  the  asserted  negligence  

of non-pa rties , o r parties  tha t a ren ' t he re  defending  in  the  case  was  

asked .  And tha t has  been  addres sed  in  a  m otion  in  lim ine , and  I would  

ca ll those  peruse  is sues .   

THE COURT:  Okay.  And jus t with  rega rd  to  the  conference  

ca ll, the re  wasn ' t actua lly any info rm ation  e licited .  It was  jus t -- I th ink 

the  ob jection  was  an ticipa ting  tha t tha t was  com ing  out.  So  tha t was  the  

d iscuss ion  on  the  bench .  And then  the  ques tion ing  went on  to  no t e licit 

anyth ing  about the ir conversa tion , bu t ra ther facts  tha t he  included  in  h is  

report and  h is  decla ra tion .  

And then  anyth ing  e lse  in  response  to  those  on  beha lf o f the  

Defense? 

MS. HALL:  No , Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  All righ t.  Quick ba throom  break.  

[Recess  from  1:58 p .m . to  2:04 p .m .] 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 

THE COURT:  Back on  the  record .  A-18-773472-C, Taylor v. 

Brill.  We 're  ou ts ide  presence  of the  ju ry.  Counse l for bo th  parties  a re  

presen t.  And a re  we  ready to  bring  the  ju rors  in? 

MR. BREEDEN:  Yes . 

THE COURT:  All righ t. 

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry. 

[J ury in  a t 2:05 p .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  J u ry is  a ll p resen t, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  You m ay be  sea ted . 
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And Pla in tiff, go  ahead  and  ca ll your next witness . 

MR. BREEDEN:  Our next witness  is  the  Pla in tiff, Kim berly 

Taylor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you . 

THE MARSHAL:  Please  s tep  up .  Watch  your s tep .  Face  the  

cle rk to  your le ft and  p lease  ra ise  your righ t hand . 

KIMBERLY TAYLOR, PLAINTIFF, SWORN 

THE CLERK:  Please  be  sea ted .  Please  s ta te  and  spe ll your 

nam e for the  record . 

THE WITNESS:  Kim berly Taylor.  K-I-M-B-E-R-L-Y 

T-A-Y-L-O-R. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Good afte rnoon , Kim . 

A Good afte rnoon . 

Q I want to  s ta rt with  som e ques tions  about your background 

so  tha t the  ju ry ge ts  to  know you a  little  be tte r.  What' s  your da te  of 

b irth? 

A 10/25/71. 

Q How old  a re  you  now? 

A Forty-n ine  years  o ld . 

Q How old  were  you  a t the  tim e  of the  hys te roscopy procedure  

involved  in  th is  case? 

A Forty-five . 

Q Where  a re  you  from  orig ina lly?  Where  d id  you  grow up? 
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A I g rew up  in  a  little  town ca lled  Severn , Maryland . 

Q How long  in  your life  d id  you  live  in  Maryland? 

A All m y life  un til I g radua ted  h igh  schoo l. 

Q Okay.  What year d id  you  gradua te  h igh  school? 

A 1990. 

Q Do you  com e from  a  b ig  fam ily? 

A I am  a  m iddle  ch ild .  I have  two s is te rs ; one  o lde r, and  one  

younger s is te r.  My o lder s is te r, we 're  e leven  m onth  apart.  And m y 

younger s is te r is  five  years  younger than  m e. 

Q Now, you  m entioned  tha t you  gradua ted  from  high  school in  

1990.  What d id  you  do  a fte r you  g radua ted  h igh  schoo l? 

A Well, I go t a  job .  I s ta rted  a  job  working  in  Maryland  righ t ou t 

o f h igh  school w ith  a  com pany ca lled  Centra l Hea lthcare  [phonetic].  And 

it was  a  -- it was  a  b illing  rece ivab les  m anagem ent com pany, and  I 

s ta rted  a  job  there  do ing  phys ician  b illing . 

Q Okay.  And so  d id  you  en joy tha t job? 

A I d id . 

Q Okay.  Did  you  know anybody in  tha t indus try before  you  got 

the  job? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  And when you  say b illing , what kind  of b illing  a re  you  

ta lking  about? 

A It was  -- the  job  I was  do ing  a t tha t tim e  was  phys ician  

b illing . 

Q And so  ju s t som e m ore  background inform ation .  Are  you  

X APPX002059



 

- 155 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

curren tly m arried? 

A No. 

Q Do you  have  any ch ildren? 

A I have  one  son , Liam  [phonetic]. 

Q How old  is  Liam ? 

A Now, he ' s  e igh teen . 

Q Do you  have  any o ther re la tives  tha t live  in  Las  Vegas? 

A My m om  lives  ou t here  with  m y s tep-dad .  Barbara  Olsen  and  

Clyde  Olsen . 

Q At what po in t in  your life  d id  you  m ove  to  Las  Vegas? 

A I -- well, I d idn ' t com e d irectly to  Las  Vegas .  So  when I go t 

tha t job  in  Maryland  and  I was  do ing  phys ician  b illing , they took, a t the  

tim e , som e volunteers .  They had  a  pro ject a t the  Univers ity of Knoxville , 

and  they had  asked  em ployees  to , you  know, vo luntee r who would  like  

to  go  on  th is  p ro ject.  And I pu t m y nam e in  the  ha t, and  I go t se lected .  

And I went to  the  Univers ity of Knoxville  for about a  year.  I worked  

ins ide  the  bus iness  office  the re .  From  there , I d id  ano ther sm all p ro ject 

in  -- righ t ou ts ide  of Nashville  in  Brentwood, Tennessee .  And then  -- I 

th ink tha t p ro ject was  about s ix m onths .  And then  I had  the  opportun ity 

with in  the  com pany -- with in  the  com pany I was  working  fo r a t the  tim e  

to  e ither go  to  S t. Pe te , Florida  or Las  Vegas , and  I chose  Las  Vegas .  And 

tha t's  where  I'm  a t today. 

Q And what year was  tha t when  you  m oved to  Las  Vegas? 

A So  I g radua ted  in  1990.  I d id  the  year and  a  ha lf p ro ject, and  

then  -- till like  som e tim e in  '92, I guess . 
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Q Have  you  lived  in  Las  Vegas , then , con tinuous ly s ince  '92? 

A Yes . 

Q What s ide  of town do  you  curren tly live  on? 

A Oh, I -- sou theas t. 

Q Would  you  describe  yourse lf as  an  active  person? 

A I am .  Yes . 

Q Give  the  ju ry of an  idea  of som e activities  or hobbies  tha t you  

en joy. 

A Well, I -- fo r s tress  re lie f from  m y job , I -- you  know, I run .  

And I try to  ge t m y workouts  in  about th ree  days  a  week.  You know, 

prior to  tha t, in  -- you  know, h igh  schoo l I p layed  softba ll.  My dad , as  a  

youth  coach  to  m y softba ll -- our so ftba ll leagues , m e  and  m y s is te rs .  Up  

until h igh  school I p layed , and  then  I d id  four years  of vo lleyba ll in  h igh  

school.  But I'm  an  active  person .  I like  to  keep  m yse lf, you  know, go ing . 

Q Afte r you  gradua ted  h igh  school, d id  you  continue  your 

educa tion  in  co llege? 

A I d id  no t. 

Q What do  you  cu rren tly do  for a  living? 

A I am  a  VP for a  rece ivables  m anagem ent com pany he re  in  

Las  Vegas  ca lled  FIRM Revenue  Cycle  Managem ent. 

Q Okay.  What's  your job  title  o r pos ition  there  aga in? 

A I'm  a  VP of e lig ib ility se rvices . 

Q And VP m eans  vice  pres iden t? 

A That is  correct. 

Q Okay.  And how long  have  you  worked  for FIRM Revenue  
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Cycle  Managem ent? 

A I've  been  with  them  nine  years . 

Q Since  you  wen t in to  the  m ed ica l b illing  and  rece ivables  

indus try ou t o f h igh  school, is  tha t what you 've  done  for a  living  s ince? 

A That is  been  m y career for the  las t -- you  know, s ince  I've  

been  out here .  I, you  know, s ta rted  a t an  en try-leve l pos ition .  I liked  it.  I 

had  som e pro jects  com e up , and  I jus t kind  of worked  m y way up  the  

ladder, so  to  speak.  We -- I went th rough -- th roughout m y career, I went 

th rough d iffe ren t acquis itions , d iffe ren t com pany buyouts .  So  I've  

worked  for very, ve ry la rge  corpora tions .  And, you  know, I jus t -- I ju s t 

worked  hard .  I jus t worked  m y way up , and  I'm  in  the  pos ition  now jus t 

due  to  hard  work. 

Q Give  the  ju ry an  idea  about what you  do  from  day to  day a t 

your job . 

A So  the  departm ent tha t I oversee , we  ca ll the  e lig ib ility 

se rvices  departm en t.  And so  we  contract with  hospita ls , and  we  take  a  

portion  of the ir rece ivables , and  m y departm ent does  a ll o f the  se lf-pay 

rece ivables .  So  if som ebody tha t com es  in to  the  hosp ita l with  no  hea lth  

insurance  a t a ll, the  hospita ls  will s ign  those  accounts  to  m y 

organiza tion , and  then  we will conduct beds ide  in te rviews  with  the  

pa tien ts  to  de te rm ine  whether or no t they qua lify for insu rance .  And it 

could  be  any insurance . 

 We can  he lp  them  with , you  know, m arke tp lace  applica tions  with  

Affordable  Care  Act, Medica id .  If there ' s  a  county program , we  wou ld  

he lp  facilita te  tha t.  If you  have  som ebody tha t com es  in  the  hospita l tha t 
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is  d isab led  or po ten tia lly d isab led , we ' ll he lp  them  with  the ir Socia l 

Security bene fits , applying .  We walk them  through and  advoca te  for 

them  on  beha lf o f the  hospita l to  find  a  payer.  

Q And does  your com pany jus t work in  Nevada? 

A Our hub  office  is  he re  in  Las  Vegas .  It' s  where  our corpora te  

office  is , bu t we 're  na tionwide .  So  I have  hospita ls  tha t I'm  contracted  

with  in  Californ ia , in  North  Caro lina , Miss iss ipp i.  We ' re  a ll over. 

Q How m any people  do  you  supervise? 

A Curren tly, I supervise  -- there  is  s eventeen  em ployees .  

Fifteen , seventeen  em ployees  under m e.  In  m y -- in  m y h is tory, in  m y 

career, I've  supervised  m uch  m ore  than  tha t. 

Q Okay.  Do you  actua lly work in  the  hosp ita l? 

A So  if we  -- yes  and  no .  So  if we  ge t a  new pro ject tha t we  

s ign  on , m y job , m y respons ib ility is  to  m eet with  the  CFOs , m eet with  

the  bus iness  office  d irectors .  We se t up  a  pro tocol o f, you  know, where  

they wou ld  like  us  to  fit in  the ir flows  and  the ir p rocesses  of working  with  

the  pa tien ts . 

Q Okay. 

A So  yes , when  the  se tup  pro ject is .  But I oversee  the  bus iness  

from  m y Vegas  office .  We can  VPN in to  the  hospita ls , hosp ita l sys tem  as  

if we  were  s itting  there  in  the  hosp ita l and , you  know, review accoun ts  

and  work bus iness . 

Q Do you  participa te  in  any charitie s  associa ted  with  your 

work? 

A I m ean , I've  done  charities  in  m y pas t.  I've  done  -- d id  a  
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m anagem ent leade rsh ip  course  th rough ChoiceCente r yea rs , years  ago  

tha t we  d id  a  charity for ch ildren  tha t were  bo rn  with  cle ft pa la tes .  So  a s  

a  group , we  had  to  com e up  with  a  cha ritab le  event tha t we  wanted  to  

contribu te  with .  And as  a  g roup , we  had  to  decide  what we  were  go ing  

to  contribu te , and  tha t was  what we  decided .  We want to  -- we  wan ted  

to  ra ise  m oney to  g ive  to  ch ildren  tha t were  bo rn  with  cle ft pa la tes  to  fix 

tha t for them . 

Q Have  you  rece ived  any com m unity recognition /awards  for 

the  work tha t you  do? 

A I rece ived  through the  Cham ber of Com m erce  a  cus tom er 

se rvice  exce llence  award .  The  hospita l tha t I was  working  a t a t tha t tim e  

nom ina ted  m e, and  I go t an  award  through the  -- I had  to  go  down to  the  

Cham ber of Com m erce  and  accept m y award .  Yes . 

Q Do you  hold  any profess iona l licenses  or certifica tions? 

A Through m y job , I have  to  -- one  of them  would  be , exam ple , 

I am  a  certified  CEC counse lor, which  is  -- what tha t m eans  is  it' s  a  

ce rtified  enro llm ent counse lor.  And it' s  th rough the  S ta te  o f Californ ia , 

and  it a llows  m e to  be  ab le  to  he lp  people  in  the  com m unity apply for 

insurance  through the  m arke tp lace .  You have  to  -- you  have  to  take  a  

tes t, you  have  to  do  an  annual exam , and  you  have  to  keep  tha t go ing  in  

order to  keep  your CEC license . 

Q Kim , I want to  ta lk now a  little  b it about your m edica l h is tory.  

And I know som etim es , th is  can  be  em barrass ing  for peop le  to  te ll 

s trangers  in  a  courtroom  a ll th is  in form ation , bu t I have  to  ask you  for 

the  case .  Have  you  had  trouble  with  your m ens trua l cycle s  over the  

X APPX002064



 

- 160 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

years? 

A Yes . 

Q Can you  describe  fo r the  ju ry what your m ens trua l cycles  a re  

like  and  what the  sym ptom s a re? 

A Well, they're  long .  Heavy b leed ing .  You know, norm a l 

periods  would  be , you  know, th ree  to  four days .  Mine  would  be , you  

know, seven  to  e igh t, som etim es  longer.  They're  extrem ely pa infu l, 

uncom fortab le . 

Q And how frequently do  they com e? 

A I was  ge tting  -- I -- it seem ed  like  I was  m ens trua ting  

cons tan tly.  I would  ge t m y cycle  a lm os t every two weeks .  It wasn ' t a  

norm al cycle .  I never had  a  norm al cycle .  It was  -- I ju s t -- I was  -- it fe lt 

like  I was  jus t -- it a ffected  m y day-to-day life .  I was  frus tra ted  with  it. 

Q How would  it a ffect your work or your socia l life? 

A I -- jus t to  g ive  you  an  exam ple ; it' s  kind  of em barras s ing .  

But I' ll ju s t g ive  you  an  exam ple  o f how it -- I m ean , I go t to  the  po in t 

where  I was  trying  to  p lan  th ings  or do  th ings  where  I wasn ' t on  m y 

cycle .  I rem em ber go ing  to  a  gam e, a  Knights  gam e, and  on  m y period , 

and  I ended  up  spending  a  fu ll period  of the  gam e in  the  ba throom  

because  of m y heavy b leed ing .  I b led  th rough the  clo thes  tha t I was  

wearing .  I was  with  m y friends .  It was  em barrass ing .  So  when I had  

s itua tions  like  tha t, I would  -- I'm  like , okay, I'm  not go ing  to  do  it th is  

tim e  because  th is  is  -- you  know, I have  a ll these  is sues  go ing  on .  It d id  

a ffect m e .  It a ffected  m y day-to-day life . 

Q How long  have  those  sym ptom s been  going  on?  Have  you  
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had  tha t your whole  life  or is  tha t som eth ing  tha t's  com e on  la te r? 

A So  you  know, p rior to  tha t, I -- it would  -- when  I was  -- it 

would  -- I was  on  b irth  contro l.  So  prio r to  m y son  be ing  born , and  he  

was  born  in  2003, you  know, I would  -- I would  go  through b irth  contro l.  

And then  the  o lder you  ge t; d iffe ren t b irth  contro l m ethods  were  no t 

working .  I was  find ing  m yse lf crying  a ll the  tim e .  I would  -- I fe lt, you  

know, depressed .  And it wasn ' t un til a  g irlfriend  -- I was  ta lking  to  a  

g irlfriend  about how I was  fee ling , and  she  sa id , Kim , it' s  p robably the  

s ide  e ffects  o f the  horm ones  with  your b irth  contro l.  And I d idn ' t even  

th ink tha t.   

So  I took m yse lf o ff o f the  b irth  contro l.  My sym ptom s of the  

depress ion  and  the  crying  subs ided .  And then  I jus t -- okay, so  I ju s t 

was , now what?  Now, how am  I go ing  to  fix the  is sues  tha t I have? 

Q So  o ther than  b irth  contro l o r changing  the  type  of b irth  

contro l you  were  on , what e lse  d id  you  try to  addres s  your m ens trua l 

cycles? 

A Well, m ee ting  with  Dr. Brill tha t I d iscussed  if, you  know, th is  

would  be  another op tion  tha t I could  do  would  be  the  ab la tion  and  then  

with  the  rem oval of fib ro id . 

Q You m entioned  your son .  What year was  he  bo rn? 

A In  2003. 

Q And was  tha t a  na tu ra l b irth  or a  C-section? 

A It was  a  na tura l b irth . 

Q Was  Dr. Brill the  doctor tha t de livered  your son? 

A No. 
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Q Were  you  a  pa tien t o f Dr. Brill' s  a t tha t tim e? 

A No. 

Q Have  you  ever been  d iagnosed  with  endom etrio s is? 

A No. 

Q Have  you  ever been  d iagnosed  with  cervica l cancer? 

A No. 

Q Have  you  been  d iagnosed  with  any m alignant cancer in  your 

fem ale  reproductive  organs? 

A No. 

Q Is  it your unders tanding  tha t you  have  what's  a  re troverted  

u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  And jus t in  layperson 's  te rm s , can  you  expla in , aga in , 

to  the  ju ry wha t tha t m eans? 

A It' s  m y unders tanding  it' s  when  the  u te rus  tilts  no t forward  

but backwards . 

Q When d id  you  learn  tha t? 

A Afte r the  b irth  of m y son .  I d id  no t know tha t I had  any 

abnorm a lities  of any shape  or form  until Liam  was  bo rn . 

Q Who to ld  you  tha t? 

A The  doctor who de livered  Liam . 

Q And were  you  ever to ld  you  were  in  som e sort o f danger 

because  of your re troverted  u te rus? 

A No. 

Q Were  you  ever to ld  tha t any of your sym ptom s, like  for your 
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m ens trua l cycles , tha t tha t was  re la ted  to  having  a  re troverted  u te rus? 

A No. 

Q Were  you  ever to ld  tha t you  would  need  a  trea tm ent like  a  

surgery to  fix tha t? 

A No. 

Q Is  it a lso  your unders tanding  you  have  what's  ca lled  a  

b icornua te  u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q And jus t, aga in , in  layperson 's  te rm s  can  you  describe  what 

tha t m eans  to  the  ju ry? 

A So  m y unders tanding  of a  norm al u te rus  is  shaped  like  a  T, 

and  m ine  is  shaped  like  a  heart where  I have  two d iffe ren t cham bers  -- o r 

horns  is  what they ca ll it. 

Q And when d id  you  learn  you  had  a  b ico rnua te  u te rus? 

A Afte r m y son  was  born . 

Q And who to ld  you  tha t? 

A The  doctor who de livered . 

Q Were  you  ever to ld  you  were  in  som e sort o f danger because  

of the  b icorna te  u te rus? 

A No. 

Q Have  they ever to ld  you  your sym ptom s were  because  of 

tha t? 

A No. 

Q Were  you  ever to ld  tha t you  needed  som e sort o f trea tm en t 

or surge ry for the  b icorna te  u te rus? 
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A No. 

Q Is  it a lso  your unders tanding  tha t you  have , o r have  had  in  

the  pas t a  fib ro id  tum or in  your u te rus? 

A Yes . 

Q Okay.  What does  tha t m ean? 

A It is  a  noncancerous  tum or in s ide  m y u te rus , the  lin ing  of it. 

Q Do you  know how m any you  have  and  what s ize  they a re? 

A One  tha t was , I be lieve  they sa id  it was  m aybe  the  s ize  of a  

p ing  pong  ba ll. 

Q When d id  you  learn  -- firs t lea rn  tha t you  had  a  fib ro id  

tum or? 

A It would  have  been  a fte r Liam  was  born .  Again , go ing  

through the  is sues  tha t I was  having , I had  som e CAT scans  and  som e 

tes ts  done  back then  as  well. 

Q And who firs t in form ed you  tha t you  had  a  fib ro id  tum or? 

A I -- who -- it would  have  been  -- I don ' t know specifica lly who, 

bu t it wou ld  have  been  the  phys ician  tha t I was  unde r the  care  a t tha t 

tim e , a fte r Liam  was  born . 

Q Okay.  So  a ll these  conditions , a  re troverted  u te rus , a  

b icornua te  u te rus , and  fib ro id  tum or, you 've  known tha t you 've  had  

those  conditions  s ince  your son  was  born? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay.  And were  you  m ore  o r less  jus t living  with  those  up  

until 2017? 

A Yes . 
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Q As  an  adult, have  you  regula rly seen  an  OB/GYN? 

A Yes . 

Q And when d id  you  firs t s ta rt see ing  the  Defendant in  th is  

case , Dr. Brill, a s  your OB/GYN? 

A Well, so  I was  a  pa tien t o f Wom en 's  Hea lth  Associa te s  of 

Southern  Nevada .  He  was  not m y orig ina l doctor.  When I firs t s ta rted  

go ing  to  tha t facility -- o r tha t clin ic, I was , I be lieve  h is  nam e was  Dr. 

Skinner.  He  was  m y -- he  was  m y doctor firs t.  And then  he  le ft the  

practice , and  then , I guess  I was  inherit -- there 's  m ultip le  doctors  with in  

tha t p ractice , bu t I guess  Dr. Brill inherited  m y -- because  I'm  a  pa tien t 

there , ju s t inhe rited  m e, I guess . 

Q So  do  you  reca ll when  you  firs t s ta rted  go ing  to  the  clin ic, 

and  then  when your care  sort o f transfe rred  over to  Dr. Brill? 

A Oh, m y goodness , I th ink I s ta rted  see ing  Dr. Brill in  

som etim e of 2015.  I don ' t know how long  I had  been  with  the  clin ic up  

until tha t po in t.  Maybe  a  couple  o f yea rs .  I don ' t -- I don ' t reca ll how 

long  I had  been  a  pa tien t o f Wom en 's  Health  Associa tes  o f Southern  

Nevada . 

Q So  the  procedure  in  th is  case  happened  in  April o f 2017? 

A Uh-huh. 

Q So  can  you  g ive  the  ju ry an  idea  about how m any tim es  you  

saw Dr. Brill, and  fo r what conditions  in  the  yea r lead ing  up  to  tha t 

p rocedure? 

A I would  see  h im  for m y annuals , and  then  when I was  ge tting  

frus tra ted  abou t, you  know, the  is sues  I was  having , you  know, I wan ted  
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to  know what m y options  would  be , and  so  we  ta lked  abou t, like , you  

know, do ing  the  ab la tion  for heavy b leed ing , and  then  -- and  then  the  

rem oval of the  fib ro id  would  be  a  viab le  op tion  for m e.  And so  I had  -- I 

had  procedures  -- there  were  s teps  tha t you  had  to  take  in  order to  ge t -- 

fo r tha t p rocedure  to  happen . 

Q Tell the  ju ry about tha t then . 

A And so  the  b iopsy o f the  endom etria l lin ing  was  one , and  

then  the  b iopsy of m y cervix was  the  second.  And so  those  were  jus t -- 

and  m y unders tand ing  was  they were  jus t p recautionary.  Like , the  --    

we  -- he  had  to  do  those  to  m ove  -- to  forward  to  th is  surgery.  They 

were  cancer s creenings . 

Q And so  a s  bes t as  you  can  reca ll, what a re  the  nam es  of 

d iffe ren t types  of p rocedures  tha t Dr. Brill wanted  to  m ove  forward  with? 

A The  D&C, which  I be lieve  was  ju s t rou tine .  The  ab la tion ,   

and  -- bu t the  D&C is  d ila tion  and  cure ttage  and  then  the  rem oval of the  

fib ro id , so  there  was  th ree  -- techn ica lly th ree  procedures  tha t he  was  

go ing  to  do . 

Q And so  what's  your unders tanding  of what happens  du ring  

the  ab la tion , and  why d id  you  wan t to  undergo  an  ab la tion  procedure? 

A It was  m y unde rs tanding  tha t the  ab la tion  -- and  I have  -- jus t 

to  jum p back, I have  a  g irlfriend  who had  tha t p rocedure  done , so  I was  

ab le  to  speak with  her, and  I -- you  know, I kind  of knew what was  -- what 

it cons is ted  of, and  it was  the  burn ing  o f the  ins ide  of the  lin ing  of the  

u te rus .  And tha t -- she  had  it done , and  she  jus t spoke  wonders  about it.  

And you  know, and  I wanted  to  know if tha t would  have  been  an  op tion  
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for m e.  Can  I do  th is  for m y heavy b leed ing?  And tha t was  m y 

unders tanding . 

Q And what's  your unders tand ing  of wha t was  go ing  to  happen  

with  the  fib ro id  tum or rem oval? 

A That it would  be  cu t.  It -- the  cu t rem oved. 

Q What was  your unders tanding  of how long  the  p rocedure  

was  supposed  to  take? 

A The  procedure  itse lf, approxim ate ly an  hour. 

Q Where  was  it go ing  to  be  perform ed? 

A At Henderson  Hosp ita l. 

Q And d id  you  expect to  have  to  s tay overn ight in  the  hospita l? 

A No. 

Q Well, what was  your expecta tion  then? 

A He to ld  m e it was  a  very, very s im ple  p rocedure . 

Q I'm  sorry, when  you  say "he ," who are  you  re fe rring  to? 

A I’m  re fe rring  to  Dr. Brill. 

Q Okay.  And so  p lease  continue . 

A Okay.  Tha t I would  be  in  surgery approxim ate ly an  hour, and  

recovery wou ld  be  anywhere  from  an  hour to  two hours  and  then  I 

would  be  -- I would  be  ab le  to  go  hom e. 

Q And was  Dr. Brill pe rsona lly go ing  to  pe rform  the  procedure?  

Or was  it go ing  to  be  anothe r OB/GYN or surgeon? 

A It was  Dr. Brill. 

Q And what was  your unders tanding  about anes thes ia  during  

the  procedure? 
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A That I would  be  go ing  under fu ll anes thes ia . 

Q And do  you  rem em ber asking  Dr. Brill about the  recovery 

tim e  a fte r the  procedure? 

A I reca ll asking  h im , you  know, how long  the  down tim e  would  

be , and  I don ' t -- I reca ll th is  because  I was  do ing  a  5k run  tha t I was  

partnered  -- pa rtnering  up .  It was  for Girls  on  a  Run, and  so  I was  

partnering  up  with  a  -- acting  as  a  m en tor for a  younger teenager, and  I 

wanted  to  know am  I go ing  to  be  okay to  do  th is  run  with  th is  -- you  

know, with  th is  -- th is  teenager, and  -- because  if I d idn ' t, I needed  

som ebody to  fill m y spot.  And he  sa id  -- well, obvious ly, he  sa id  lis ten  to  

your body, if you  can ' t do  it, bu t you ' ll be  fine . 

Q And so  do  you  rem em ber what day of the  week you  were  

scheduled  to  have  the  procedure? 

A I had  the  procedure .  I be lieve  it was  on  a  Wednesday. 

Q And when was  th is  5k run  tha t you  were  supposed  to  do? 

A Sunday. 

Q Okay.  So  you  had  a sked  Dr. Brill, p rior to  your hys te roscopy, 

whether you  would  s till be  ab le  to  do  tha t on  Sunday? 

A I d id . 

Q Okay.  And he  to ld  you  you  could? 

A He d id , yeah .  He  d idn ' t see  an  issue  with  it. 

Q And so  le t' s  go  through what happens  on  the  actua l day of 

the  hys te roscopy.  How did  you  ge t to  Henderson  Hospita l tha t m orning? 

A My s tep-dad  p icked  m e up  and  drove  m e there . 

Q About what tim e  a  day d id  he  p ick you  up? 
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A It was  early in  the  m orning .  I had  to  be  there  early, m aybe  

5:30 in  the  m orning , 6:00 in  the  m orning , approxim ate ly. 

Q And you  say your s tep-dad .  Can  we put a  nam e  to  h im ? 

A Yes .  Clyde  Olsen . 

Q And he  tes tified  earlie r in  th is  tria l, righ t? 

A He d id . 

Q And so  d id  Clyde  s tay with  you  a fte r d riving  you  to  the  

hospita l? 

A He d id  no t. 

Q Okay.  Do you  know why he  d idn ' t? 

A He -- it was  jus t -- they to ld  h im  he  d idn ' t have  to  s tay, tha t, 

you  know, he  could  leave , and  they would  ca ll m e  -- o r ca ll -- no t m e , ca ll 

h im  when he  -- when  I was  ready to  be  p icked  up . 

Q What d id  you  do , o r where  d id  you  go  when you  got to  the  

hospita l? 

A Well, you  go  to  the  ou tpa tien t reg is tra tion  surge ry desk.  You 

check in .  They -- you  know, they take  a ll your in form ation .  They take  

you  back and  then  they prep  you  in  a lm os t like  a  bay.  It' s  no t a  room , 

bu t it' s  a  bay, like  with  curta ins . 

Q Do you  rem em ber m eeting  with  the  anes thes io logis t, Dr. 

Yeh , p rior to  the  procedure? 

A I do . 

Q What do  you  rem em ber h im  saying  to  you? 

A I rem em ber h im  be ing  m ore  form al ques tions , like  you  know, 

verifying  m y da te  o f b irth .  Do you  know what you 're  here  for?  You  
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know what, he  d id  -- he  in troduced  h im se lf to  m e, you  know, tha t he  was  

the  anes thes io logis t, bu t it was  m ore  o f a , you  know, a  form al 

verifica tion  of, you  know, what I was  there  for, what I was  go ing  in  for, 

and  tha t he  would  see  m e ins ide  the  opera ting  room . 

Q Did  you  see  Dr. Brill in  the  hospita l befo re  the  procedure  

s ta rted? 

A I d id . 

Q And what do  you  rem em ber about your conversa tion  with  

Dr. Brill a t tha t tim e? 

A It was  very brie f.  Again , m ore , I guess , jus t the  -- le t m e  

know tha t he  was  there , tha t -- you  know, he  m ay have  m entioned  he  

had  another su rgery ahead  of m ine , and  tha t he  would  see  m e in  the  

opera ting  room . 

Q Okay.  So  was  it your unders tanding  tha t Dr. Brill had  o the r 

pa tien ts  tha t day a t the  hospita l to  tend  to? 

A Yeah , one .  One  before  m e.  I don ' t know if he  had  m ore  a fte r 

m e, bu t I know tha t it -- I was  -- I be lieve  I was  h is  second pa tien t. 

Q What was  your expecta tion  about when  the  surgery was  

go ing  to  s ta rt? 

A Shortly.  I m ean , a fte r he  cam e in , I don ' t th ink I waited  very 

long .  You know, I went -- I went back fa irly qu ickly. 

Q About what tim e  in  the  m orning  was  tha t? 

A About 8:00, 8:30, m aybe  poss ib ly, 8:20. 

Q Did  -- do  you  rem em ber how long  you  were  a t the  hospita l 

before  you  were  taken  in to  the  ope ra ting  room ? 
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A You m ean  from  the  tim e  I a rrived  when Clyde  dropped  m e 

off? 

Q Yeah . 

A So  he  dropped  m e off 5:30, 6:00, and  then  I th ink I was  taken  

back, approxim ate ly 8:00, 8:20. 

Q Okay.  Do you  rem em ber be ing  taken  in to  the  opera ting  

room ? 

A On a  gurney, yes . 

Q Do you  rem em ber, d id  you  fee l ne rvous  a t tha t tim e? 

A I -- actua lly, I was , and  I rem em ber -- I on ly rem em ber th is  

because  the  nurse , when  I was  wa iting  to  be  taken  back, I don ' t know if 

she  sensed  how nervous  I was , bu t she  gave  m e, it was  jus t -- a lm os t like  

a  Band-Aid .  She  pu t it on  the  ins ide  of m y wris t, and  it m ore  was  like  a  

lavende r, kind  of sooth ing  th ing  tha t ju s t would  ca lm  you .  I was  

nervous . 

Q What do  you  rem em ber about the  ope ra ting  room  its e lf? 

A I m ean , I don ' t -- I don ' t rem em ber a  lo t.  I rem em ber be ing  

transferred  over to  the  tab le , and  then  I rem em ber Dr. Yeh , you  know, 

asking  m e, like  where  I want to  be  on  vaca tion , go  to  your happy p lace  

and  we ' ll see  you  when you  wake  up .  And then  it was  ligh ts  ou t a fte r 

tha t. 

Q So  what is  the  next th ing  you  rem em ber? 

A The  next th ing  I rem em ber is  waking  up  in  the  recovery -- in  

the  PACU unit. 

Q Okay.  So  we 've  heard  th is  te rm  before , bu t PACU is  bas ica lly 

X APPX002076



 

- 172 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

the  recovery room ? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay.  And you  know, where  were  you?  Were  you  on  a  bed , 

o r --  

A I was  on  a  bed , in  like  a  bay.  You  know, it' s  like  a  -- like  a  -- 

like  if you  were  to  go  in  the  ER, an  ER bay, kind  of.  It' s  no t a  room , you  

know, because  you ' re  d ivided  by curta ins  with  o ther pa tien ts . 

Q And who was  there  with  you  a t firs t? 

A I -- nobody.  Well, the  nurse .  Nurse  was  with  m e .  I m ean , 

nurse  -- I rem em ber waking  up  to  Nurse  Hutch ins . 

Q Okay.  Did  you  have  anothe r nurse  tha t you  worked  with  in  

the  PACU?  Or was  it on ly Nurse  Hutch ins  tha t you  saw? 

A It was  on ly Nurse  Hutch ins . 

Q Okay.  When you  woke  up , do  you  rem em ber what tim e  of 

day tha t was? 

A I do  not. 

Q Do you  have  any unders tand ing  of how long  you  were  in  

surgery? 

A I woke  up  in  a  lo t o f pa in . 

Q Okay.  Te ll m e  abou t then  you  wake  up , and  you 're  in  a  lo t o f 

pa in .  How would  you  describe  the  pa in  you  were  in  when  you  woke  up? 

A Excrucia ting .  Like  if you  were  to  take  a  wet towe l and  ring  it 

in  your s tom ach and  your abdom en and  it' s  jus t twis ting  and  jus t jabs , it 

was  -- I was  in  a  lo t o f pa in .  I was  -- it was  excrucia ting . 

Q Where  was  the  pa in  on  your body? 
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A My abdom en.  My lower -- m y lower part o f m y s tom ach. 

Q And d id  you  have  any o ther sym ptom s? 

A I was  ve ry nauseous .  You know, I fe lt like  I had  to  th row up , 

bu t I had  noth ing  in  m e to  th row up .  Alm ost like  dry heaving , I guess . 

Q Were  you  ab le  to  s tand  and  walk? 

A No. 

Q Okay.  Did  you  try? 

A No. 

Q Well, if you  d idn ' t try, how do  you  know you weren ' t ab le  to? 

A I couldn ' t ge t up .  I was  in  a  lo t o f pa in .  I jus t la id  there .  I 

was  hurting  pre tty bad .  I d idn ' t even  -- I had  no  des ire  to  ge t up . 

Q And were  your m om  and  s tep-fa ther there  a t the  tim e? 

A When I firs t -- 

Q When you  firs t woke  up? 

A No. 

Q And do  you  rem em ber see ing  Dr. Brill in  the  PACU? 

A I do . 

Q What do  you  rem em ber -- well, firs t o f a ll, wha t's  your 

unders tanding , o r what's  your reco llection  of how long  it was  a fte r you  

woke  up , before  you  saw Dr. Brill? 

A He was  there  early.  I rem em ber see ing  h im  then  -- there  

early on .  And he  d idn ' t com e in  the  la te  a fte rnoon, I know.  It was  -- it 

was  early in  the  m orning .  You know, Nurse  Hutch ins  was  the  firs t one  I 

see , and  then  he  cam e in  righ t a fte r. 

Q And as  bes t as  you  can  reca ll, what d id  Dr. Brill say to  you  
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about the  procedure  and  what occurred? 

A He d idn ' t -- he  d idn ' t vis it with  m e long .  He  cam e in  and  ve ry 

brie fly he  sa id , Kim , the  procedure  was  s im ply too  com plica ted .  We will 

ta lk a t your -- a t your pos t-op  appoin tm ent in  two weeks .  And so  -- and  

then  he  le ft.  And so  in  m y m ind , I'm  th inking , okay, because  of a ll m y 

abnorm a l -- abnorm alities , tha t he  couldn ' t do  it, and  tha t's  a ll he  sa id  to  

m e. 

Q Now, if you  put a  s topwatch  on  it, how long  was  he  there  

ta lking  to  you? 

A A m inute .  Two m inutes .  It wasn ' t long  a t a ll.  It was  qu ick. 

Q Do you  rem em ber anyth ing  you  sa id  back to  h im ? 

A I do  not.  I don ' t th ink I sa id  anyth ing .  I th ink I s a id , okay, you  

know. 

Q Now, som e people , when  they com e ou t o f anes thes ia , they 

have  a  -- they fee l g roggy, o r they have  a  poor m em ory.  Do you  reca ll 

tha t conversa tion  vivid ly? 

A I do . 

Q And is  it your unders tanding  tha t Dr. Brill had  to  leave  your 

s ide  to  tend  to  o the r pa tien ts? 

A Yes . 

Q Did  you  ever see  Dr. Brill aga in  tha t day a fte r tha t one-m inu te  

conversa tion? 

A No. 

Q Did  Dr. Brill ever te ll you , du ring  tha t conversa tion , tha t he  

had  caused  a  perfora tion  in  your u te rus? 
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A No. 

Q Did  Dr. Brill ever te ll you  during  tha t conversa tion  tha t he  had  

caused  a  perfora tion  in  your sm all in te s tine? 

A No. 

Q Knowing  what you  know now, do  you  th ink Dr. Brill was  

upfront with  you  about what happened  during  the  procedure? 

A No. 

Q How does  tha t m ake  you  fee l? 

A Mad.  I'm  angry.  I'm  -- I don ' t unders tand  it.  I don ' t know.  

You th ink you 're  in  the  bes t o f hands .  And tha t -- I fe lt tha t knowing  what 

I know now tha t I deserved  an  explana tion  of what happened  to  m e.  And  

then  four years  la te r is  the  firs t tim e  I'm  hearing  tha t he  a ttem pted  to  

repa ir.  I've  never heard  tha t un til th is  day in  court.  And it jus t angers  

m e.  And  I jus t -- it' s  no t okay.  I deserve  to  know of any com plica tion  

tha t happened  to  m e im m edia te ly a fte r surgery.  And tha t's  no t what 

happened .  And I fee l chea ted .  And it a lm os t cos t m e  m y life .   

Q Around how long  were  you  in  the  PACU in  to ta l tha t day? 

A I was  in  there  for seven  and  a  ha lf hours . 

Q What was  your unders tanding  before  the  procedure  about 

how long  you  would  have  to  s tay in  the  hospita l a fte rward? 

A He to ld  m e tha t I would  only be  in  recovery for about an  

hour.  The  -- tha t was  m y unders tanding .  And I u ltim ate ly ended  up  

s taying  seven  and  a  ha lf.   

Q Now, you  m entioned  tha t you  saw Nurse  Bruce  Hutch ins  

when  you  were  in  the  PACU, and  he  was  in  charge  of your care .  Did  
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Nurse  Hutch ins  eve r te ll you  tha t you  had  sus ta ined  a  perfora tion  during  

the  procedure? 

A No. 

Q To your knowledge , d id  Mr. Hutch ins  know tha t a t the  tim e? 

A I don ' t know tha t he  knew.  I would  th ink tha t he  would  have  

to ld  m e if he  knew.  I would  th ink tha t aga in , tha t would  be  the  practice  

of the  hea lthca re  provider to  in form  you.  I was  neve r in form ed.  Nobody 

to ld  m e. 

Q What sort o f th ings  do  you  rem em ber in  the  seven , s even  

and  a  ha lf hours  tha t you  were  in  the  PACU, Nurse  Hutch ins  do ing  for 

you? 

A I m ean , I was  in  a  lo t o f pa in .  There  was  a  lo t o f pa in  

m edica tion  tha t he  was  g iving  m e.  I was  nauseous .  I know tha t there  

was  nausea  m edicine  tha t he  was  g iving  m e.  I jus t d idn ' t fee l righ t, you  

know.  I jus t d idn ' t -- I rem em ber jus t no t fee ling  good.  Like , th is  -- I jus t 

fe lt bad .   

Q What sorts  o f th ings  would  Mr. Hutch ins  or Nurse  Hu tch ins  

ask you  to  do  fo r h im ? 

A Ask m e to  do? 

Q Yes .  Did  he  a sk you  to  try to  --  

A I m ean , he  wou ld  a sk m e, you  know -- he  would  ask m e to  

ra te  m y pa in .  I m ean , is  tha t what you 're  re fe rencing?  Like  --  

Q Yeah . 

A Oh yeah .  He  would  ask m e like , you  know, on  a  -- on  a  sca le  

of one  to  ten , like  what -- where  a re  you .  I m ean , th ings  like  tha t.  I 
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m ean , tha t's  the  exten t o f what he  asked  m e to  do . 

Q Would  he  ask you  to  try to  s tand  and  walk? 

A No.  I d idn ' t have  to  do  tha t un til I had  to  urina te .  They won ' t 

le t you  leave  unles s  you  urina te .  So  towards  the  end  of the  day when I 

had  -- you  know, they were  d ischarg ing  m e, I had  to  go  to  the  ba th room .  

Tha t was  the  on ly tim e  I go t up .   

Q What was  tha t expe rience  like?  Was  tha t easy to  go  to  the  

ba throom ? 

A No.  No.   

Q Tell the  ju ry what it was  like . 

A The  nurse  -- the  nurse  -- well, the  nurse  had  to  a ss is t m e , firs t 

o f a ll.  He  walked  m e to  the  ba throom .  You know, I rem em ber -- I 

rem em ber it specifica lly because  when  I went down to  go  s it on  the  

to ile t, I had  th is  sha rp  shooting  pa in  tha t a lm os t, like , went d irectly up  to  

m y rectum .  And it a lm os t, like , pushed  m e back up .  And when I a sked  

Nurse  Hutch inson  [s ic] is  th is  norm al, am  I supposed  to  be  fee ling  th is  -- 

it hurt.  It was  excrucia ting  pa in .  It was  -- it was  like  a  -- like  a  kn ife  or 

som eth ing  s tabbing  you , like , go ing  up  ins ide .  And h is  response  was  no , 

th is  is  no t norm al.  But what he  sa id  to  m e was  it could  be  a lso  

cons idered  what they ca ll re fe rred  pa in .   

So  when  you  have  surgery in  one  a rea  of your body, your m ind  or 

your bra in  m ight th ink tha t it' s  in  another.  So  I jus t -- okay.  I jus t 

accepted  tha t.  And I'm  like , okay.  Like , I d idn ' t -- I d idn ' t -- you  know, 

tha t's  what it -- I -- it hurt to  go  to  the  ba throom , to  even  s it down.   

Q What kind  of pa in  m edica tions  do  you  rem em ber rece iving?  
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A I rem em ber rece iving  Dilaudid , Fentanyl, Norco , Percoce t, 

severa l.  Severa l.  You know, then  I th ink there  was  Tylenol.  There  was  

nausea  m edicine .  There  was  -- I m ean , a ll th roughout, it was  a  lo t. 

Q How did  those  m ed ica tions  m ake  you  fee l? 

A Bette r.  I m ean , it seem ed like  they were  jus t m asking .  You 

know, now tha t I look back on  the  whole  scope  of everyth ing , the  pa in  

m edica tion  jus t m asks  the  pa in  you 're  in  a t tha t tim e .  So  it he lped , yeah .  

For sure .   

Q Were  you  ever pa in  free  in  the  PACU? 

A I wouldn ' t -- I wouldn ' t say I was  pa in  free .  No.  Absolu te ly 

no t.  

Q What tim e  of day aga in , was  it tha t they re leased  you  from  

the  PACU? 

A I be lieve  it was  4:30, 5:30 p .m ., approxim ate ly.  Maybe  5:30.   

Q Did  Dr. Yeh  com e to  check up  on  you  in  the  PACU? 

A I don ' t reca ll s ee ing  h im  in  the  PACU. 

Q At som e poin t d id  your m other Ba rbara  and  your s tepfa the r 

Clyde  a rrived? 

A They d id . 

Q Okay.  Were  they p resen t when  Dr. Brill was  the re  with  you  in  

the  PACU? 

A No.  I wasn ' t -- I was  by m yse lf. 

Q Did  you  ever see  them  ta lking  to  Dr. Brill? 

A No.  My paren ts  d idn ' t ge t there  un til, you  know, a fte r lunch .  

He  cam e and  saw m e early m orning .  Like , righ t a t -- you  know, firs t.   
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Q How, if you  know, d id  they know to  com e p ick you  up? 

A I m ean , I d idn ' t -- how d id  -- I'm  sorry, can  you  repea t tha t? 

Q Yeah .  If you  know, how d id  your m other and  Clyde  know to  

com e to  the  hospita l when  they d id? 

A They got -- they were  supposed  to  ge t a  ca ll.  But apparen tly, 

tha t's  no t what happened .  Clyde  had  to  ca ll them  and  say, do  you  know 

is  she  ready.  But they were  orig ina lly supposed  to  ge t a  ca ll from  the  

PACU to  them  tha t, you  know, Kim 's  ready to  be  p icked  up .  But tha t's  

no t how tha t happened .  

Q What was  the  process  like  a round your d ischarge?  Like , who 

d id  you  speak to  about should  I be  d ischarged , you  know, and  your 

hea lth?  Who m ade  tha t decis ion?   

A Well, I m ean , I --  

MS. HALL:  Your Honor, I'm  going  to  ob ject.  I th ink it ca lls  

for specu la tion  as  phrased .  

MR. BREEDEN:  I can  try to  --  

THE COURT:  Sus ta ined . 

MR. BREEDEN:  -- rephrase .   

THE COURT:  Okay.  Go ahead .  

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Who m ade  the  decis ion  to  d ischarge  you? 

A I m ean , I guess  it' s  u ltim ate ly --  

MS. HALL:  Again , Your Honor -- 

THE WITNESS:  -- the  doctor's  decis ion .  

MS. HALL:  Excuse  m e, Ms. Taylor.  I'm  sorry to  in te rrup t.  
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THE COURT:  Counse l, app roach .   

[S idebar a t 2:48 p .m ., ending  a t 2:49 p .m ., no t transcribed ] 

BY MR. BREEDEN:   

Q Kim , I don ' t want you  to  specula te .  Bu t do  you  know who -- 

do  you  know what m edica l ca re  provider m ade  the  decis ion  to  d ischarge  

you? 

A Henderson  Hospita l.  The  PACU nurse , I guess .  He  com es  -- 

he  -- I guess .  I don ' t know.  When you ' re  ready. 

Q What do  you  rem em ber about your re lease  from  the  hospita l, 

your d ischarge? 

A I rem em ber I was  s till in  pa in .  I rem em ber I cou ld  no t walk to  

the  car.  I was  whee led  out.  I rem em ber I was  leaving  with  a  th row up  -- 

they gave  m e  a  th row up  bag .  It was  a  b lue  -- it was  a  round  circu la r 

with  a  bag , and  it was  b lue , in  case  I had  an  accident in  the  car on  the  

way hom e.  And they gave  m e som e p rescrip tions  to  ge t filled  a lso .   

Q Okay.  Earlie r, when  we were  reviewing  pa in  a ssessm ent 

records  with  Nurse  Hutch ins , there  was  a  record  a round the  tim e of your 

d ischarge  tha t says  you  were  reporting  two out o f ten  pa in .  Is  tha t what 

you  reca ll?  

A I m ean , m y pa in  was  s ign ifican t.  I m ean , if I sa id  tha t, it' s  

because  of the  pa in  m edica tion  they were  g iving  m e.  It d rops  your -- the  

am ount of pa in  you 're  in  down.  So  okay.  Tha t doesn ' t m ean  I was  no t in  

pa in .  I was  s till in  pa in .  But it -- tha t's  what pa in  m edica tion  does , m asks  

-- you  know, m akes  you  fee l a  little  b it be tte r. 

Q When you  were  d ischarged , d id  you  th ink you  were  okay? 
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A I d idn ' t fee l good .  No.  I d idn ' t fee l good .  I jus t wanted  to  go  

hom e and  lay down .  I jus t d idn ' t fee l good . 

Q And so  aga in , how d id  you  ge t hom e? 

A My s tepdad .  

Q What tim e  d id  you  ge t hom e? 

A I th ink it was  about 5:30. 

Q And what happened  to  you  when you  got hom e?  What d id  

you  do? 

A I couldn ' t walk ups ta irs .  I couldn ' t go  ups ta irs .  I have  a  two-

s tory hom e, and  I couldn ' t walk ups ta irs .  So  I m ade  a  m akeshift bed  on  

the  couch , you  know, b lanke ts  and  p illows , and  jus t kind  o f se t m yse lf 

up , you  know, downsta irs  in  m y living  room .  And then  I la id  down.   

Q Were  you  ab le  to  ea t? 

A No. 

Q What sym ptom s were  you  having  a t tha t tim e? 

A I was  s till nauseous .  You know, dry heaving , I guess .  I s till 

had  noth ing  in  m y sys tem .  So  I m ean , you  fee l like  you 've  go t to  th row 

up .  But there 's  -- you  can ' t.  There 's  no th ing  to  com e up .  There 's  -- you  

know, you  have  noth ing  in  your sys tem .  So  ve ry nauseous .   

Q When d id  you  next try to  con tact Dr. Brill? 

A I want to  say -- so  I s tayed  -- I go t hom e  about, you  know, 

5:30.  And I was  -- m y paren ts  s tayed  until a round 11.  And I want to  say 

it was  a fte r they le ft tha t tha t pa in  cam e  back so  seve re  tha t it scared  m e, 

and  I m ade  an  a ttem pt to  ca ll h im .  He  had  g iven  m e a  phone  num ber on  

paperwork.  I couldn ' t ge t th rough.  I ju s t hung  up , and  I ca lled  911.  J us t 
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the  am ount of pa in  I was  in  jus t -- it wasn ' t righ t.  And it ju s t -- I th ink it 

jus t scared  m e  I th ink m ore  than  anyth ing .  Like , I d idn ' t fee l righ t. 

Q So  up  until tha t po in t in  tim e  where  you  tried  to  ca ll Dr. Brill, 

d id  Dr. Brill o r som eone  from  WHASN, Dr. Brill' s  clin ic, try to  contact 

you? 

A I d id  no t ge t one  phone  ca ll, one  fo llow-up  from  Dr. Brill, no t 

from  him , no t from  his  office , no t to  check up  on  m e.  No phone  ca lls  a t 

a ll.  None . 

Q And so  you  ca lled  911 ins tead .  What d id  you  te ll the  911 

opera tor? 

A I don ' t -- I don ' t reca ll the  specific conversa tion  I had .  I jus t 

sa id , I need  an  am bulance .  I d idn ' t -- I d idn ' t fee l okay tha t I could  even  

drive  a  car, firs t o f a ll.  I can ' t -- like , I knew som eth ing  was  wrong.  I fe lt 

it in  m y -- you  know, I d idn ' t fee l righ t.  And I needed  -- I needed  a  -- I 

needed  som ebody to  com e out and  take  m e to  the  hospita l.  You know, I 

d id  try to  ca ll m y pa ren ts .  I d idn ' t ge t th rough to  them .  And I -- tha t was  

m y las t op tion .  I had  to  ca ll -- I ca lled  911.  I d idn ' t know what e lse  to  do . 

Q Was  the re  anyone  e lse  in  the  hom e  with  you  a t the  tim e? 

A No.  

MR. BREEDEN:  Your Honor, th is  is  p robably a  good  s topping  

poin t for today's  tes tim ony. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Ms . Taylor, s tay there  for one  m om ent. 

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  Ladie s  and  gentlem en, like  I sa id , we 're  ending  

today a t 3.  Tom orrow, we 're  go ing  to  begin  a t 10:15.  So  I' ll see  you  a t 
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10:15 here .   

And during  the  break, you ' re  ins tructed  not to  ta lk with  each  

o ther or anyone  e lse  about any subject o r is sue  connected  with  th is  tria l.  

You 're  no t to  read , watch , o r lis ten  to  any report o r com m entary on  the  

tria l by any person  connected  with  th is  case  by any m edium  of 

in form ation , including  withou t lim ita tion  newspapers , in te rne t, o r rad io .   

You 're  no t to  conduct any research  a round or re la ted  to  th is  

case , such  as  consu lting  d ictionaries , u s ing  the  in te rne t, o r o ther 

re fe rence  m ateria ls , tes t any theory of the  case , recrea te  any aspect o f 

the  case , o r in  any o ther way lea rn  about the  case  on  your own or 

inves tiga te  the  facts .  You 're  no t to  ta lk with  o the rs , text o thers , Tweet 

o thers , Google  is sues , o r conduct any o ther type  of book or com puter 

research  with  regard  to  any issue , party, witnes s , o r a tto rney involved  in  

th is  case . 

And fina lly, you 're  no t to  form  or express  any opin ion  on  any 

subject connected  with  th is  tria l un til the  m atte r is  fina lly subm itted  to  

you .  Thank you .  And we ' ll see  you  a t 10:15 tom orrow.   

THE MARSHAL:  All rise  for the  ju ry.   

[J ury ou t a t 2:55 p .m .] 

THE MARSHAL:  The  jury is  clear o f the  courtroom , Your 

Honor. 

[Outs ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry] 

THE COURT:  We 're  ou ts ide  the  presence  of the  ju ry.  And 

there  was  an  objection .  Ms . Taylo r, you  can  go  ahead  and  go  down 

there .  But I'm  going  to  rem ind  you  you 're  s till under oa th .  So  you 're  no t 
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to  ta lk about your tes tim ony to  anyone , okay?   

THE WITNESS:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  All righ t.  Thank you .  The re  was  an  objection  

during  Ms. Taylor's  tes tim ony with  rega rd  to  who  d ischarged  her from  

the  hospita l.  And your ob jection , Ms. Hall?  

MS. HALL:  J us t tha t I thought it ca lled  for specula tion .   

MR. BREEDEN:  Yeah .  I th ink it was  rea lly jus t kind  of a  form  

or phras ing  objection .  I don ' t th ink the re  was  m uch m ore  to  say on  it.   

THE COURT:  All righ t.  And I had  a sked  you  to  rephrase , 

which  you  a ttem pted  to  do .  But I th ink the  response  s till was  

specula tive .  So  it is  what it is .  But I d id  ask you  to  rephrase .  

All righ t.  Anyth ing  e lse  before  we  leave?   

MR. BREEDEN:  Noth ing  further from  Pla in tiff.   

MS. HALL:  We had  p lanned  to  ca ll our expert tom orrow, Dr. 

McCarus .  I have  tried  to  ge t a  ho ld  of h im .  He  is  curren tly, I th ink, on  h is  

way here .  And if he  is  ava ilab le  a ll day, m y preference  wou ld  be  to  go  

ahead  and  fin ish  the  exam ina tion  of Ms. Taylo r before  pu tting  h im  on .  

As  soon  as  I hear, I' ll no tify counse l.  

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. BREEDEN:  Thank you  fo r bring ing  tha t up .  Tha t was  m y 

expecta tion , a s  well, tha t you  were  go ing  to  need  to  proceed  with  Dr. 

McCarus  im m edia te ly a fte r Ms. Taylor. 

MS. HALL:  Yes .  And I guess  -- I'm  sorry if tha t was  

confus ing .  But wha t I was  trying  to  say is  I had  orig ina lly a sked  to  ca ll 

Dr. McCarus  a s  the  firs t witness  on  Friday.   
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THE COURT:  Right.   

MS. HALL:  And I am  checking  with  h im .  And as  soon  as  I 

hear -- a ssum ing  he  is  ava ilab le  the  en tire ty of tom orrow, m y prefe rence  

would  be  to  fin ish  the  exam  of Ms . Taylor, and  then  put Mr. -- excuse  

m e -- Dr. McCarus  on .  

THE COURT:  Okay.  And Mr. Breeden , is  Ms. Taylor your la s t 

witness , o r we ' re  s till waiting  to  see  what happens  with  --  

MR. BREEDEN:  I' ll be  ca lling  Dr. Brill.  And there  m ay be  

o ther witnesses .   

THE COURT:  Okay.  All righ t.   

MR. BREEDEN:  And I th ink tha t oppos ing  counse l agreed  

tha t a fte r I ca ll Dr. Brill, they're  go ing  to  defer any ques tions  to  Dr. Brill to  

the ir case-in-ch ie f is  m y unders tanding .   

MS. HALL:  Well, tha t m ay be  the  case .  I guess  it' s  go ing  to  

depend  on  when Dr. Brill is  ca lled .  If he 's  the  la s t witness  o f Pla in tiff, I 

m ay not p re fe r m y d irect because  tha t -- you  know, if -- I don ' t know is  

the  bes t answer.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  Tha t's  g rea t.  I will see  you  a ll tom orrow 

a t 10:15.   

MR. BREEDEN:  All righ t.  Thank you , Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you .  

MS. HALL:  We 're  to  be  here , I'm  sorry, when , Your Honor? 

///// 

///// 

///// 
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THE COURT:  10:15. 

MS. HALL:  Oh , thank you .  I thought it was  8:30.  10:15.   

THE COURT:  Yes .   

[Proceed ings  ad jou rned  a t 2:59 p .m .]  
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